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INTRODUCTION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B Reported revenues +3% to £72.5m; underlying' revenues +2%
» Digital prerriurn content revenues +19% Ireported and underlying']
* Undertying live events revenues +10%; reported live events revenues +13%
* Agvertising revenues -10% {reported and underlying

® Adjusted operating profits? £9.1m [2015: £10.5m; adjusted® operating margin 12.6% (2015 14.9%}
® Reported operating loss narrowed to £3.9m (2015 £4.7m)

B Strong cash flow performance:
» £12.4m positive working capital swing from a £4.4m outflow in 2015 to a £6.0m inflow in 2016
« Adjusted operating cash flow® of £13,9m [2015: £3.3m| with cash conversion® of 153% [2015 31%l|. Operating cash flow
of £15.3m {2015: £6.1m}
« Further reduction in net debt® to £14.1m [2015: £17.9m)

B A reported loss before tax of £4.4m [2015: £5.6m) was driven by a non-cash imparrment of goodwill charge of £7.2m [2015:
£11.9m), an additional, separately reported charge for impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m (2015: €nil} and £1.2m (2015:
£0.7m) of exceptional operating costs relating to restructuring.

® Adjusted? diluted EPS of 4.5 pence down 15% [2015: 5.3 pence|. Diluted EPS of (3.8} pence [2015. [4.8] pence]

®Final dividend of 1.5p making total for the year of 3.0p, in line with last year

STRONG OPERATIONAL PROGRESS

Simproving revenue mix:
« Digital revenues increase by 9% from £27.6m to £30.0m
« Digital premium content increase by 19% from £14.5m to £17.3m
» Underlying® exhibition revenues increase by 13% from £13.5m [excluding AMS] to £15.3m

® Focusing on priority markets:
« Oystercalchers acquisition adds additional dimension to Marketing segment offer
« Evaluating acquisition opportunities in core markets to further reinforce B2B core offering
* Exploring disposal of Home Interest during 2017

® Monetising content:
* Lawyer.com paywall in place, premium content growth +48%
» Marketing Week launches successful Elearning platform

® [igitat publishing migration:
» Application of WordPress platform
* |mproved unique users across all publishing brand sites

= Swag Mukerji appointed to Board as Chief Financial Officer

® The fall in high margin advertising revenues will result in a 2017 profit reduction which is expected to reverse in 2018 as the
strategy to address the industry trend by monetising content and expertise materialises




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT *
Dear Shareholder

In last year's Chairman’s Statement, | referred to Centaur’s
transformation pregramme and | am pleased to report 2
year of further encouraging progress. The investment made
in the last three years in our platform infrastructure has
tmproved our operational capahilities and as a result we
have seen further good growth in our digitat offering and a
strengtheming of aur teading brands.

The industry-wide headwinds of falling advertising
expenditure, especially in relation to print, continued in 2016
and these acceterated as a resull of uncertainty introduced by
the EU referendum. Centaur reacted promptly by addressing
our actual and planned cost base to save £2m of casts,

The reduction in print advertising had a negative impact
on Group profit margins due to the high drop through’

of this revenue stream. This has turther reinforced our
deterrmination to reduce a3 far as possible our reliance on
advertising revenues, whilst focusing our efforts on those
sectors that offer atiracltive long-term growth and profit
opportunity.

We continue to seek carefully targeted acquisitions in
these pricrity sectors and we were pleased to acquire
Oystercatchers, a specialist marketing consu(tancy, in
September. Jystercatchers is already having a positive
impact across the business as a whole. It has an excellent
roster of clients, as well as talented management. Together
with Econsultancy ang Centaur’s other marketing assets,
Oystercatchers enhances our Group-wide marketing
services capabilities, offering opportunities for us to cross-
sell services to a weder client base as well as a broader
geography.

The Board believes that the Home Interest portfolio is no
fonger core to Centaur's B2B focus and that as a distinct
business unit, it will accelerate its growth under more aiigned
ownership. Accordingly. during 2017 we have commenced a
process to setl this portiol:o.

The Board 1s confident that the Group is headed firmly in the
right direction and the strengthening of the management
team in 2016 will ensure this remams the case. Centaur has
a number of leading brands, the value of which wili become
increasingly apparent over time.

Results and dividend

In 2016, Centaur's underlying' revenues were up 2% ta
£71.3m, and up 3% to £72.5m an a reported basis. Adjusted
operating profit? declined by 13% to £9.1m, and adjusted?
dituted earnings per share fell by 15% to

4.5 pence ¢

in tight of this performance, the Board 1s recommending a
final dividend of 1.5 pence per share. to give an unchanged
total dividend for the year of 3.0 pence per share.

Governance

Centaur remains fully committed to the highest standards

of corporate governance, and the Board takes very seriously
its duties to operate wath itegrity, transparency and clear
accountability. It atso pays close attention te understanding
and managing risk. Detail of what this means in practice,
including the Board's oversight of the order to cash cycle
following the implementation of a new accounting system in
the second half of 2015, for the Board and its Committees, 1s
contained within the Governance section of the annual report.

Board changes

Qur Semor Independent Director, Chais Satterthwaite,

stepped down during 2076 after 9 years as a Non-Executive

Director of the Group. Chris's commitment and contribution

to Centaur were outstanding, and | would like to thank him

on behalf of everyone at Centaur for his wise counsel over the

years. .

Chris was succeeded as Senior Independent Director by
William Eccteshare whe is Chairman and CEO of Clear
Channel International. William joined the Board on | Jjuly
2016 and his experience in the media industry wili be of great
benefit to Centaur going forward.

We were very pleased to appoint Swag Mukerji as Chief
Financial Officer and 1o the Baard sn October 2014,

Previously Swag had a number of senior finance and general
management rales with bath blue chip FMCG companies

and private equity backed businesses, Swag replaced Mark
Kerswelt who resigned as Group Finance Directer in July 2014
after five years with the Group. | am delighted to welcame
William and Swag lo the Group.

2014 has been a year of steady pragress despite a more
challenging trading background. | would irke to extend
my thanks ta everyane in the Group for working sa hard to
achieve this.

Ron Sandler
Chairman
28 March 2017

& On a reported basis the Group made an operating logs of £3.9m
[2015. loss of £4.7m}. This included a non-cash charge in retation
to an impairment of goodwill of £7.2m (2015: £11.9m].and an
addiional, separately reporied charge bor impairment of trade
receivables of £1.8m (2015 E£nidl. Oiluted EPS 15 13.8] pence (2015
14.8) pencB"




PERFORMANCE REPORT

' STRATEGIC REPORT )
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT
Overview
"We 've delivered results for the year in line with expectations despite contmuing headwinds in the advertising market.

We achieved these results whilst managing significant change in the business, as we repasition Centaur for the future.
We have made good progress with our revenue mix, with digital increasing to 41% of total revenues

Whilst the state of the advertising rarket continues to present us with near term challenges in some of our portiotio, we
expect increasing digital subscription revenues to benefit performance in future years. We are conlident that our strategy of
converting non-paying readers inte paying customers is building long term value for our shareholders.”

Andria Vidler, CEQ

Despite a challenging marketplace, we are pleased to report a year of progress. The investments made over the past three
years in our infrastructure have improved our operalional capabilities. As a resull, we have seen further gaod growth in our
digital offering and a strengthening of our leading brands.

The challenging trading environment, particularly in relation to print accelerated in the run up to the EU referendum. Centaur
reacted promptly, by saving and aveiding £2m of costs.

The fall in high margin advertising revenues will inevitably result in a short-term profit reduction. However cur strategy is to
address this industry trend by monetising our content and expertise. The growth of our digital premium content demonstrates
progress in this strategy and we are confident that this will benefit our financial performance in the medium term.

We constantly assess opportunities to the Group's portfolio around our B2B portlolio and continue to seek acquisitions that
enhance our offer to our customers. In September, we acquired Oystercatchers, a speciatist marketing consultancy, which is
already adding value.

Current trading and outlook

We have delivered results for 2016 1n line with expectations, despite a strong headwind in the advertising market. We achieved
these results whilst managing further significant changes in the business.

in the tirst months of the current financial year, the advertising market remains chailenging. We are therefore committed to
focusing even harder on building digital subscriptiens and de-emphasising our print revenues.

As we enter the next chapter in reshaping Centaur, the investment we are making into aur digital products and improved
overall revenue rmx will increasingly enhance performance going forward. We remain confident that our strategy i1s building
long-term value for our shareholders.

Resutts and dividend

Revenues for the year ended 31 Decernber 2016 were £72.5m, with underlying' revenue growth of 2% [reported revenue
growth of 3%l, driven principally by growth in drgital premium content and live events. Adjusted operating profits? for the same
penod were £9.1m {2015: £10.5m], with an adyusted operating profit margin of 12.6% {2075: ¥4.9%]. On a reported basis the
Group made an operating loss of £3.9m [2015: loss of £4.7mi, driven by a non-cash charge in retation to an impairment of
goodwill, an additional, separately reported charge relating to an impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m {20135, £nil) and an
exceptionat restructuning charge of £1.2m (2015: £0.7m]. Diluted EPS was (3.8] pence (2015: (4.8 pencel.




Net debtS at 31 December was £14.1m {2015: £17.9m, reftecting a very signiticant improvement in cash conversioné
throughout 2016 at 153% {2015: 31%,

In 2016 our digital premium content revenues grew by 19% and our total digital and live events révenues accounted for 84% of
Group revenues (2015: 78%).

We responded to the decline in advertising by inihiating a pragramme of restructuring and cost reduction across centrat
overheads as wel| as those parts of the business that remain advertising dependent. These initiatives were completed in the

second half of 2014 and delivered annualised savings of £2m. We continue to focus on our costs during the current year.

In light of this performance, the Board is recommending & final dividend of 1.5 pence per share. te give an unchanged total
dividend for the year of 3.0 pence per share.

Group Operating Review

Revenues and operating results for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are set out below.

2014 2015 Reported grawth Underlying growth'
€m £m » %
Revenue 725 705 3% 2%
Operating lass {3.91 2] 7%
Operating margin . (5.4)% (6.71%
Adjusted operating profit? 2.1 105 3%
Adjusted operating margin? 12.6% 14.9%

Also summarised on the same basis as above are the trends across the Group's three care revenue categories: premium
content, live events and adverlsing.

2016 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth’
Em Em % %
Premium contemt 20.8 19.9 5% 5%
Live events 30.7 272 13% 10%
Advertising 20.2 225 10J% (101%
Other 08 0¢ 1% %
Total revenues 725 70.5 3% %

On an underlying® basis, digital premiuvm content revenues grew by 19% to £17.3m (2015: £14.5m| and total premium content
revenues grew by 5%, with good momentum across the Group's digital subscriptien products, including Celebnity Inteiligence.
Fashion & Beatty Momitor and Econsultancy.

Reported live events revenues reflect the acquisition of Oystercatchers in 2016 and the biennial AMS event in 2016, Adjusted
for these items. underlying' revenues grew by 10%, reflecting further strong performances from the targer events in the
Group, offset by weakness in smaller, more spensorship-dependent events. Exhibition revenues contributed £15.3m (2015:
£13.5mi to underlying' live events revenues in 2016.

Totat advertising revenues declined by 10%, with a weakening ahead of the UK's EU referendum. Whthin this, digital revenues
were down 3%, while print advertising declined by 20%. This weakness accelerated through the year, with total advertising
revenues lalling by % in the first hall and 13% in the second half, as compared to 2015.

Deferred revenusas at 31 December 2014 of £156.9m were in line with the same ime lasd year (2015: £17.0m]. Growth in
digitat and live events deferred revenues has been offset by & decline in print delerred revenue and timing differences around
INWOIENG.




PERFORMANCE REPORT

Adjusted operating profits? of £9.1m {2015- £18.5m) declined by £1.4m, reflectihg strong performances in Marketing and Home
interest offset by a decline in advertising revenues and an increase In commercial investment  The faill in adjusted operating
profit? margins to 12.6% {2015 14.9%) reflects these trends with a high level of operational gearing attached to advertising
revenues. After adjusting items, the Group made an operating loss of £3.9m (2015 £4.7m|, primarily driven by a non-cash
impairment of goodwill in the Financial Services sector [2015: Professional sector), an additional, separately reported charge
in relation to the imparment of trade recewables of £1.8m (2015: Enill and exceptional restructuning cosis of £1.2m (2015
£0.7mi.

Significant progress has been made on reducing recevables and coltecting cash during the year. with recevables falling to
£14.6m from £20.6rm in December 2015 [and £22 4m in March 2016). The rate of cash conversian® was 153% [2015: 31%l
dreving a reduction of net debt® 1o £14.1m at the end of December 2016 (2015 £17 9m). Leverage [net debt® to adjusted
EBITDA" at 31 December 2016 was 1.1 times [2015- 1.3 times), and 1 0 times excluding the impact of Oystercatchers.

Review of operations

Centaur has evalved from its controlled circulation advertising legacy te a more focused, digitally aligned group. It now ofters
market insight, data, adwice, consultancy and events that enable businesses 1o optimise their performance. By using the skills,
data, communities and urigue market knowledge from our publishing hentage we are increasingly producing ang distributing
thought leadership, specialist content and effective online tools. Together with the bespoke marketing solutions thal leverage
our deep relationships, these products and services are highly valued and are increasingly monetised by direct sale to our
custamers, rather than being supported by advertising revenue.

Despite market challenges, we have benefited from good progress with a nurnber of our initiatives:

* All publishing sites are now functioning on a comman, fully-responsive digital platform

» DoubleClick For Publishers’ rolled out across all publishing sites te enable better insight and use of available inventory as
well as programmatic products to ensure inventory is being sold across all available segments

» Re-energised legacy brands, with improved product offering enabling our teams to begin new conversations with clients,
in turn leading to stronger partner-client relationships around conlent marketing

» Sales teams mostly operating an the same CRM system, enabling each portfolio to identify key account managers who
could facilitate broader conversations across the Group

In respect of our four market segments, 69% of Group revenues are weighted towards the Marketing and Professional
segments, with Financial Services and Home Interest accounting for the remainder.

Across each of these segments we are pursuing common operational strategies that.

« Put our custormers at the heart of what we do by evolving the brands they trust and developing new products that
significantly enhance to their performance

« Accelarate our digital growth and reduce our exposure to print advertising

 Improve customer experience in every contact with the Group, ensuring high customer satisfaction and a business
partnership relationship

« Increase agility, co-operation and efficiency across all of our operations

7 Refer to note 1{b) ta the financial statements lor exptanation and reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA




Portfolio Review *
Marketing

This segment includes alt of the Group's brands that serve marketing and creative professians in key market sectors, including
Ecensultancy, Marketing Week, Festival of Marketing, Celebrity Intelligence. Fashion & Beauty Monitor, Design Week, Creative
Review and Oystercatchers.

Driving digital innovation has been the key focus for the segment during 2016 with around 20% of its underlying revenue
growth coming from new product development. Marketing Week, in conjunction with Econsultancy. launched its first digital
Etearning course [the Mini MBA in Marketing) as part of developing a Centaur-wide online classroom platform to increase both
public and corporate training revenue streams.

Marketing Week, alongside Creative Review and Design Week, has also introduced new specialist content including career
development and leadership seminars which proved popular and has enabled them to launch new paid-for products. Due
to the success of Marketing Week s digital offering we have been able to accelerate the shift away from print-based revenue
strearns. Marketing Week reduced the trequency of its print magazme 1ssues in 2016 and will continue this shift in 2017.

Focused on connecting rnedia agencies and brands with data, news, events and content, Fashion & Beauty Monitor and
Celebrity Intelligence both improved their performance by introducing market insight and research reports. During 2017, the
incorporation of real-time data feeds will enabie greater automation and cost reduction, and improve the product offering and
market competitiveness,

Econsultancy performed well in 2016 with 25% growth in subscriptian revenues which now represent 46% (2015: 4%l of

its total revenues. Our sales and content teams have now been realigned an a core sector basis to build deeper customer-
focused relationships through enterprise partnerships, tallored marketing and more sector specific content. Ecansuitancy
also launched an ontine classroom in response to market demand for custornised capability and on-demand solutions. This
innovation will enable increased yields as part of its new premium subscription offering.

While Oystercatchers was only part of Centaur for the final quarter, its strong performance in 2616 confirms the reasons for its
acquisition. Its expanded offering covers five disciplines of consultancy, predominantly focused around building more effective
agency/client relationships: ways of working, agency evatuation, marketing model recommendation, training and pitches.

This expansion has enabled it to atiract a pewerful client partfolio fincluding Coca Cola, EY, Sainsbury’s. TSB and Royal

Maitl. In addition, its Marketing Excellence Training programme was named the UK's most acclaimed by TMT News in 2016.
Oystercatchers, with its agency and consulting heritage, and Econsuitancy, with its digital performance and training heritage,
naturally form a strong combination, It 1s envisaged that Oystercatchers’ senior client relationships will bring wider benefits to
Centaur as a whole.

The Marketing segment has made significant progress, developing deep client relationships in order to sell muitiple products
across multiple brands. Revenues from the lop 20 clients grew by 60% year on year, with three clients {2015 one client)
delivering more than £0.5m of revenue through a combination of advertising, prermium content and live events.




PERFORMANCE REPORT

Operating Performance '
2014 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth'
tm €m % %
Revenue 29.7 270 10% &%
Operating profit 0.9 2.2 {59]%
Operating margin 3.0% 8.1%
Adjusted operating profit? 4.2 4.1 %
Adjusted operating margin? 14.1% 15.2%

There was good momentum across both digital premium content and live events revenues offset by 2 7% dacline in advertising
revenues. Around 45% of this segment’s revenues are derved from premium content, with 33% from live events and 22% from
advertising. Oystercatchers contributed to reported revenue growth of 10% in this segment, with growth on an underlying’
basis of 6%.

Digital premium content revenues grew by 13% mn 2016, contributing £12.4m (42%i to reported revenues of £29.7m (2015:
£11.0m. 41%]. The sector experienced volatility in advertising revenues consistent with other parts of the Group, which
finished the year 7% down vs prior year.

Festwal of Marketing ran in November 2016 and reported revenues of £2.1m, in line with the 2015 edition of this event.
Delegate and table revenues grew by 21%, offsetting the 9% decline in sponsorship income. The event featured around 250
speakers and mere than 150 hours of content. Natable speakers included Apple founder Steve Wozniak and WPP’s Sir Martn
Sorrell. Customer satisfaction scores INPS] have increased by 24 points year on year. Festival of Marketingis the only global
event in its sector to have brand marketers now comprise over 60% of its customer base (competitors such as Cannes Lions
and Advertising Week have 10-15%].

The decline in adjusted operating profits? and margin reflects the impact of weaker advertising revenues, investment

into content and commercial teams and a higher depreciation charge reflecting the ongoing investment into the digital
ptatforms across the Marketing segment. Reported operaling profits were impacted by earn-oul charges and relating to the
Oystercatchers acquisition of £0.6rm (2015: Enil), an additional, separately reported charge relating to the impairment of trade
recewvables of £0.8m {2015: Enll and exceptional operating expenses of £0.4m (2015: £0.1m].

Outlook: this segment is expected to exhibit strong growth into 2017 driven by recurring digital premium content revenues and
synergies arising from the Oystercatchers integration,

Professional

The Professional segment includes four subsidiary markets: Legal, Engineering. HR and Travel & Meetings, with around 0%
of its revenue coming from live events. The Legal portfolio includes the print, digitat and live event activities associated with
The Lawyer and Clean Energy Pipeline. The principal assets in the segment are exhibitions, with supporting digital and print
assets. Within the Engineering portfolio are The Engineer and Subcon, an exhibition thal serves the sub-contractor industry.
The HR portfolio includes FEM, Employee Benefits and Employee Benefits Live, and Travel & Meetings includes two exhibitions
serving the Business Travel and Meetings markets.

The development of The Lawyer s content strategy continued to progress successfully, and in May we moved The Lawyers
premium content behind a pay wall, leaving recruitment and a minority of editorial content free to view. This s a significant
development for The Lawyer brand following 25 years as a controlled circulation magazine which has now given The Lawyer
a platform with reach, international apparturuty and the ability to scale new prernium content and data. The majority of top
50 UK law firms purchased a subscription to The Lawyer s premium content within the first six weeks of its launch. This
developrment required investment during H1, but since 1aunch has had a strong uptake and prermium content revenue growth
over the year was 48%.

The Lawyer Marke! Reports experienced impressive growth in 2016 with an increase in revenue of 65% year on year. A lotal
of 14 reports were published in 2016 including the launch of the Globat 200, a unigue report containing the strateqgy, capability
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and performance of the largest 200 {aw firrhs in the world ranked by their global revenues.

Behind the TheLawyercom and The Lawyer Market Reparts is an experienced content and research team which meticulously
researches its market, gathers insight and uses its experience to layer trend analysis and comment onto data. Thisis a
respected and highly-skilled team which understands the key take-outs and summaries that our customers want.

There is also a dedicated commeraial tearn which account manages the top law firms to ensure that they get the best aut of
our reports service and data. enabling the business to sell additional products and drive higher renewal rates,

Across the Prolessional segment, the remaining assets are principally event based and performed well. Collectively,
underlying’ growth in exhibitions revenue was 19% [13% on a reported basis)

At The Engineer, the focus has been on the ongoing development of its digital products and online audience, Monthly page
views have grown, with unique visitars up 8% year on year, and an increase tn digital marketing solutions revenues af 4%.
Good progress was made with developing brand-led events and the ‘Collaborate to Innovate’ conference was launched, 2
unigue awards/conference event in its marketplace.

Subcon pertormed well with 6% visitor growth and strong underlying’ revenue growth {excluding the biennial impact of AMS]
supported by the launch of three new supplier zones and a focus on strengthening repeat business, along with 2 dedicated
buyers programme.

Revenues at the Business Travet Show grew for the fifth successive year, up 32% from £1.7m to £2.3m. The year also saw the
launch of the inaugural Business Travel Summit Amsterdarm and a one-day London Business Travel Summit. Exhibitor and
visitor satisfaction ratings continued to exceed industry benchmark standards, and wsitor numbers rose by 6%, following a
24% rise in 2015.

Operating Performance
2014 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth!
£m £m % %
Revenue 20.2 19.7 3% 5%
Operating profit / (loss] 1.0 9.9 {116{%
Operating margin 5.0% 150.31%
Adjusted operating profit? 21 22 {51%
Adjusted operating margin? 10.4% 11.2%

The broad revenue split across the segment i 40% live events, 30% advertising and 10% prermium content.

Legal revenues of £7.7m were 4% higher than last year, reflecting good grewth in premium content revenyes, offset by weaker
advertising and live events revenues. Deferred revenues in the Legal portfolio were £0.9m at 31 December 2015, compared to
£0.8m at the same time last year.

The Engineering portfolio reported revenues of £3.2m (2015: £3.6m). Adjusted for the absence of the biennial AMS event,
underlying' revenues were flat. The HR portiotio reported revenues of £3.9m [2015: £4.6m] with ongoing weakness across all
revenue streams. The Meetings Show continued to develop well in its fourth edition, but despite good revenue growth it 1s nol
yet achieving a satisfactory profit margin, Overall, the Travel & Meetings portfolic reported revenues of £5.4m (2015: £4.1m).

The dectine i1 adjusted operating margins from 11.2% to 10.4% reflects weaker advertising revenues across the Legal, HR and
Engineering portiolios with high drop through 1o profit, and the cost of strengthening the Legal portfolio’s premium content
offering. The segment saw a return to operating profitability following a non-cash charge relating to impairment of goodwill
during 2015.

Outlook: this segment remains mixed, however it has encouraging opportunities acress both The Lawyerand the extiition
brands, particularly Business Travel which are all expected 10 add to the Group's recurring revenue streams through growing
exhibition and digital subscription revenues.

11



PERFORMANCE REPORT

Financial Services

Serving the retail financial services industry, this segment includes Money Marketing, Fund Strategy, Mortgage Strategy.
Corporate Advisor, Taxbriefs, Headline Money and Platforum.

Platforum continued to build o its reputation as a key reference pont for asset managers, life companies and platforms
on retail investrnent distribution. its research was referenced in earmings reports by industry leaders including Aegon and
Hargreaves Lansdown. New research areas introduced in 2016 included the changing market for discrehionary managed
portfolius on platforms. and the rise of active and passive ETFs ['exchange-traded funds’] as well as digital benchmarking.

importantly. Platforum completed its transition to a subscriptions research business resulting in increased digital revenues
of 123% (down 9% overall after accounting for the cessation of prnt revenues). Platforum deferred income increased 77%,
demenstrating a strong pipeline of future subscription revenues. A key driver of growth in 2016 was Platforum’s series of
reporis on European Fund Distribulion which, due 1o a change in structure, now offer more in-depth analysis to customers.
On thé events front, the European Fund Distribution and DC2 events, and the taunch of the Money Marketing Interactive
Conference, were particular highlights.

Beyond Platforumn, the Financial Services segment continued to offer a full annual calendar of events for all sectors of the
financial services community ineluding large scale multi-streamed events, awards which celebrate the best of the industry
and exclusive invitation-only summits for industry leaders. We successfully leveraged the power and reach af the brands to
develop sponsorship packages and used a central delegate sates team to ensure that we had the right calibre and votume of
ViPs in attendance to give sponsors value and return an ther investment.

2016 saw a marked improvement in customer satisfaction levels due to high quality engagement and far-reaching marketing
and social media activity which has increased brand awareness for print and digital content platforms, as weli as the

transitioning of Corporate Advisor from print to digital format.

Operating Performance

2016 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth'
€m £m % %
Revenue 9.7 12.0 [191% (191%
Operating (loss) / profit 17.2) 1.5 {580)%
Qperating margin (74.21% 12.5%
Adjusted operating profit? 0.5 2.1 (7%
Adjusted operating margin? 8.2% 17.5%

This segment’s revenues remain reliant on advertising, at 44% of the revenue mix, with 33% from prermum content and 23%
from live events. Reflecting the wider economic enwronment, advertising revenues of £4.2m [2015: £5.6m} declined by 25%
year gn year, wilh weakness being seen across both print and digitat formats. The second half of the year was particularly
volatile, with advertising revenues 35% below the same period last year. This weakness in advertising revenues masked strong
growth in digital premium content revenues, aided by Platforum’s transition from a report-based revenue stream to a digital
subscription model.

Reflecting the weaker outlook in earnings relating to print and advertising 2arnings, a non-cash impairment of goodwill of
£7.2m (2015: Enil) has been recorded in operating expenses, which is presented as an adjusting item. Digital premium content
growth was offset by declines in print formats, leading to a fall in total premium content revenues of 15%. This segment’s

live events revenues depend on sponsorship and were impacted by the general fall in advertising spend, and as such were
disappointing, with reported revenues of £2.2m, £0.2m tower than 2015. The decline in adjusted operating profit margins
principally reflects the impact of high levels of operational gearing attached to weaker advertising revenues.

OQutlook: despite the weakness reported during 2016, Financial Services has strong brands, premium content and an
increasingly agile delivery platform. Changes in the sector grising from the UK's EU referendum result present a clear
opportunity for the segment.
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Home Interest

Homebuitding & Renovating { HB& R} is the markel-leading brand for delivering information and trusted advice for self-build
projects and renovation work. The Home Interest segment also includes the live events and publishing assets across the
Homebuilding & Renovating. Real Homes and Period Living brands.

This market segment has undergane a sigmificant transformation over the last three years, delivering revenue CAGR of 9%, It
is now the UK's leading provider of homebuilding and renovating infermation and boasts unrivalled scale and reach.

Originally separated between exhibitions and magazines, it now has a single management team that delivers a mulli-channel
portfotio that prowides vital information and tools o its audience. The segment has 7 market leading exhibitions that are
supported by print and digital assets. The integration of the three brands with a single commercial and content team has
created a virtuous circle, with each brand driing additional revenue for portfelio products and services.

The investment griority for HB&R in 2016 was to grow its exhibitions business by attracting additional high-value visitors
and guatity exhibitors. The brand added mare content stages and advice centres at exhibitions and implemented strategic
marketing campaigns to attract more of its target audience. This marketing strategy resulted in a 12% increase in exhibitors
and 9% increase in visitors, as well as a record 16% revenue growth and 70% re-book rate,

Data and subscriptions were also a focus in 2016. The HB&R brand has experienced a significant increase in digital
engagement and its cambined digital and print subseription offering. with a 5% increase in annual subscribers and 11%
increase on our digital-only services. Since 2015, onbine advertising revenues and data-driven campaigns have increased by
28%, and mobste traftic has increased by 23%. Registrations for HB&R's ‘Build Cost Calcutator’, an online tool that enables
users 1o calculate the cost of building their own home, grew by 19% year on year.

Operating Performance

2014 2015 Reported growth Underlying growth'
£m £m % %
Revenue 12.9 11.8 9% 9%
Operating profit 1.4 +5 (1%
Operating margin 10.9% 12.7%
Adjusted operating profit? 2.2 2 5%,
Adjusted operating margin? 17.1% 17.8%

This segment continues to perform strongly. The biroad revenue split across the segment is 50% live events, 30% advertising
and 20% premium content, The live events portfolio has been consolidated around the HE& R brand and continues to
demanstrate good mementum, with 2016 live events revenues 14% higher than 2015, Forward bookings for the Homebuilding
& Renovaling exhibrtions are 10% ahead of the same period last year. Advertising revenues in this sector were resitient, with
an increase of {4% year on year.

Adjusted operating profits? for the year were 5% higher than the £2.1m reported in 2015, with adjusted? operating margins
at 17.1% {2015: 17.8%]. This skight reduction in margin reflects the impact of higher depreciation and amortisation charges
resulting from commercial investment.

Outlaok: positive, as this busmess is in goad shape to capitalise on strong brands and lake advantage of increased dermand
around renovation and setf-build.

The Board of Centaur believe that the Home Interest portfolio 15 no longer core to the Group’s B2B tocus and that as a distinct
business unit, it will accelerate its growth under mare aligned ownership. Accordingly, we have commenced a pracess to sell
the business.
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Peop{e . .

In order to maximise Cemtaur’s potential the business needs a strong and talented team. In 2016 we restructured aur senior
team to posttion the business more strongly going forward. Linda Sruth - whao was a commercial consultant to Centaur

n 2014 - joined us as Chief Operating Officer and Jane Turner joined us fo head up the Marketing portiobio  Both bring a
wealth of media-based managernent skills with them Suki Thompson, one of the founders of Oystercatchers also joined the
Executive Committee and Swag Mukerp, our new Chief Financial Officer, has replaced Mark Kerswell. | am detighted to have
their callective experience on our leadership team.

This was the first full year of activity for the Development Board, a diverse team of employees selected for their commitment
to Centaur's values whose remit is to change Centaur for good’, acting as a cormimunication channel between our wider
workforce and the Executive Committee. The Development Board's leedback initiated a range of engaging initiatives such as
our ‘Skitis and Support’ programme of internal traimng, an maugural ‘Wellness Week' and a programme of social events and
activbies.

We adopt a proactive approach to diversity, according to factors including but not limited to gender, ethnicity, professional
experience, nationality and age. In 2016, our male to fernale ratio was fairly balanced with an overall split of 59% women

to 41% men and we have a particularly strong represeniation of women at a senior levet. Two oul of six [33%] of our Board
members are female, and five out of seven [71%) of our Executive Cornmittee are female. We proudly support flexible working
opportunities, and 9% of staff are employed on a part-time basis.

The talent of some of our people has also received external acknowledgement. At the 2016 British Media Awards, Faye Belt,
ane of our Econsultancy team, won the Rising Star Award, while the Content Sales Team at The Profile Group and Festival of
Marketing team both made the podium. Marketing Week's editor Russell Parsons won the New Editor of the Year award at
The British Saciety of Magazine Editars Awards, and Employee Benefits won Pension/Benefits Publication of the Year at the
Willis Towers Watson Media Awards,

This year's charity spansarship, Childline, was a great success. Collections at our events raised £101.947. in addition to 3
£8.454 contribution from staff,

I would like to thank every member of the Centaur team for their hard work and commitment to the transformation of our
business.

Summary

Centaur’s heritage in creating market leading publishing brands has given us a deep understanding of the sectors in which
we operate. We are committed to providing the best solutions far our customers, helping them optimise the growth of their
businesses. As our progress in 2016 shows, we are investing in and evolving our leading brands to deliver this outcome to our
customners as well as improving the quality and growth of our earnings for our shareholders.

in the first months of the current financial year, the advertising market has shown no signs of recovering. We are therefore
acceleraling our strategy to de-emphasise our print revenues in favour of digital subscriptions and impraving accessibility to
our digital content, whilst reducing the frequency of our print publications.

As we enter the next chapter in reshaping Centaur, the investment we are making inte our digital preducts and improved
overall revenue mix will increasingly enhance performance gaing forward. We remain confident that our strategy is building
{ong-term value for our shareholders.

Andria Vidler
Chief Executive Officer
28 March 2017
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STRATEGY

Centaur Media offers professionals products and services that accelerate their business perfarmance. Our core objective 1s to
detiver suslainable growth in revenues, profits and cash flow, and in turn increase shareholder value. To achreve this we have
set out four strategic prionties These are set oyt betow alongside the initiatives we are taking to deliver these, the assaciated
risks and the metrics against which we measure progress internally, certain of which contain other KPIs as set out on page 17.
See pages 23 to 26 for a detailed explanation of the Group's principal risks.

PRIORITY

ala sustainahte
han prohits and
/s with high

quality, recurring revenue

streams and ar eticient
and scalable nperaling
rrodel

To creste products and
services that are both
Innovative and market-
lecading, backed by
sirang digitat and events

exparise

To be a united team af
entrepreneurial, muit.-
skilled profassionais

Business Model

ACTIONS

The Group focuses on core
markets enabling a deeper
understanding and connection
with the commuruty

The Group 15 teveraging Hs
expertise across live events

and digital premium content to
grow these recurnng revenue
streams. The central expert
teams and Group functions
provide bdth econormues of scale
and benefils of shared best
practice

The focus across our core
markets and the creation of
expert {eams enable the Group
to prioritise investment and to
create a strong pipeline of new
product oflerings

Creation ot a One Centaur
Media’ culture. Alignment
of incentive plans and Link to
portfolio and Group metnics

KEY RISKS

» Replication of pur products by
competitors, potentially at a
reduced cost for customers

» Faillure to manage change
effectively exacerbates staff
recruitment and retention
difficulties, leading 10 loss of key
senior staff

» Econormic and political factors
altecting the stability of the UK
markel and our key market sectors
reduce demand for our products

»

Shrinking revenues from print
advertising and sales of print
products are not replaced

Serious systems failure or breach
of network securily controls
causes [oss of infarmation or
operational disruption, such as the
unavailability of our digital products

Serious physical incident at a live
event causes injury. death or other
signiticant damage, 1mpacting
directly an revenue and our
reputalion

»

Reptication of our products by
competitors, potentially at a
reduced cost for customers

Shrinking revenyes from print
advertising and sales of print
products are not replaced

*

Economic and political factors
affecting the stability of the UK
rmarket and our key markel sectors
reduce demand for our products

Faiture to manage change effectively
exacerbates staff recruitment and
retention dilficulbes. leading to loss
of key senior statf

METRICS

*Industry recognition
s Client engagement

* Market share

* Ingreasing share of live
evenls and presmiurm content
revenues

» Growth in subscriptign
inveiced coniract values

« Adjusted operating margin

= Revenye per employee

» Successful launches
measured against return on
investment, revenues and
operating margin

* Markel share

« Staff retention and
engagement

The Group's activities are categerised across four market segments: Marketing, Professional, Financial Services and Home
Interest. These actwities are supported by expert teams across digital praduct development, production, live events and
exhibition operations, data, research and client services.
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The Group generdtes revenues from three primary revenue sources premium content, live events and advertising.
® Prermiumn content revenues include-

+ Subscriptions: These are the fees that customers pay {o receive access to the Group’s information through online access
to varous databases or through requtar delivery of soft copy research or hard copy magazines. Subscription revenue ss
recagnised over the period of the subscription.

= Copy sales: These are generated primarily across the Group's Home Interest print titles. Homebuilding & Renovating,
Real Homes and Period Living, and selectively across the Group's business magazines, including Creative Review. This
area also covers the sale of market reports and other one-off sales of products  Revenues are recogrised in line with the
publication schedule for these products. '

wLive events revenues are all recogmised when the event is held. These include:

+ Exhibitor revenues: This represents space sold at our events enabling our customers to raise awareness and sell their
products and services. Exhibiting at one of our events 1s an ideal way for our customers to forge new relationships
through face-to-face meetings and to showcase their products.,

+ Sponsorship revenues: Each of our events has partners that want to be associated with it and pay to place brand
advertising across the event. Through their spensorship of our events, our partners can create, develop and increase
brand awareness, furthering their credibility within a target audience and enabling them to develop contacts and exposure
for their business.

« Attendee revenues: Qur consumer-focused exhibitions, Festival of Marketing and award events all charge a fee for
attendees to access the event. The Group also generates revenues from sales of tables to companies and individuals
attending the various industry awards evenings. Some award events also generate revenues from paid-for award entries.

« Training revenues: The Group provides marketing training services to customers in the UK and overseas through the
Econsultancy and Oystercatchers businesses. These services are detivered through public training courses and through
the delivery of bespoke services to clients. The revenues are recognised when the training is delivered.

mAdvertising revenues represent the fees that customers pay to place an advertisemant through one or more of the Group's
delivery channels, either online, in print or on mobile. There are products where advertising i1s the main driver and others
where advertising is a supplemnental earnings stream. This includes display. classified, sponsored content, content marketing,
native advertising and other pubtication-based marketing solutions, across the delivery platforms, Revenue is recognised on
publication.

We build a deeper understanding of the commerciat opportunities across each market through an unremitting focus on our
markets and audience. We know that our customers want flexibte cantent that works seamlessly across mulliple platforms.
By leveraging this market insight and understanding of our custemer requirements we are able to offer a higher-value
customer proposition. This is delivered in whichever format our clients want, whether that is in print, digital or as a live event.

"Each market segment has clear growth plans focused on new digital products, new revenue streams, multi-piatform content
and clear competitor differentials.

Supporting each of these markets, we have centralised expert teams across digital product development, production, live
events and exhibition operations, data, research and client services.

These teams provide the expertise and scale that atlows us to support the business efficiently. The expert teams also enable
us to manage our cost base effectively and to prioritise investment across the business.
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All areas of the business are supported by group functions including finance, HR, building services, legal and IT.

We regularly review our cost base and seek to maintain as flexible and scalable an operating modet as possible. outsourcing or
consolidating shared activtties where possible.

This structure creates the potential to scale opportunities that alongside undertying' revenue growth enables good progression
in adjusted? operating margins. it also creates the apportumity to effectively bolt on acquisitions to accelerate revenue and

margin growth.

While our business rernains primarily UK-focused, we aim to grow our presence in North America and the internationat reach
of our producls.

Key Performance Indicators

The Group has set out the following core financial metrics to measure our performance.

KP) " DESCRIPTION PERFORMANCE

Total revenues adjusted for the impact of acquisitions,  « 2014 +2% (2015 +4%)
disposals and event phasing

Adjusted operating margin’ Adjusted aperating profits? as a percentage of * 2016 13% (2015 15%I
revenues

Adjusted? diluted ERS Adjusted earnings attributabte to each share, + 2014. 4.5 pence (2015, 5.3 pence!
calculated on a dituted basis, as set out in more detail
n note 8 to the financial statements

Cash conversion® The percentage by which adjusted operating cash flow®  » 2014- 153% (2015 31%)
cavers adjusted operating profit?, as set oyt in the
Financial Review

- Development of recurrng raverue The percentage of total revenues derived from tive s Live events and premium cantent
sireams events ang premium content revenues accounted for 71% of total
2014 revenues (2015: 67%|

Return on nvestmert an The weremental cash flows generated from an » Relurn on investment on new
acquisitions and new preduct investment relative ta the total cash invesiment to product development in 2015 and
deve. t acquire or develop the assel 2014 exceeded internat benchmarks

The KPls are within the Board's expectations and the ongoing focus on these measures will support its successful strategy.
These indicators are discussed in more detail in the Chief Executive’s Review and in the Financial Review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW * )
Non-statutory measures

In these results we refer to ‘adjusted” and statutory results, as well as other non-GAAP performance measures. Adjusted
results are prepared to provide a more comparable indication of the Group's core business performance by removing the
impact of certain items including exceptional items (matenal and non-recurnngl, and volatile items predominantly relating
to investment activities and ather separately reparted items. Adjusted results exclude adjusting items 3s set out in the
Consolidated Income Statement and below, with further details given in notes 1(bl and 4 of the financial statements. In
addition, the Group also measures and presents performance in relation to varicus other non-GAAP measures, such as
underlying revenue growth. adjusted operaling cash flow, adjusted EBITDA and net debt.

Adjusted resuits are not intended to replace statulory results. These have been presented to provide users with additional
information and analysis of the Group's performance consistent with how the Board also monitors results. Further rationate
for each of the adjusting items used in these measures, as well as recanciliations to their statutory equivalents, can be found
in note 1{b] to the financial statements.

The Group’s activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore currency movements do not have a material impact on the
Group’s results.

Statutory loss before tax reconciles ta adjusted operating profit as foltows:

2016 2015
Note £m £im
Statutory loss before tax 14.41 15.8)
Adjusting items
Impairment of goodwill 9 7.2 19
Amgriisation of acquired imangible assets 10 2.3 22
Share-based payments 2% [0.1] - 07
Earn-oul consideration 13 0.5 01
Additional impairment of trade receivables [4 1.8 -
Exceptional operating costs 4 1.2 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets 4 - (0 4)
Exceptional finance costs & - 0.2
Adjusted profit before tax 8.6 28
Adjusted finance costs 5 0.5 0.7
Adjusted operating profit 2.1 10.5

Summary
Commentary on revenues angd operating resuits is set aut within the Chief Executive’s Report.

2016 was a challenging year, with tough trading conditions leading to a marked decline particularly in advertising revenues,
with a high drop through to profitability, and a reduced adjusted operating margin? of 13% 12015: 15%). We have rigorously
reviewed our cost base and have made significant progress in nght-sizing Group overhead expendtture.

The Group has made good progress in reducing its net debt’, which has fallen to £14.1m at the end of December 2016 {2015,
£17.9ml. The rate of cash conversion® was 153% [2015: 31%). Leverage [net debt® to adjusted EBITDA?] at 31 December 2016
was 1.1 times (2015 1.3 times), and 1.0 times excluding the impact of Oystercatchers.

In 2016, reflecting a reduced growth outlook i the Financial Services segment, the Group recogrised a non-cash wnpairment
charge of £7.2m against goodwilt. In 2015, an \mpairment charge of £11.9m was recogrised agamst goodwill in the
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Professional segment. During 2016, an addibional impairment of trade receivables of £1.8m (2015: Enil] was separately *
reported as an adjusting Mem, and excephignal restructuring costs of £1.2m {2015: £0 7m] resulting from the re-organisation of
senigr managernent and strategic corporate restructuring activities were incurred.

Revenues

Revenues in 2016 were £72.5m (2015 £70.5m). Underiying' trends, adjusting for the bienniat show, AMS, and the acquisition
of Oystercatchers. show growth of 2%. Further infarmation on the divisional revenue performance and the mix of revenues
across premiumn content, live events and advertising 1s inctuded in the Chief Executive’s Report.

Operating profit

Adjusted operating protits? for the year were £9.1m [2015: £10.5m], with an adjusted operating profit margin? of 12.4% (2015:
14.9%]|. Further information on the divisional adjusted operating profit performance is included in the Chief Executive’s Report.

Net adjusted? operating expenses were £63.4m [2015: £60.0m). Adjusted? employee related expenses in the year were £29.8m
{2015: £29.5m|, and the average number of permanent employees was 554 {2015: 5841, See below for discussion of items
impacting reporied operating losses for the year of £39m (2015: £4.7m).

Reported operating losses of £3.9m [2015: £4.7m| were impacted by the adjusting items detailed below.

Adjusting items

The Directors betieve that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share provide additionai useful information on the core
operational performance of the Group 'o shareholders, and review the results of the Group on an ad)usted basis internally.
Details of the Group's accounting policy in relation to adjusting items are shown in nate 1ibl to the hnancial statements.

Adjusting iterns generated a Loss before tax of £13.0m {2015: £15.4m}, which includes an impairment charge of £7.2m relating
to goodwill in the Financial Services segment {2015: £11.9m in the Professional segment].

Exceptional operating costs of £1,2m {2015: €0,7m] include staff-related restructuring costs of £0.9m {2015: £0.6m] which
principally relate to the reorganisation of the operational and senior management structure linked to the cost reduction
pragramme, and costs relating to specific corporate restructuring inibatwves of £0.3m [2015: £0.1m). Whilst similar costs have
been incurred previausly, such costs linked to the Group's transformation prograrmme are not expected to recur once this s
completed, and as such these are deemed to be exceptisnal in nature.

In addition, a separately reported charge for the impairment of trade receivables of £1.8r {2015- Enill has beer treated as

an adjusting item. Following the disappointing working capital perfarmance in 2045, and notwithstanding the return to
strong cash generation in 2014, there remains a legacy of debt which arose during a period of disruption during the second
hali of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 arising from the introduction of a new accounting platform during 2015. Whilst

the Group continues to make every effart in callecting all amounts due to it, gwen the extended age and magnitude of this
outstanding debt by year end, the Directors believe there 15 now increased uncertainty in being able to collect these aged
amounts and therefore consider these debts to be impaired. Substantial improvements to front-end billing and credit control
pracesses have been made during the course of the year and the Group continues to make good progress on collecting current
receivables and reducing the amount of days’ sales eutstanding [DSO’l. These have reduced to 79 days at 31 December 2014
[2015: 88 days). which is an improvement of 17 days since the peak in March 2016, The additionat charge of £1.8m (2015 £nil}
is considered to be significant to understanding current year performance, and has theretore been separately reported as an
adjusting item ta operating profit. In addition, a charge of £0.5m {2015 £0.6m) has been recarded in operating profit, which is
considered to be in line with histarical provisioning requirements.

Earn-aut casts of £0.4m {2015: £0.1mi relate to the earn-aut arrangement on the acquisition of Oystercatchers, which are
treated as a remynerabion expense through the statement of comprehensive income. In 2015 the earn-out charges of £0.1m
related to the acquisition of Venture Business Research. A gain on the dispasal of the trade and assets of Aidex of £0.4m arpse
in 2015,
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Other adjusting nerns incltde amortisation of acquired intangibte assets of £2.3m (2015 £2.2m] and a share-based payment
credit of £0.1m (2015: charge of £0.7m|.

Further analysis on these adjusting items is included in the Basis of Preparation section of notes 1(bl and 4 to the financial
statements.

Net finance costs

Adjusted net finance costs were £0.5m {2015: £0.7m]. The reduction in finance costs reflects lower net debt® during 2014
compared to 2015, Reparted net finance costs were £0.5m [2015: £0.9m], and in 2015 included exceptional unamortised facility
costs [£0.1m] and legal fees [£0.1m] associated with the re-financing of the Group's revalving credit facility in in that year.

Taxation

Atax charge of £1.0m {2015: £1.3ml has been recagnised for the year. The adjusled tax charge was €1.8m [2015: £1.9m] giving
an adjusted effective 1ax rate [compared to adjusted? profit before tax] of 20.9% (2015: 19.4%l. The Company's profits were
taxed in the UK at a blended rate of 20.0% [2015: 20.25%], with the fall in the main rate of UK Corporation tax being offset by
the impact of impact of overseas earmings taxed at different rates. On a reported basis, the etfective tax rate ot (22.71% {2015
(23.2)%) was impacted primarily by charges relating to the impairment of goodwill and other non-deductible expenses. See
note 7 for a reconciliation between the statutory and reported tax charge.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments in 2016 decreased to a credit of £0.1m (2015: charge of €0.7ml, as a result of lapses in the LTIP
schemes following changes in seniar management and performance under non-market performance conditions.

Earnings per share

The Group has delivered adjusted? diluted earnings per share for the year of 4.5p [2015: 5.3p). Losses per share for the year
were {3.8lp [2015: {4 B)p). Full details of the earnings per share calculatians can be found in note 8 to the financial statements.

Dividend

An interim dividend of 1.5p per share was paid in respect of the period January to June 2016 {January to June 2015: 1.5pj. A
final dividend in respect of the period July to December 2014 of 1.5p per share [July to December 2015: 1.5pl 1s proposed by the
Directors, giving & total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 3.0p (2015: 3.0pl. in line with 2015.

The final dividend i respect of the year is subject to sharehalder approval at the Annual General Meeting and. if approved, will
be paid on 26 May 2017 to all ordinary shareholders on the register at close of business on 12 May 2017.

Adjusted dividend cover in the year was 1.4 imes [2015: 1.8 times] and it is intended to mave above 2 times in the medium
term.

Cash Row

As set out below, net debtd has lallen to £14.1m from £17.9m at the end of December 2015 and the rate of cash conversion®
was 153% [2015. 31%). Trade recewables are steadily reducing and the rate of cash collection for invoices 1ssued in 201615
both satisfactory and steady. There was a £12.4m positive swing in working capital in 2016 compared to 2015, primarily driven
by a significant improvement in the callection of trade receivables following on from the disruption experienced during the
second half of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 from the accounting systern change. It is reassuring that the Group has
returned to higher levels of cash generation.
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2014 . 2015

) £m €m

Adjusted operating profit? %1 109
Depreciation and amortisation 33 30
Moavement in working capital 4.1 [6.9)
Capital expenditure 2.6} 3.3
Adjusted operating cash flow’ 13.9 a3
Cash impact of adjusting items 1.3] 10.5§
Taxation 1.3) 1.4
Interest and finance leases [UR] 0.9}
Dther 0.1 -
Free cash How 10.9 05
Repayment of ipan noles n.a -
Acquisitions 11.51 0]
Oisposal of trade and assels - 8.4
Share repurchases 0.2} -
Owidends paid to Company's shareholders (4.3 4.
Decrease / lincrease] in net debt 38 13.2)
Opening net debt [17.9] {14.71
Closing net debt (14.11 17.9)

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. It 15 defined as cash flow from operations excluding the
impact of adjusting items, which are defined above, and including capitat expenditure. The Directors use this measure to
assess the performance of the Group as it excludes volatile itemns not related to the core trading of the Group, and includes
the Group's management of capital expenditure. A recenciliation between cash flow from operations and adjusted operating
cash flow 15 shown in note 1lb] to the financial statements. The cash impact of adjusting items primarily related to exceptional
restructuring costs in bath years.

Acquisitions net af dispesals generated a cash outflow of £2.6m lincluding the repayment of loan notes in relation to the VBR
earn-out] in the year {2015 cash inflow of £0.3ml.

Finanting and bank covenants

On 8 fune 2015, the Group agreed a four year £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility, provided by R85 and Lloyds. This
facility runs te 31 August 2019. The principal financial covenants under the facility are: the ratio of net debt lo adjusted EBITDA?
shall not exceed 2.5-1, and the ratio of EBITDA 10 net finance charges shall not be less than 4'1. The Group remained within its
banking covenants and has good headrogm within its £25m banking facibilies.

Acquisition of Oystercatchers

0On 30 September 2014 the Group completed the purchase of the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP for a total
purchase price of £3.5m, inctuding contingent consideration of up to €1.2m. Thisis subject to the ongoing employment of
specific individuals and the business delivering sufficient earnings for the year ended 31 March 2017, and payable in the
second quarter of 2017 once the accounts have been finalised. initial consideration of £1.5m was paid on completion in cash
with £0 5 of Centaur Media Ple shares being issued to the vendors. The balance of £0.2m will became due an JQ September
207

Assets acquired mclude working capital balances of £0.1m, intangible assets compnsing customer caatracts, relationships
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and the brand name totalling £1.3m, with resulting goodwill recognised of £1 2m,
As the contingent consideration is dependent on the continued employment of tive key individuals of the Oystercatchers
business it 1s treated as a post-acquisinon employment expense within the statement of comprehensive income. An expense
of £0.6m has been recegnised as an adjusting item during 2014,

Batance sheet

A summary of the Group’s batance sheet as at 31 Decernber 2016 and 2015 is sel oul below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Goodwill and other intangible assets 88.8 964
Property, ptant and equipment 2.0 23
Deferred income [16.91 117.0)
Qther current assets and liabilities 7.5 127
Delerred taxation {0.2) 0.1)
Nat assets before net debt® 81.2 9.3
Net dabt® (14.1) (17.9)
Net assets 671 764

The main movements in the Group's balance sheet are a reduction of £7.6m in goodwill and other intangible assets, primarily
caused by the impairment to goodwill of £7.2m (2015 £11.9m|, a decrease in other current assets and liabilities, driven by
reduced gross trade receivables balances and increased bad debt provision. and reduction in net debt®. Further details on
these significant movements can be found throughout this report.

Conclusion

The Group has made good pragress towards ils strategic goals within whal has been a challenging trading period. The harsh
trading conditions brought about by the falls in advertising demand has impacted the Group's adjusted operating profit? margmn
negatively, and we have reviewed our cost base in order to right-size this appropriately. The growth in digitat platiorms and
event-driven revenues has been positive and we remain vigilant but positive against this backdrop.

Following the difficulties expertenced during the second half of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 foliowing the
implementation of the accounting platfarm, much hard work has been undertaken throughout 20146 to address
these issues resulting 1n excellent cash flow performance in the year with a swing in working capital flow of £12.4m,
a resultant cash conversion® of 153% with a reduction in net debt® to £14 1m. The legacy of old trade receivables
remains which have proven very difficult to collect and an additional, separately reported, impairment provision of
£1.8m {2015: £nil] has been made to reflect the uncertainty around these remaining amounts. We continue to make
every effort to collect all amounts due to the Group.

| am optimistic that the Group 1s in a strong positian for continued growth in
digital and live events revenues that will deliver margin improvement in the medium term.

(S Juborn

Swag Mukerji
Chief Financial Officer
28 March 2017
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management approach

The Board has averall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's system of risk management and internal canirols and
these are regularly maratored by the Audit Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit Cammittee in this financial year can be.found in the Audit Committee Report on page 42.

The Executive Committee is responsible for identifying, managing and monitoring material risks in each area of the business
and for regularly reviewing and updating the risk register, as well as reparting to the Audit Committee in relation 1o risks,
mitigations and contrals. As the Group operates principally fromn one office and with relatively short management reporting
lines, members of the Executive Committee are closely involved in day-to-day matters and able to identity areas of increasing
risk quickly and respond accordingly. The responsibility for each nsk identified is assigned to a mernber of the Executive
Committee. The Audit Commitiee considers risk management and controls regutarly and the Board formally considers risks
to the Group's strategy and plans as well as the risk management process as part of its strategic review.

The risk requster is the core element of the Group's risk management process. The regisier 1s maintained by the Company
Secretary with input from the Executive Cornmittee. The Executive Committee initially identifies the material risks facing the
Group and then collectively assesses the severity of each risk |by ranking both the likelihood of occurrence of the risk and its
potential impact on the business and the related mitigating controls.

As part of its risk management precesses, the Board considers both strategic and operational risks, as well as its risk appetite
in terms of the tolerance leve| it is witling to accept in relation to each prncipal risk, which 1s recorded in the Company’s

risk register. This approach recognises that risk cannot aiways be eliminated at an acceptable cost and that there are some
risks which the Board wilt, after due and careful consideration, choose to accept. The Group's nisk register. its methad of
preparation and the operation of the key controls in the Group’s system of internal control are regularly reviewed and overseen
by the Audit Committee with reference to the Group's strategic aims and its operating environment. The register is also
reviewed and considered by the Board.

As part of the ongeing enhancement of the Group's risk monitoring activities, we reviewed and updated the procedures by
which we evaluate principal risks and uncertainties during the year,

Principal risks

The Broup's risk register currently includes operational and strategic risks. The principat risks faced by the Group in 2016,
taken from the regisier, together with the patential effects and mitigating factors, are set out below. The Directors confirm that
they have undertaken a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing the Group.

Trends in print advertising and sales of print products mean that revenues from these sources continue to shrink and are
not replaced like-for-like with online or digital praducts. The non-print media sector has high levels of competition from
a wider group and low barriers to entry. This teads to different pressures an audience and customer retention as well as
pricing,

These trends continued more steepty during the latter part of 2016 as direct revenue from print products dipped more than
expected at the start of the year. Our strategy of identifying the type of content our audiences want and how they want te
consume the content means that, in 2614 and early 2017, we reduced the circulation frequency and valume of various of gur
print magazines including Marketing Week and Creative Review. We are developing new revenue streams from products,
such as the Mini MBA in Markeling, which are exclusively digital and derive no revenue fram print advertising. We are also
continuing ta develop cur techmcal capabibity and to support our product innovation by hiring people with relevant experiences
and skills where appropriate. The role of our Executive Committee includes anticipating future changes in the market and
ensuring that aur business can react or accelerate plans accordingly.
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Movement in risk: J The Board cbnsiders that our exposure to this risk has decreased since the prior year duelto the specific
actions we have taken to reduce our dependency on print advertising and sales of print products, inctuding the creation of new
products which are exclusively digital.

Failure to manage change effectively could exacerbate our difficuities in retaining and recruiting staff at an appropriate cost
in parts of the business, and lead 1o loss of key senior staff, resulting in increased recruitment and training costs, loss of
productivity, potential loss of ctients and potential inability to maintain content quality and deliver our specific plans.

Given the acceleration of our strategy and associated changes. we will need lo manage practical and cultural impacts on
staff, including potential changes to individual roles as well as broader working practices. During the year, and in line with
the changes taking place across the business, we have introduced new measures aimed at Improving our abiity to recruit and
retain employees and to track employee engagement. in respense to employee leedback, twice-yearly performance review
meetings have been replaced with monthly ‘check-in’ meetings, which facilitate more regular discussion about personal and
career development opportunities between employees and line managers. Further, the Group has replaced its annual staff
engagement and satisfaction survey with an interactive platform which enables employees to provide weekly feedback on
their {evels of engagement and satisfaction directly to line managers. All employees have access to training, share schemes
and other benefits and the Group benchmarks its approach against best practice within the sector. Addressing tevels of
attrition continues to be a focus for managers’ performance targets in 2017 and the Group continues to priaritise the setting
of appropriate remuneration across the Group to ensure we remain competitive within the market. Itis a focus of Portfolio
Directors to ensure that client relationships and content quality are maintained as a team rather than by an individual, where
possible. In addition, most senier employees enter into restrictive covenants upon starting employment with the Group.,

and we are developing specific retention strategies, as well as succession plans, for critical roles and key personnel where
possible.

Movement in risk: ‘T Due to increased change taking place across the business [caused by, among other things, initiatives
aimed at reducing our reliance on print, together with more general cost-cutting measures| the Board considers this risk to
have increased since the previous year.

Serious systems failure affecting our core systems and multiple products or business functions, or breach of network
security controls [as a result of a deliberate cyber-attack or unintentional event], results in misappropriation of financial
assets, proprietary or sensitive information or operational disruption, such as the unavailability of our websites and of
our digital products to users or unavailability of support platforms, thereby directly affecting our revenues or collection
activities and damaging our reputation with customers and audiences.

The Group has invested signiticantly in its {T systems and several key IT system upgrades were completed during 2016,
including upgrades to the new CRM and finance systems introduced in 2015. Security of our IT systems and business
continuity continues to be a focus for the Board and further IT system improvements are planned for 2017, following
completion of an external audit of the security of our main IT infrastructure and our websites to be carried out by a specialist
third party provider. We have an experienced 1T team and continue to invest in new roltes in this area. Where possible,
implernenlation of IT systemn upgrades is supported by internal teams to reduce the risk of relying on third parties and, where
services are outsourced to suppliers, contingency ptanning is carned out to mitigate risk of supplier failure, During 2015, gur
core websites which were hosted an 3 legacy platferm were migrated onto a new and more secure platform which is cloud-
hosted. In 2014, transition of the operatronal IT systems for Econsultancy, Fashion & Beauty Monitor, Year Ahead. Foresight
News and Clean Energy Pipelineinto our group-wide IT infrastructure was completed. Both measures have reduced our
wulnerability to a serious breach of network security controls but we consider the external environment a key factor in this risk
so the Board has nat reduced its assessment of likelihood.

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

Fraudulent or accidental breach of aur security, or ineffective operation of {7 and data management systems leads to
loss, thelt or misuse of confidential infarmation or personal data or breach of data protection requirements resulting in
increased regulatory supervision, damage ta aur reputation and / or girect financial impact.

The central Group IT support function monitars and cantrols our IT systems, including data management. Appropnate IT
security is undertaken for all key processes to keep the IT environment sate. Websites are hosted by specialist third-party
providers who provide warrantses relating {o security standards. Our core websites have been rmigrated onto a new and more
secure platform which s cloud-hosted and databases have been cleansed and upgraded during 2015 and 2016. External
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access to data is protected and staff are instructed to minimise access to internal data and the sending of data lists, which are
password protected or encrypted where appropriate. We have a Oirector of Oata and Analytics whose remit includes building
on the existing controls around the use and pracessing of sensitive data. The Group has a business continuity plan which
includes its IT systerns and there is regular back-up of data, stored off-site. We have standardised all privacy policies and
website terms of use for the Group's websites. We are taking steps to ensure Centaur’s compliance with the requirements of
the new EU General Data Protection Regulatian, which will apply to us in 2018,

Movement in risk: - The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

The Group runs events and exhibitions that gather large numbers of peaple in single venues and locations, often in large
cities in the UK and elsewhere. This results in operational health and safety risks including fire safety, food hygiene, crowd
control, security and failure of equipment. As the Group operates events and exhibitions in locations hired from third
parties, including hotels and venue operators, it is generally not in control of safety policies for the locations and depends
upon the third party venue operator to have adequate safety policies, processes and equipment in place and to comply with
health and safety regulations. If a serious physical incident occurred at an event, physical injury, death and other significant
damage could occur.

Events and exhibitions are the responsibility of a specific team within the Group which has experience and training in health
and safety nisks and responses. The Group's own employees are atways in attendance at all of our events and exhibitions and,
at our major events and exhibitions, we engage third party floor managers with specialist health and safety expertise. Qur
events teams risk assess every event venue in conjunction with the venue operator and key contractors, Wherever possible

we ensure that contracts provide for liability to remain with venue operators whe are best placed to manage the risks and

we maintain insurance to cover our pubbc liability. In 2014, we put in place new measures aimed al, among other things,
mitigating risk to the health and safety of our employees and customers in the event of a serious physical incident at one of our
events or exhibitions. We revised our business continuity plan and also set up a mass communication tool and a designated
disaster recovery website enabling urgent messages to be communicated maore quickly to employees and, consequently,
customers.

Movement in risk: - The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

A serious force majeure event, such as a fload or terrorist attack, could affect the availability of a venue for one af our
large events or exhibitions or of our central London office. For the Group's larger events and exhibitions, there are only
a small number of venues avaiiable for hire in the market from third parties such as hotels, and we have a majority of
our staff and systems at a single central London location. If a venue or our central London office becomes unavailable, it
is unlikely that the Group would be able to transfer an event to a different venue, or our employees to a different office,
at short notice. This coutd result in damage to our reputation and direct financial impact from revenues that we would
be unable to collect [because, for example, commercial teams are unable to operate effectively), costs already incurred,
refunds due to customers or tegal claims from customers and suppliers.

Over the last year, we have taken steps to ensure that, in the event of the unavailability of any venue or qur central

London office, our reaction can be quick and well planned. We have a revised business continuity plan, along with 3 mass
cammunication ool and disaster recovery website, which facibitate faster communication of urgent messages to employees
and customers, The Group has also fostered closer relationships with its existing and potenhial venue providers so that, where
feasible, we have contingency plans for moving events or exhibitions to alternative venues i necessary. Given the lack of
venues avaikable for hire and the demand for those venues from our competitors, it 1s impaossible to have a plan in place to
deal with all patential situations which could cause unavailability of a venue. Where possible, however, we are now securing
longer-term [three year| contracts with major events and exhibition venue prowiders, and we continue 1o review and explore
alternative options for venues to muligate this risk. In addition, our Group poticy 1s to contract with suppliers and customers
under our standard terms where possible, which seek to protect us from costs and loss of revenue in the event of force
majeure or cancellation of events. As we consider the external environment, including in particular the nse in unpredictable
terrorist attacks wm major European cities, to be a key factar in this nisk however, the Board has not reduced its assessment of
likelihood.

Movement in risk: — The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.
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The Group's products could be vulnerable to reptication by competitors in the UK or other markets including, patehtially,
thase offering content under a different revenue model that reduces or eliminates costs for users,

The Group has continued to invest in its digital product development hub. This team is statfed with experienced digital product
development experts and 15 adequately resourced. The praduct pipeline is planned up to 12 menths ahead, and progress
against this schedule 1s reviewed fortmghtly to take into account changes in customer requirements and business priorities,
as well as the activites of our competitars. In addition we have invested in our registered intellectual property and we seek to
entarce our legal nghts to protect our brands and intellectual property where necessary.

Movement in risk: > The Board considers this nsk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

Changes to regulations and legal requirements, including in relation to areas such as data protection and direct marketing,
restrict or burden the Group’s activities.

Legat and regulatory matters are dealt with by our legally qualified Company Secretary. supported by our panel of respected
taw firms. Our Company Secretary, with support from internal experts in employment and health and safety matters, is tasked
with updating and advising the Board on changes 1o law and regutation that may atfect the Group’s interests and require
alterations to our business practices. We conduct staff training in-house on key legislation where appropriate, including the
Data Protection Act 1998, the forthcoming EU General Data Protection Regutation, the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the Modern
Slavery Act 2015.

Movement in risk: = The Board considers this risk to be broadly the same as for the prior year.

As Centaur Media's products are primarily sold to specific sectors of the UK market, the Group’s financial performance is
highly sensitive to economic and palitical conditions affecting the UK market and/or the key sectors in which we operate.
Uncertainty about the future economic and political stabitity of the UK and its impact on sectors including [but not limited
to) the financial and real estate sectors following the UK's vote to leave the EU in 2014 has the potential to reduce customer
demand for our products and thereby adversely affect the Group's revenues.

The Group's strategic plan incluges increasing internabional growth in the rrud to longer term, focusing on North America, in
order to mitigale this risk. Many of the Group’s products are market-leading in their respective sectors and are an integral part
of our customers’ operational processes, which mitigales the risk of potential reduced dermand for our products. The Group
regularly reviews the politicat and economic conditions and forecasts for UK and the main sectors in which it operates to
assess whether changes to its product offerings or pricing structures are necessary.

Movement in risk: T The Board considers this risk to have increased since the prior year due to diminished short and
medium-term expectations for the UK economy followsng the referendum vote to leave the EU on 23 June 2016, meaning this
risk has been included in the annual report as a principal risk facing the Group for the first time.

Key to movement in risk from last year (after taking into account mitigating controls}
T Increase in risk

= Risk unchanged

W Decrease in risk

Yiability statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the 2014 revision of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the {irectors have assessed
the viability of the Group over a four-year pericd to December 2020, taking account of the Group’s current positian, the
Group's strategy, the Board's risk appetite and, as documented above, the principal risks facing the Group and how these

are managed. This period has increased from three years as disclosed i the 2015 annual report, as a result of the Board
performing a full strategic review and financiat plan up to 2020 during the year. Based on the resuits of this analysis, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company wilt be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the period to December 2020.

The Board has determined that the four-year period to December 2020 is an appropriate period aver which to provide its
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wiability statement because the Board's financial planning horizon cavers a four-year period. In making their assessment,
the Directors have taken account of the Group's existing financing arrangements to 2019 [and assumed that financing

will be available to replace the current facility on similar termsl, cash flows, dividend cover and other key financial ratios
over the period. These metrics are subject to stress testing which involves sensitising a number of the main assumptions
underiying the forecasts both individually and 1n unison. The assumptions sensitised include forecasted adjusted EBITDA,
cash conversion and capial expenditure. Where appropriate, {his analysis is carried out to evaluate the potential impact of
the Group’s principal risks actually occurning, such as print and advertising revenues continuing to shrink, staff attrition, UK
economic conditions and replication of products by competitors. Sensitising the model for changes in the assumptions and
nisks affrrmed that the Group would rema:n viable over the four-year period to 2020.

Going concern basis of accounting

In accordance with prowsion C.1.3 of the 2014 revision of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Girectors’ statement as to
whether they consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepaning the financial staternents
and their Wdentification of any material uncertainlies to the Group's ability to continue to do so over a penod of al least twelve
months from the date of approval of the financial statements and for the foreseeable future can be found on page 35.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Centaur Media is committed to developing a culture of environmental awareness and social responsibility and we seek where
appropriate to incorporate environmentally and socially responsible practices into the way we deliver services and products
to our customers and procure goods and services from third parties. The Graup has a whistleblowing policy in place enabling
employees to report any concerns about improper practices, includwing relating to 115 environmental and social responsibility
practices.

Environment

Centaur Media operates in the media sector, predominantly in the United Kingdom, and conseguently, whie Centaur
recognises that its business has an impact on the enviranment, including through the use of energy and paper, cur impact on
the envtronment is less significant than that of companies operating \n many other sectors. As we continue to increase aur
digital capabilities and products, and to reduce gur reliance on print advertising, we are reducing our use of consumable items
such as paper and plastic over time. The majority of cur employees work out of a single location in Welts Street, London and
we have only one other UX locaticn in Bromsgrove, meaning that the Group has been able to take advantage of consolidating
building-related environmental impacts and benefitting from Group sharing of items such as photocopiers. The Group also
has small offices in New York and Singapore.

The Group actively seeks to mirimise adverse environmental impacts and to promote good environmental practices wherever
possible. We increasingly aim to ensure that our major suppliers are environmentally responsible. For example, our mam
paper and print supplier holds the IS0 14007 lenvironmental management] accreditation and 1s certified by the Forest
Stewardship Council and Programime for the Endorsement of Forestry Certification.

Some of our other measures are:

» reducing aur water usage, which we use for domestic purpases only {notably ushing and handwashing! by approximately
30% during the period ended 2014 through the refurbishment of our lavatories and basin taps in parts of the Wells Street
building,

= use of energy-efhicient Lighting, including replacing existing light fittings with energy efficient LED light fittings in the Wells
Street byilding - during the year ended 31 December 2016, this pregramme was extended to include alt commeon parts of

the Wells Street builting;

= installation of rnotian sensors i offices to control lighting:
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* analysing and adjusting the timing of Bailers and chillers for office air conditioning to increase energy efficiency:
* stapping the use of non-recyclable cups and reducing the use of paper hand towels;

¢ buying paper that s Forest Stewardship Council [FSC'| accredited which means that the paper has been sourced in an
environmentally-friendly, socially responsible and economically viable manner;

« active engagement in the recycling of cans, tins, plastic, glass, cardboard and paper, inctuding the replacement of
traditional waste bins with recycling bins throughout the Wells Street butlding as part of a new centralised recycling
system rolled cut 1n 2015, together with a monthly report showing the percentage of waste collected that was recycled,

+ recycling of printer cartridges where possible;
» increasing the use of aqueous inks, which lirmit the retease of volatile organic compounds;

= yse of eco-friendly taxis and courier vehicles that are less than 3 years oid, and use of cyclist couriers, where possible,
~
» cycle 1o work scheme and other measures that facilitate cycling to work by employees, such as the provision of showers,
changing rooms and lockers, as well as bike storage facilities at the Wells Street building; and

* encouraging staff to use public transport by provision of season ticket loans.

Charitable Donations

The Group supports local communities and charilable organisations through direct fundraising. donation and pro-bono
work, During the year. a total of £118.855 [comprising employee contributions of £8,454, a Group contribution of £8,454 and
£101,947 in third party contributions raised through our events] was donated to Childline, our chosen charity partner for
2016. tn 2015, £111,242 [comprising employee contributions of £11,512, a Group contributian of £10,000 and £89,730 in third
party contributions raised through our events] was danated to Mind. We used our events to raise money from third parties
for Childline inctuding requesting danations in return for entry for awards and taking coliections at the events. Every year,
the Group offers each employee a paid day off to spend volunteering for the not-fer-profit cause or charity of their charce.
Employee contributions were raised through a range of cornpany-wide fundraising events including sporting events and bake
sales. We also operate a Give As You-Earn scheme through the payrotl. In 2016, contributions amountin§ to £6,024 [consisting
of employee contributions of £5,679 plus a matching contnbution of £345 from the Group) were made through this [2015:
£6.723).

Health and Safety

We are committed to the safety of our staff, We have a Health and Safety Policy which sets out Centaur's responsibilities and
those of its staff concerning health and safety in the warkplace. Qur Heaith and Safety Commitiee, which is responsible

for overseeing the application of this Policy. meets at least every 6 months and reports directly to the Board on all matenial
related matters. Due to the nature of the business, risk of work-based accidents is relatively low but the Group takes its
responsitilities for the health and safety of its employees seriously. Our office manager 15 responsible for maintaining a safe
environment for employees and an Accident Book is available to all staff in Reception. We periodically carry out internal heatth
and safety reviews, taking follow up action to maintain standards where necessary, and undertake staft traning in relation to
fire safety. Where work-related activities take place which have a higher risk attached - such as travel, marketing events and
outdoor activities - additional planning is undertaken which includes a risk assessment and autigation plan. To minimise risk
to the health and safety of our employees in the event of a major disasler or emergency, we have recently revised our business
continuity plan and carried out testing of the plan.

Emissions

We continue to reasure our carbon footprint by monitoring our Energy Usage and we are pleased to confirm that we are
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comphant with the EU Energy Efficiency Directive 'Energy Saving Oppartunity Scheme’ {ES0S]
The greenhouse gas ‘GHG' emission from our operations during the year are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2016 global GHG emrssions data (tonnes of CO2el-

2016 2015

Tonnes COp Tonnes CO2

Scope ? {Gas, Fuet and Car Mileage} 75 157
Scope 2 [Electricity and Steaml &74 581
Total GHG emissions 549 738
Average number of employees 550 564
Emissions per employee 1.0 13

Diversity

Centaur Media strongly encourages diversity across the Group and 1s committed to recruiting and promoting the most talented
people from the widest pool angd providing equal opportunities for all employees and prospective employees. To support

this aim, the Group has an Egual Opportunities Policy which covers recruitment and selection, promotion, training and
development and standard contract terms for all staff. We also support apprenticeships which increase our talent pool and
demonstrates the Group’s cornmitment to reaching out to young people from a variety of backgrounds. We offer internships
and work experience opportunities for people from a variety of backgrounds.

As part of our activities to implerment the provisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015, we have adapted an anti-slavery and
hurmnan trafficking policy.

Two out of our six [33%) Board members are female and, five out of seven {71%] of our Executive Committee are female and,
as at 31 Decemnber 2016, our warkforce overall was 59% female (327 employees] and 41% male (227 employees]. We proudly
support flexible working opportunities, and 9% of stalf are employed on a part-time basis,

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and sngned by order of the Board.

-

Grainfie Brankin
Cormpany Secretary
28 March 2017
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GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS : i

@ Ron Sandler

Chairman

Ron joined Centaur as Chairman in May 2015, He is a member of the advisory board of Palamon Capral Partners. His early
career was with the Boston Consulting Group. Me was Chief Executive Officer of Lloyd's of London from 1995 until 1999,
playing a key role in Lloyd's Reconstruction and Renewal, and subsequently Chief Operating Officer of NatWest Group. Ronis
a past-president of the Chartered Institute of Bankers and in 2002 he led an independent review of the UK Long Term Savings
Industry. He has been chairman of numerous companies, including Northern Rock, Phoenix Group and Paternoster,

© William Eccleshare

Senior independent Director

Wiltiam is Chairman and CEO of Clear Channel International. He served as a non-execulive director of Hays Plc from 2004

to 2014 and has been a board member of the Donmar Warehouse Theatre since 2013. William was a Partner and Leader of
European Branding Practice at McKinsey & Co. He has previously served in international leadership roles at major advertising
agencies, including as European Chairman and CEO of B8B00 (Omnicom);, European Chairman of Young and Rubicam (WPP
Groupl, Charrman and CEO of Ammirati Puris Lintas Northern Europe [Interpublic Groupl; Global Strategic Planning Director
of J. Walter Thompson Worldwade; and CEO of PPGH/JWT Amsterdam.

© Robert Boyle

Non-Executive Director

Robert, a qualified Chartered Accountant, was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP, where he was Chairman of the PwC
European Entertainment and Media Practice for twelve years, retiring 1n 2006. He is a Non-Executive Director, and Chairman
of the Audit Committee, of Maxis Berhad (in Malaysial and Witan investment Trust Pic.

© Rebecca Miskin

Non-Executive Director

Rebecca is Founder and CEO of Gloo Networks Plc, a digital transformation company. She began her career in media at Reed
Elsevier launching telecom-based information services across Europe. She has since worked across the USA and UK at Time
inc., NBC Universal and most recently at Hearst Corporation. Rebecca helps re-align media organisations through a data
driven, custorner-centric and collaborative operatianal approach.

© Andria Vidler

Chief Executwe Officer

Andria joined Centaur Media as Chief Executive in November 2013, From August 2009 to July 2013, Andria was Chief Executive
Officer of EMI Music UK & Ireland during which time she successlully transformed the business inte a high margin global
rights management enterprise by driving consumer focus and digital nnovation. Between April 2008 and August 2009, she
was Chief Marketing Dfficer of Bauer Media. As part of the UK management team she was responsible for building the Bauer
Media brands to generate greater profitability across the portfolio of 53 magazines, 23 radio stations and all online products.
Andria was Managing Director of Magic FM & Nationat Radio from June 2005 to Aprit 2008. Prior to that, she held a number of
managerial, operational and marketing roles at Capital Radie and the BBC. Andria is a trustee of The Roundhouse Trust and
also sits en industry award panels.

© Swag Mukerji

Chief Financial Officer

Swagq joined Centaur Media in Juty 2016 and was appointed Chief Financiat Officer in Octaber 2014, Swag has had senior
finance and general management positions with several blue chip FMCG companies inctuding Guinness Plc, Grand
Metropolitan Plc, United Biscuits Plc and Virgin, He was formerly Group Finance Director of Biocompatibles internationat ple
and since then he has been CFO of three private equity backed businesses, the latest of which was Safetykleen, a Warburg
Pincus lnvestment. He has successfully delivered shareholder value through top and bottom line growth, restructures and
turnarounds. Swag s a qualified Chartered Accountant and has 3 Warwick MBA.
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) EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In addition to the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer, the Executive Committee comprises the Chief Operating Officer,
two Divisianal Managing Directors, CEQ and Founding Partner of Oystercatchers and Company Secretary. The bicgraphies of
the Executive Committee are set aut below:

@ Linda Smith

Chief Operating Officer

Linda was appointed Chief Operating Officer in February 2016 and manages Centaur's centralised expert hubs of 1Q, Research,
Production, Data and Digital Praduct Development, as well as IT, HR and client and customer delivery operations. Linds has
worked at a number of media companies including 1TV, StarcomMediaVest, Capital Radio, RadieCentre and most recently
Bauer Media. She was a commercial consuttant to Centaur Mediain 2014 Through her previous roles Linda has developed
operational experience in a number of different areas including M&A, sales and general management and across a broad
spectrum of broadcasting, publishing and digital platiorms.

© Steve Newbold

Divisional Managing Director

Steve was appointed Divisional Managing Director in September 2015, overseeing the Home Interest. Legal. Engineering,
Financial Services, Travel & Meetings and HR portfolios. Prior to joining Centaur Media Steve held Managing Director roles

at WGSN, i2i Events, Emap Caommunications [now Ascentiat] and Emap Plc. He has experience of rynning multi-media
businesses in key sectors including homes, tegal, retail, and fashion. He has also led and supported key acquisitions including
WGSN, Stylesight, Futuros Events, Broadcast Video Expo and Pure London.
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© Jane Turner . .
Divisional Managing Director

Jane’s early career began with publishers Maclean Hunter, Thomas Telford and Argus Press Group, moving on to Mintel
International and Claritas Nielsen and helping drive both campanies into the age of digital distribution. Following this
faundation, her time with agency groups Havas and WPP focused on delivering insight, sales, marketing and digital solutions

for rmajor enterprise clients. in 2005 Jare joined Chorion PLC as Managing Director. Latterly, she has run her own digital
applications business whilst also supporting a range of classic digitai creative agencres, digital content and 5a3aS technology
businesses i growing new audrences and developing new channels. Jane joined Centaur as Divisional Managing Cirector with
responsibility for the Marketing portfolic in March 2016.

@ Suki Thompson

CEQ and Founding Partner of Oystercatchers

Suki jgined Centaur Media in October 2014 as a result of the acquisition of OQystercatchers and joined the Executive Comrmitiee.
Suk: started her career agency-side with companies such as DB8, WWAV, Publicis, TBWA and Y&R in London and Asia

before founding Haystack Consultancy, which created a framework for the modern pitch intermediary. As well as her work at
Oystercatchers, Suki has been the Chair of The Marketing Society, a long-standing member of WACL [Wermen in Advertising
and Communications Londonl and is on The Board of Trusiees for Macmillan Cancer Support and Touraid. She is a regular
centributar to the national and marketing press and speaker at industry conferences. In 2012 Suki was made a Freeman of the
City of London and given an honarary Doctorate by Coventry Universily for her services 1o International Business.

@ Grainne Brankin

General Counsel and Company Secretary

Grainne has been with Centaur Media since July 2014 and is General Counsel as well as Company Secretary. Prior to joining
Centaur Media, Grainne was General Counset at CBS Outdoor International where she was part of the management team
delivering a successful sale of the division by CBS Corp. to Platinum Equity. Grainne had previcusly worked for 8 years at
Yahoo!'s EMEA HQ in London and then Switzerland for 8 years and held varicus roles in the legal tearm including responsibility
for M&A, restructures and emptoyment. Grainne qualified at Clifford Chance in London and worked at law firm Bird & Bird
before joining Yahoo!, She has undertaken a broad range of corporate and commercial work in Europe and the USA within
media, telecoms and technology mdustries.

2



OIRECTORS” REPORT
The Directors of Centaur Media Plc ['the Company’ or ‘the Group’], a company incorporated and domiciled in England and
Wales, present their report on the affairs df the Group and Company together with the audited company and consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,

Details of significant events since the balance sheet dale are contained in note 32 to the financial statements. \

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business informaltion, events and marketing sotutions to selected
professional and cammercial markets. The principal activities of the Company are these of a holding company.

Business review
The Strategic Report, incorporating the Chief Executive’s Report, on pages 4 to 29 sets out a summary of the Group strategic

objectives. business model, key performance measures, aperating and financial rewews, future developments, principal risks
and the corporate responsibility statement,

Greenhouse gas emissions

Details of the Group's greenhouse gas emissions are included in the Corparate Responsibility Section on pages 28 to 29%.

Research and development activities

The Group invests in systems and website development activities - see note 10 to the financiat statements for the internally
generated amounts capitalised during the year. The Group does not incur any significant research costs.

Dividends

A final dividend in respect of the period July to December 2016 of 1.5p per share {July to December 2015 1 5pl is proposed
by the Directaors, and subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 26 May 2017 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 12 May 2017. With the interim dividend of 1.5p per share, the total
dividend for the year will be 3.0p per share [2015: 3.0p].

Share capital and substantial shareholdings
Details of the share capital of the Company are set oul in note 23 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2014, and 14

March 2017 {being the last practicabte date prior to publicatien], notifications of interests at or above 3% in the issued voting
share capital of the Company had been received from the following:
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GOVERNANCE

31 December 2014 14 March 2017
Aberforth Partners LLPt 23.39% 23.39%
Artermis Investment Manaéement LLP 17.5™% . 17.57%
1BIS Capital Partners LLP 8.13% 8.02%
Chelverton Asset Management 5.02% 5.02%
Graham Sherren finc. spouse) 5.73% 5.73%
Argas Funds - Argonaut Fund 5.88% 5.88%
Otd Mutual pic 3.96% 3.96%
Standard Life lnvestmentstt 3.35% 3.34%

t This includes Wellcome Trust Limited which is managed by Aberforth Partners LLP
t+ Figures derived frorn share register analysis

At 28 March 2017 and 31 December 2014, 6,870.437 131 Decerber 2015: 6,472,990 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury.
representing 4.54% [2015: 4 31%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 Decernber 2016. 800,000 {2015: 800.000)
deferred shares of 10p each carry restricted voting rights and carry no right to receive a dividend payment. The movement in
treasury shares during the period is due to the repurchase of shares by the Company,

Directors and Directors’ interests
The Directors of the Company during the year and up ta the date of this report are detailed below. All directors served from |

January 2016 unless otherwise stated. The Board have decided to cantinue observing best practice by offering themselves for
re-election annually.

Numberot  Shares acquired Number of Number of

ordinary shares during the year ordinary shares  ordinary shares

held at 1 January held st 31 held at 28 March

2014 December 2014* 2016

Ronald Sandler - 45,000 45,000 45,000
William Eccleshare [appointed t tuly 2016] - - - -
Christopher Satterihwaite (resigned 27 July 2014] §5.942 - 95,942 N/A
Rabert Boyle 117,037 - 117,037 117.037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 - 14,800 14,800
Andna Vidler 136,574 15,354 153,930 15,401
Swagatam Mukerji lappointed 1 October 2016) - 30,000 36,000 30.502
Mark Kerswell (resigned 29 july 2016} 333,108 - 333,108 N/A

10r date of resignation if earlier

The Directors’ interests in {ong-term incentive plans are disclased in the Remuneration Committee Repart on pages 59 to 40.

Qualitying third party indemnity provisions
By virtue of articie 217 of the Articles of Association of the Company, a qualitying third party indemnity provision (within the
meaning given by section 234 of the Comparnes Act 2008] 15 in force at the date of this report in respect of each Director of the

Company and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has purchased agpropriate insurance in respect of legal actions agamst Chrectors and officers.




* Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made a donation to sts norminated charity for 2016, Chitdline, of £118,855, which included third party
donations collected at events of £101,947 {2015: donation to Mind of £111,242 including third panrty collections of £111,242). ~

Na paolitical donations were made during the year {2015: £nil).
Employment policy

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and appoints employees without reference ta age, sex, ethnic group or religious
teliefs.

It s the Group's policy to give full consideration to suitable apphications for employment by disabled persons. Opportunities
also exist for employees of the Group who become disabled 1o centinue in their employment or to be trained for other positions
in the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee involvemnent at all levels, both through monthly emgployee briefings and by drrect
access to managers and the Executive Commuttee. In addition, the Share Incentive Plan as described in note 24 encourages

employees partictpation in the Group’s performance.

All amployees are regularly briefed on the financial and econamic factars affecting the Graup's performance and new
initiatives thraugh monthly town hall meetings and management cascade communication.

Significant agreements

The Group's bank facility agreement, referred to in note 27 to the financial statements., is 3 significant agreement that is
terminable on a change of control of the Company. In addition, awards under certain of the long-term incentive plans, details
of which are set aut int note 24, will vest or may be exchanged for awards of a purchaser’s shares upon a change of controt of
the Company.

Conflicts of interest

Following the implementation of legislation on conflicts of interest, reflected in the changes to the Company's Articles of
Association in 2008, procedures are in place lo deal with such conflicts and they have operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation to the hinancial risk management and use of financial nstruments by the Group is presented in note 27
to the financial statements.

information required under the listing rules

In accordance with the UK Financial Conduct Authority's Listing Rules (LR 9.8.4C], the infarmation ta be included in the annual
report and financial statements, where applicable, under LR 9.8.4, is set out in this Directors’ report, with the exception of
details of transactions with shareholders which is set out on page 59,

Going concern

The Directors have carefully assessed the Company’s ability Lo continue trading and have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of this report and
far the toreseeabile future. See nate 1 of the hinancial statements for turther details.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are shown in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code '

See the Directors’ Statement on Corporate Governance for a statement made in respect of the Group's comphance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code on page 37,

Disclosure of Information to the Auditors

The Directors confirm that, so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit wnformation of which the Company's
auditors are unaware, and the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and lo establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.
Thes confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2004,

The Directors responsibility statement 1s included on page &4.
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board.

A A

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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DIRECTORS' STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is commutted to high standards aof corporate governance and supports the UK Carporate Governance Code
published in September 2014. The Board sets out its report below on hew the Group has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the UK Corporate Governance Code during the year.

Compliance statement

The Campany has applied the provisions set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code throughout the year. The Board is
committed to maintaining a structure, which establishes a sound corporate governance framework on behalf of the Company's
shareholders. Throughout the year, the Group has complied with all the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Board

As at 31 December 2014 the Board had four Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors (Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer). Biographies for each currently serving director are shown on page 30. The Board endeavours to maintain
diversity in its composition with respect to gender, skills, knowtedge and length of service in order to ensure the balanced and
effective running of the Company. Ron Sandler 1s Chairman of the Board and is an independent Non-Executive Director, who
leads the Board and ensures that both Executive and Non-Executive Directors make available sufficient time to carry aut their
duties in an appropriate manner, that all directors receive sufficient financral and operational information, and that there is
proper debate at Board meetings.

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company and the Group. and in discharging that responsibility it makes
decisions objectively and in the best interests of the Group. The Board sets the vision, values and standards for the Group. The
balance of the Board, together with the advice sought fram the Executive Committee members and the Company’s external
advisors, ensures that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision. The Board delegates day-to-day responsibility for
the running of the Company to the Chief Executive.

The Chairman 1s responsible for the effective performance of the Board through a schedule of matters reserved for approval by
the Board [comprising 1ssues considered most significant to the Group in terms of financial impact and risk| and control of the
Boary agenda. The Chawrman conducts Board and shareholder meetings and ensures that all directors are properly briefed.
The Chief Executive, supported by the Chiel Financial Officer and Executive Committee, is responsible to the Board for running
the bysiness and implementing strategy. The Board reviews the performance of the Executive Directors and the Group against
agreed budgets and agawnst the Group's objectives, strategy and values,

The Semior Independent Director during the first part of the year [1 January to 27 July 2016 was Chnis Satterthwaite. From 1
July 2014, he was replaced by William Eccleshare, who is also @ member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees,
The Company Secretary is Gramnne Brankin, who 1s atso General Counsel. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman

In ensuring there is efficient communication between all directors, the commuttees and senior management, as well as

the professional development of directors. independent adwisors including lawyers, remuneration specialists and external
auditars are available to advise the Non-Executive Directors at the Company's expense. All of the Non-Executive Directors
are independent. Cornmitiee meetings are held independently of Board meetings and invitations to attend are extended by
the Committee Chairman to other directors, the Group's advisors and managerment as appropriate, The terms of reference
of the Audit Commitiee, the Nomunation Committee and the Remuneration Committee, including their roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board, are available on request from the Company Secretary and will be available at the AGM.
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Board meetings

During the year, the membership of the Board and of each commuttee was as foltows:

Board Rele Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee
(:T:::;li:tse:nge;ay 2015] Chairman Member Member Chairman
ﬁ:;s;:::;;iifl;e;m:?llﬁ Sener Independent Director . Member Member
r::;::;s;clleﬂ::;eﬂwl Senigr Ingependent Director - Member Member
Robert Boyle Non-Executive Director Chairman Member -
Rebecca Miskin Non-Executive Dhrector Member Chairman Member
Andria Vidler® Chief Executive - - -

Swagatam Mukerji

fappointed | October 2014) Chiel Financial Officer - - -

Mark Kerswell

{resigned 29 July 2016} Group Finance Director - - -

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and committee meetings during the year along with attendance of Directors
was as follows:

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings held: A 5 2 3
Meetings  Meetings | Meetings Meetings | Meetings  Meetings | Meelings  Meetings
attended  eligibleto | attended etigibletn | attended eligibleta | attended eligible to
attend attend attend attend
Ronald Sandter
(appornted 13 May 2015} n " 5 5 2 2 3 3
Christopher Satterthwaite
. - ]
lresigned 27 July 2016) 4 s 1 2 !
William Eccleshare
[appointed 1 Juty 2014] 6 6 : ) ! ! ! !
Rabert Boyle 1t 11 5 5 ? 2 -
Rebecca Miskin 11 it 5 5 2 7 3 3
Andria Vidler 11 11 - - - - - -
Swagatam Mukerji 3 3 i X i i A .
[appointed 1 October 2014)
Mark Kerswell s s A ) ) ) B }
[resigned 29 July 2014]

8 Andra Vidler's marned surname 1s Gibb and she appears as Andria Gibb on sorne records kept by Compames House.
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if a Diréctor is unable to attend a meeting he ar she is provided with the same level o} information as the other directars in
advance of the meeting and given the opportumity to express views, which will then be shared at the meeting.

In addition to the key iterns identified for discussion by the Committees above, the Board discussed the following matters at
the Board meetings during the year:

* Review of financial performance against budget and prior year;

+ Review of Group strategy and objectives for the Executive Directors,

* Review and approval of budgets;

* Review of Group key performance indicators;

* Review of acquisition targets;

= Approval of hinancial reports and communication to shareholders and investors; and

+ Approval of the Group’s internal control policy. including a robust assessment of the principal risks and corporate
governance environment.

Board assessment and Directors’ performance evaluation

The Board undertakes a formal evaluation of s own performance and that of its committees and indiwdual directors.
Ingmdual evaluation aims to show whether each director continues to contribute effectively and to demonstrate commitment
to the role [including commitment of time for Board and comrmittee meetings and other duties). Evaluations are undertaken
annually by self-assessment and the Chairman's performance 1s also evaluated by the other Non-Executive Directors at a
separate meeting for this purpose each year, in addition the Chief Executive is subject to an annual performance review with
the Chairman. New directors receive an induction programme and all the directors are encouraged 1o undertake conlinuous
professional development programmes as appropniate. The Group offered trairming presentations in relation to directors’ duties
to the Board during 2016 and maintains insurance cover in respect of legal action against its directors.

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day running of the Company to the Executive Directors, who in turn share the operational
running of the Group with the Executive Committee. Throughout the year, the Executive Committee was the primary body
implementing eperational management across the Group. The role of the Executive Commuttee is to review:

« Financial performance and budget lat operational level);

* Human capital management:

+ Operational efficiency and developmenits (including Group IT, procurement and facilities);
* Product development;

* Market development;

* Business planning,

* Acquisition needs;

« |nternat and external communications; and

+ Business transformation and change management.

The tiagraphies of the members ol the Executive Committee are set out on pages 31 to 32. Supporting the Executive
Committee are the Portfolio Directors who are responsible for specific market segments and the expert leaders who lead the
teams delivering functional expertise. The tocus on our markets and audience enzbles us to build a deeper understanding of
the commerciat apportunities across each market, We know that pur customers want Hexible content that works seamlessly
across multiple platforms. By leveraging this market insight and an understanding of our custormer requirements we are able
to offer a higher value customer proposition. The expert teams provide the expertise and scale that allows us to effectively
and efficiently support the delivery of commercial opportunibes across each market. The creation of these expert teams also
enables us to effectively manage our cost base and to prioritise invesiment across the business.

Relations with shareholders

The Company encourages meaningful diatogue with all shareholders. Shareholder commumcation centres primarily on
the publication of annual reports, periodic press reteases, investor presentations and trading updates. The Chawrrman and
Executive Directors are available for discussions with shareholders throughout the year and particularly around the ime
of results announcements. The Senior Independent Director is also available should any shareholder wish to draw any
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matters to his attention. The Directors are available for cormment tHroughout the year and at all General Meelings of the
Company. Centaur Med:a values the views of its shareholders and recognises their interest in the Company’s strategy and
performance, Board membership and quality of management, The Group therefore has an active programme to meet and
make presentations to its current and potential shareholders to discuss its objectives. The AGM 1s used to communicate with
investars and they are encouraged to attend the AGM and to participate in proceedings formally or sharing their views with
Board members informally afier the meeting. The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Commitiees are
available to answer questions. Separate resolutions are proposed on each issue 50 that they can be given proper consideration
and there 1s a resolution to approve the annual report and financial statements. The Company counts all proxy votes and
indicates the level of proxies lodged on each resolution, after it has been voted on by a show of hands. All shareholders can
gain access to the annual reparts, trading updates, announcements, press releases and ather information about the Cornpany
through the Company s website, wwaw.centaurmedia com.

Risk assessment

Risks that affect or may affect the business are 1dentified and assessed, and appropriate controls and systerns imptemented

to ensure that the risk is managed. The Group’s risk register 1s kept by the Company Secretary with the input of the Executive
Committee and is reviewed by the Audit Committee every six months with appropriate rnitigation actions also being reported to
and overseen by the Committee.

The principal risks facing the Group. with associated mitigating controls, are detailed on pages 23 to 27 within the Strategic
Report.

Ethics

The Group carries out its business in a fair, honest and open manner, ensuring that it complies with all relevant [aws and
regulations. The Cornpany has specific policies on fraud, directer contlict, bribery, whistieblowing and slavery and human
trafficking, which are widely distributed and compliance with these policies is monitored. The Board has oversight of the
Group's actions. The HR team ensures that new job opportunities are made available to existing employees as well as to
outside applicants and that all employees are able to benefit from training, career development and promotion apportunities
where appropriate. The recruitment of new personnel is made without prejudice and the Group believes in equal opportunity
and encourages diversity. The analysis of the Group's workforce and Board by gender is set out in the Corporate Respansibility
Report on page 29.

Through all our snteraction with our customers and partners we ensure that we treat them fairly and openly whilst abiding by
the terms of contracls and relevant law. Equally, we treat our suppliers fairly and do not explost them or their employees.

Monitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's system of risk management and internal controls and
these are regularly monitored by the Audit Committee.

Details of the activities of the Audit Committee in this financial year can be found in the Audit Committee Report on page 42.
Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosure in respect of the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group that are attributable to hurnan activity in tonnes of
carbon dioxide 1s set out 1n the Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 28 to 29.

Fraud
Whilst the Group cannot guarantee to prevent fraud, an internal control framework is in place to reduce the likelthood of fraud

arising. The Group's whistleblowing policy s available to employees on the Company’s intranet, should any employee become
aware of any incidence of fraud,
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Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary directors are required to notify their employing company of all directorships they hold. Annual conflict
of interest disclosures require them to disclose such directorships or ather relationships, which they or a person connected
to them may hold. These are reviewed by the Board to assess the impact on the Company and whether it would impair the
Group's objectives.

Bribery Act 2010

in response to the Bribery Act 2010, the Board performed a risk assessment across the Group and formalised its policy to
prevent bribery. The Board has in place processes to prevent corruption or unethical behaviour. The policy explains what s
considered a bribe or facditation payment, which are prohibited, and provides guidance aver the levels of gifts, entertainment
and hospitality that are considered reasonable. Training has been mandatory for those groups of employees identified and

is available as required to new jainers. During 2017, an online traming programme will be made available to all employees.
The Group's policy is communicated ta alt appropriate third parties. The more rigarous processes around declaring diractors
interests and identifying potential tonflicts have improved the regultar monitaring of the Group’s policy.

Whistteblowing

The Company 1s commitled to the highest standards of integrity and honesty. Along with other policies which encourage
this behawiour, the Group's whistleblowing policy is available to employees on the Company's intranet. This policy allows all
employees to disclose openly, in confidence or anonymously, any cencerns they may have about possible improper practices,
in financial or other matters. An escalation process has been communicated to employees. Any matters raised will be
investigated and resolved. The Augit Committee will be notified of any issues raised through this pracess and appropriate
action taken, However, no incidents were noted during the year.

Modern Stavery Act 2015

The Company is commilted to implementing and enfarcing effective systems and controls to ensure modern slavery is not
taking place anywhere in its business or in any of its supply chains. The Company's slavecy and human trafficking statement
for the purposes of section 54 of the Modern Stavery Act 2015 is available cn the Company's website,
www.centaurmedia.com. The Group has in place an anti-slavery and human trafticking policy which has been made available
to employees pn the Company's intranet and, from 2017, will be notified te all new joiners. Traming has been provided to key
employees and the policy is communicated to suppliers and other third parties where appropriate.

Capital structure
tinformation on the share capital structure 15 included in the Oirectors’ Report on page 33 to 34,
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board.

—

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 217
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* Discussed the report received fromn the external auditors regarding their audit in respeci of the priar year, which included
comments on significant financial reporting judgements and their findings on internal controls;

* Met with other management personnel including the Head of Credit; and

* Reviewed and discussed with management and the Chiet Financial Officer each formal announcement made by the
Group.

The most significant financial reporting judgements considered by the Audit Committee and discussed with the external
auditors during the year were as follows:

* Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets

The Audit Committee has reviewed management's assessment of the recoverability of the Group's goodwill and intangible
assets and whether there is a need for any resulting impairment. The recaverable amaunt of goadwill has been determined
through value-in-use caleulations of each cash-generating unit {CGU') based on formally Board approved forecasts for the
first four years of the value-in-use calculation, and applying a terminal growth rate of 2.0%.

Management's assessment of the recoverability of the Group's goodwili and intangible assets resulted in an impairment of
€7.2m being recognised against the goodwill in the Financial Services segment. This was triggered by a sharp downturn in the
outlook for advertising and print in 3 sector which is particularly reliant on these sources of income. The Committee has paid
particular attention 1o the judgements and assumptions used to forecast cash flows, particularly around revenue and adjusted
EBITDA growth rates. The Commiltee was satisfied that the forecasts reflect the CBUs' historical budgeting performance and
that reasonable sensitivities were performed., that the value-in-use calculation reflects managernent’s best estimate, and that
the impairment recognised against goodwill of €7.2m is appropniate. As a result the Audit Committee was satisfied with the
carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets in the Group balance sheet.

Further details on geodwill and the impairment testing are included 18 note 9 to the financial statements.
+ Adjusting items

The Audit Committee has challenged management strongly over recent financial reporting periods with regard to the
presentation of exceplionat iterns and other alternative performance measures. Adjusting items disclosed in the year

inciude a significant bad debt provision in relation to historical trade receivables balances of £1.8m [2015: Enill which is
separately reported {see further discussion below), earn-out consideration and amortisation of acquired intangrble assels
mainly in relation to the acquisition of Oystercatchers {see below]. and exceptional costs arising in relation to restructuring
activities. The Committee notes that the restructuring actwities [both staff-related and corporate] arise from specific change
programmes during the year, and that they are material and could therefore distort the user’s view of the Group’s results. The
Committee is satisfied that it is appropriate to present these items as adjusting items on the basis that they assist the user in
assessing the core pperating performance of the Group.

The Commuttee assesses the appropriateness of all alternative performance measures disclosed as adjusting and the impact
these have on the presentation of the Group's results, and is satisfied that they do not inappropriately replace or obscure (FRS
measures.

L

2 A . ‘ .
Further details on adjusting items are included in notes (b} and 4 to the financial statements.
* Recoverability of trade receivables

As set out in the Financial Review, a period of disruption arose from the intraduction of a new accounting platform during
2015, which materially impacted the subsequent collection of trade receivables. Whilst the overalt quantum and ageing

profile of trade receivables has improved significantly during 2016, with the Group returning Lo strong cash generation, there

1s uncertamnty regarding the collectabdity of a legacy of remaining aged debt. At 31 December 2016, gross trade recewables
greater than 90 days overdue were £4.1m [2015: £5.0m). Duning 2014, an additional separately reported charge for the
impairment of trade recevables of £1.8m {2015: £nill has been recagnised over and above the £0.5m [2015: £0.6m} reported

in adjusted operating profit. This additional charge is material in nature and arises from specific conditions up to Q2 2016
followang the implementation of @ new accounting platform, and the charge has therefore been presented as an adjusting item.
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* The Committee nates that collectability of trade receivables 15 a judgemental area. The Committee has reviewed
management’s detailed assessment of the recoverability of the trade recewvables balance, and the methodology used lo
determine the provision required, which includes a range of sensitivities. !t is also noted that the changed circumstances in
2016 arising from a new accounting system implemented during 2015 resulted in an increase in the provision over and above
the level historically required, and this additional charge has been treated as an adjusting item in operating expenses in the
income statermnent.

The Committee is pleased that improvements to front-end billing and credit control processes have been made during the
course of the year and the Group continues to make good progress on collecting current receivables and reducing the amount
of days' sales outstanding (0SO'l. Both the Audit Committee and the Board have paid close attention to quantum and ageing
of trade receivables throughout the year, reviewed the processes and controls implemented to manage the risk of these issues
recurring, and have received regular reports from management, including the Head of Credit.

The Camrmuttee concurs with managerment's judgement that the level of provision recorded is adequate, that it 1s appropriate
to present the additonat charge of £1.8m as an adjusting item in 2014, and has concluded that appropriate policies and
measures have been and continue to be taken to address tegacy system and process related issues.

Further details on trade receivables and the associated provision are shown in notes 15 and 27,
= Acquisition of Oystercatchers

On 30 September 2014. the Group acquired the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP, which constitutes a Business
Combination under IFRS 3. The Commitlee has reviewed the results of the purchase price allocation exercise performed

by management to identify and value intangible assets. The acquisition resulted in an initial consideration of £2.3m, which
has been allocated to fair value adjustments in relation to identified intangible assets (brand and customer contracts and
relationships| of £1.1m and goodwill relating primarily to employees acquired of £1.2m. Amortisation of the acquired
intangibles was €0.1m during 2016, and was presented as an adjusting item, consistent with the Groug's accounting policy.
Further details on adjusting items can be tound in notes 1(b] and 4 to the financial statements.

The agreement also includes contingent consideration relating lo an earn-out arrangernent of up to £1.2m. Since payment

of this consideration is linked to empioyees remaining in the business up to 31 March 2017, this has been taken through the
statement of comprehensive iIncome. In 2014, charges of £0.6m have been treated as an adjusting itern in line with the Group's
accounting policy.

The Committee notes that the amounts involved are material and require judgement, and concurs with the treatment of the
acquisition, including its presentation, in the financiat statements,

Further details on the business combination are presented in note 13 to the financiat staternents.

Going Concern and Viability

The Audit Committee recewed 2 report setting out the going concern review undertaken by management which forms the
basis of the Board's going concern conctusion. Duning 2015, the Group agreed a four year £25.0m multi-currency revolving
bank facility. The Committee notes that the negative working capital irends expenienced during 2015 were reversed during
the year. There is significant headroom on all of the linancial covenants. On this basis the Committee has concluded that the
adoption of the going concern basis is appropriate.

in addition, the Commmittee has assessed the statement in relation to the longer-term viabitity of the Group and the Group's
principat risks to wiability, including rewewing the period over which the statement is made, and reviewing qualitative and
quantiative analysis and scenarto testing prepared by management. The Committee concluded that the statennent in relation
to the longer-term viability of the Group in the Strategic Report is appropriate.

Risk Management

The Group's management is responsible for the identification, assessment and management of risk, as well as for designing
and operaling the system of internal control. The Audit Committee has worked closely with management and received




detailed information to assess the effectiveness of internal financial controt and risk assessment'and management systerns
and report on them to the Board (which retains ultimate responsibility].

Having monttored the Group's risk management and internal control system, and having reviewed the effectiveness of material
controls, including financial. eperational and compliance contrels, the Audit Committee confirms on behalf of the Board

that it has not identified any significant control farings or weaknesses at any lime during the year and to the date of this
report. The Cornrnittee is satished that appropriate actions have been taken o address weaknesses in the order to cash cycle
tollowing the accounting system implementation during 2019, and that sigmificant improvernents in cash collechons have been
demonstrated over the year.

Risk of Fraud

The Audit Committee considered the risk of fraudulent financial reporting in the business, and through its review of the
effectiveness of internal controls and reporting from management. has concluded that adequate cantrols were i place during

the year.
Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the Group's whistleblowing pobicy and is satished that this has met FCA rules and good standards of
corporate governance. Further details of the whistleblowing policy are set out within the Directors’ Staternent on Corporate
Governance on page 41.

Other matters
Other matters monitered and approved by the Committee following appropriate presentations during the year were:

« Review of Group tax processes, control and compliance, and review of clarity of tax reporting in the financial statements;

» Review of risk register;

» Review of updated non-audit services policy to align with the FRC Revised Ethical Standards 2016 and EU Audit
Regutation;

» Querseeing the external audit tender process; and

» Review of data protection policies and comgpliance.

Internal Audit

The Commiitee considered whether it was appropriate to appeint internal auditars and concluded that this is not currently
required given the size of the business, its retatively centralised operations and the risks identified together with the mitigating
controls,

External Audit

The Group’s external auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The Audit Committee monitors the external audit process
to ensure high standards of quality and effectiveness. This was assessed throughout the year using a number of measures,
including:

» Reviewing the quality and scope of planning of the audit and the level of {ees;

* Monitoring the independence and transparency of the audit; and

= Obtaining feedback from management and the Directors on the quality of the audit team, their business understanding
and audit approach, and approving reappointment.

PwC have been the Company's external auditor since its incorporation in 2004, During the year, and in light of the
requirements of the new EU audit requiations adopted in the UK, the Committee undertook a formal tender process for the
external audit relating to the year ending 31 December 2017. The tender process resulted in the Committee recommending to
the Board that PwC be retained as external auditors. As part of a planned rotation, julian Jenkins took an the role of external
audit partner, reptacing Philip Stokes.

The Audit Commiltee considered the independence and objectmty of the external auditors through a careful review of their
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tefms of engagement, scope of work and level of fees fwhich are shown in naote 3 to the financial statements). This included
reviewing the natyre and extent of non-audit services supplied by the external auditors to the Group, seeking to balance
objectivity and value lor money.

In light of new requlations, the Committee reviewed and approved updates to the Group's policy regarding non-audit services
during 2016, The external auditors are excluded from providing any non-audit services that indwidually, or in aggregate, may
impair the independence of the auditor. Prior approvat from the Audit Committee is required for any permitted audit related
or other services, and effective from 1 January 2017 lees for any such services may not exceed 70% of the fee for the external
audit in any given year.

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided non-audit senices to the Group in respect of taxation compliance and
advisory. The Board 15 satisfied that there has been no impairment of their objectivity and independence. Following the update
to the Group's non-audit services policy. tax adwisory and comphiance services will not be supplied beyond 31 December 2014,
The external auditors’ repert to the Directors and the Audit Committee also confirmed therr independence in accordance with
auditing standargs.

Self-Assessment

During the period the Audit Committee performed a formal, questionnaire based, self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Comrnittee with satislactory results.

Report to the Board

The Board has requested the Committee to confirm that in its epinion the Board can make lhe required statement that the
annual repart taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
1o assess the Company's position and performance, business model and strategy. The Committee has given this confirmation
on the basis of its review of the whole annual report, underpinned by involvernent in the planning for its preparation, review of
the processes to ensure the accuracy of factual content and by assurances from the Remuneration Commiltee.

Independent auditors
A resolution s to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for the re-appointment as auditors of PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP.

Robert Boyte
Chairman of the Aydit Committee
28 March 2017
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Dear Shareholder,

} am pleased to present the report of the Nommation Cormmittee for the year ended 31 December 2014, This report details the
Committee's ongoing responsibililies and key activities over the period.

The Committee comprised Ron Sandler {Chairman), Chris Satterthwaite {to 27 luly 2014|, William Eccleshare (from 1 July
2014) and Rebececa Miskin, ensuring that there 1s 3 majority of independent Non-Executive Directors on the Committee.

Nomination Committee Responsibilities
The Committee’s key responsibilities include-

* Reviewing the Board's structure, size and compesition:

* Reviewing the compasition of Board Commitiees:

« Defining the role and competencies required for appaintments to the Board;

= Identifying, nominating and reviewing candidates for appointment to the Board:

« Puiting in place plans for succession for the Chairman and other members of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financial Officer; and

* Reviewing the leadership needs of the organisation, both Executive and Non-Executive.

The appointment of directors is a matter for the Board. which considers recornmendations of the Nomination Committee. The
Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Board and the Board Committees are properly constituted and balanced in
terms of skills, experience and diversity. Our policy on Board diversity is set out in the Directors’ Report above and during the
year we had two lemate Board members, comprising 33% of the Board.

Activities during the year

During the first part of the year, the primary focus of the Committee was to identify and appoint a new Seniar Independent
Director who would join the Board in preparation for the departure of Christopher Satterthwaite after nine years as a Non-
Executive Director of the Group. The Committee was led by Ron Sandler for this purpose and followed a rigorous process that
was approved by the Board and supported by executive search consultants. Following a comprehensive short list and interview
exercise, the appointment of Wiltiam Eccleshare was recommended to the Board by the Committee and he was canfirmed as
a Non-Executive Director as well as Senior Independent Director and member of each of the Remuneration and Nomination
Commuttees effective 1 July 2016.

Following Mark Kerswell's resignation as Group Finance Director in May 2016, the main activity of the Cornmittee was to
plan for his succession. The search process was approved by the Commiltee and facilitated by executive search consultants.
In accordance with this process, Swag Muker)i was appointed as tnterim Chief Financial Officer from 29 July 2016. The
Committee recommended, and the Board approved, Swag's permanent appointment as Chief Financial Officer and
appointment to the Board of the Company as an Executive Director fram 1 October 2016, Neither of the external search
consultancies used in the search process far William Eccleshare and Swag Muker)) have any other connechion with Centaur
Media.

For the remainder of the year the Committee focused on the responsibilities set out above. including in particular undertaking
3 review of the Board's structure. size and composition, as well as the effectiveness of the Board and its Commuttees.

Ron Sandier
Chairman of the Nomunation Committee
28 March 2017
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Annyal Statement
Dear Shareholder,

On behall of the Board | am pleased to present to you the Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2016 for
which we will be seeking approval at the Annual General Meeting on § May 2017. This is in three parts, this Annual Statement,
a Policy Report and an Annuat Repart on Remuneration.

Committee Membership

During the year Centaur Media's Remuneration Committee compnised myself [Chairman), Ron Sandler, Robert Boyle. Chris
Satterthwaite [to 27 July 2016] and Witlam Eccleshare {from 1 July 2014].

Context for Executive Remuneration at Centaur Media

The Company's broader remuneration strateqies remain unchanged from those outlined 1n last year's report; we are
committed ta simplification, performance-related remuneration and long-term share-based incentives.

During the year, Swag Mukeri was appointed to the Board as Chie! Financial Officer from 1 October 2014 ifollowing a period as
Interirm Chief Financial Officer from 29 July 2016), replacing Mark Kerswell who received no payments in connection with his
resignation. Swag's remuneration was set in line with our Directors’ Remuneration Palicy and further details are provided in
the Annual Report on Remuneration.

2014 also saw some changes to the Executive Commitiee which was joined by Linda Smith as Chief Operating Officer, Jane
Turner as Divisional Managing Director for Marketing and Suki Thernpson, one of the Oystercatchers founders. Andrew Evans
and Kathleen Jones left the Group as Divisional Managing Director for Events and Group HR Director respectively and have not
been replaced.

Retention of staff at all levels within the Group continues to be a key focus of the Remuneration Comrnitiee, reflecting a priority
of the Executive Committee and the Group in general. In 2016, we adopted a new more progressive performance review
process for employees aimed at improving our ability to recruit and retain employees and to track employee engagement. We
are also pleased to report that alt Centaur employees are paid abave the National Living Wage introduced on 1 Aprit 2014 for
working people aged 25 and over.

Executive Remuneration

A review aof Centaur Media's executive remuneralian was last undertaken in February 2012 by the Cornmittee, and we believe
that our remuneration policy, which was last approved by our shareholders in 2016, continues to support our business
strategy. We have, however, decided to make some changes to the operation of our policy in respect of both the annual bonus
and the Long-Term Incentive Plan and we cover this in more detail below. As usual, we have consulted key shareholders on
significant changes.

Andria Vidler's base salary was increased in Aprel 2016 by 3%, and remains unchanged from that amount, disclosed in last
year's Remuneration Report. There has been no change to Swag Mukerji's base satary since his appointment. No bonuses
wilt be paid to Andria Vidler or Swag Mukeryi for the financial year 2016 as minimum group financial performance criteria were
not fulfilled and no bonus was paid to Mark Kerswetl for the financial year 2016. The targets set in 2014 in respect of Group
revenue and Group adjusted profit before tax have been set out in the Annuat Report on Remuneration below. No LTIP or other
share awards to the Executive Directors vested in the year and the Annual Report on Remuneration provides details of LTIP
awards granted to Andria Vidler and Mark Kerswellin March 2014, and to Swag Mukerji in October 2016. The LTIP awards
granted to Andria Vidler and Swag Muken)i are due to vest in March and October 2019 respectively and those granted to Mark
Kerswell lapsed upon his resignation,
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Share Schemes

Centaur Media's Lang Term Incentive Plan (2016 LTI, which was adopted at the AGM in 2014, is the Company’s only
executive share scheme and will be used In March 2017 Lo grant the 2017 LTIP awards. Swag Mukerji's LTIP awards were
the oaly awards granted under the 2016 LTIP during the year as other awards made eartier in the year were made under the
previous (2006} LTIP scheme. There are no plans te adept any other schemes, meaning there will be no shareholder vote on
share schemes at the 2017 AGM

Remuneration and activities for 2017

In accardance with the Equality Act 2010 [Gender Pay Gap Information] Regulatians 2017, we are required to publish the
results of our first annual gender pay gap analysis on our website by 4 April 2018. To enable us to meet this new requirement,
we will be undertaking an analysis of this data for Centaur employees during 2017.

The Company has plans to wnplement a company-wide professional qualitication traimng programme during 2017 and this
will enable us to comply with our obligations under the government’s “apprenticeship lewy which will come into legal force in
April 2017 and require larger employers, including the Company. to pay an 2dditionsl tax intended to be invested in training and
which can be rebated if qualifying training is offered to employees.

The budgeted average satary mcrease for annual pay reviews in Aprit 2017 for management and staff across the Group will be
2% [3% in 2016]. This overall amount wilt be targeted primanily at lower earning employees.

The salaries of the Executive Directors and the fees of the Charman and Non-Executive Directors have been reviewed in 2014
but wail not be increased during 2017, consistent with the context of pay reviews for the broader senior management of the
Company.

At the AGM on ¢ May 2017, the Annual Statement and Annual Report on Remuneration will be subject to an advisory vote. The
Directors Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at our AGM in 2016 and applies for up to three years from such
approval. The changes that we are making within the approved policy are all designed to focus the Executive Directors on
and to reward them for achieving stretching financial and strategic objectives. They are also designed to reward the Executive
Directors and the wider leadership team for delivering shareholder value in extremely challenging market conditions and
ensure the retention objective of the LTIP.

In addition to adjusted aperating profil we have also set a nurber of specific financial and strateqic goals. These will account
for the minority of the maximum bonus.

We also believe that the current rmarket conditions and retention requirements are such thal exceptional circumnstances exist
and the Committee has decided to enhance the share awards made in 2017 under the 2016 LTIP from 100% to 150% of salary
tor the Chief Executive and 125% of salary on grant to the Chief Financiat Officer. The share awards will alsa be subject to
two additional measures tor each of which a single target has been set, EPS and relative TSR measured against the FTSE
SmaliCap [excluding investment trusts) will continue to be performance measures and each have a 30% weighting. The new
challenging hurdles are adjusted EBITOA and cumulative free cash flow which reflect the long term plan of the Group. The
targets are disclosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration.

! hope that sharehalders will vote wx favour of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and | will of course be happy to answer any
questions that shareholders may have befare or at the AGM.

Rebecca Miskin
Chair of the Rermuneration Comrritlee
28 March 2017
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

Centaur Media's shareholders approved the Directors’ Rernuneration Policy at the 2016 AGM held on 11 May 2016. We have
included an updated version of the Policy to provide context for the Annual Report on Remuneration. It has been updated only
to make it easier to follow and to take account of the changes to the Board during 2016, so the substance remains unchanged.
A copy of the Policy approved at the 2014 AGM can be found in the 2015 annual report and at www.centaurmedia.com/investors.

Centaur Media recognises the need to attract, retain and incentivise executives with the appropriate skills and talent to
manage and develop the Group's businesses, drive the Group's strategy and deliver shareholder value. The main principles of
the Directars’ Remuneration Policy are:

« To achieve tatal remuneration packages that are competitive in the sector within which the Group operates and with the
market in general;

= To prowide an appropnriate balance between fixed and variable remuneration which rewards high levels of performance;
and

+ To incentivise and retain managernent and to align their interests with those of shareholders.

Considerations of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Group

The Committee considers the general base salary increases for all employees when determining the annual salary increases
for the Executive Directors. Empleyees have not been consulted in respect of the design of the Group's Executive Director
Remuneration Policy, although the Committee will keep this approach under review.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Committee considers shareholder feedback received in relation lo the annual report and AGM each year. This feedback,
plus any additional feedback received during the course of the year is then considered as part of the Company's annual
review of its rernuneration policy. In addition, the Cornmittee will seek to engage directly with major shareholders and their
representative bodies should any matenal changes be made to the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. Details of votes for and
against the resolution to approve last year's Remuneration Report are set out in the Annuat Report on Remuneration,

Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary table

The table below sets out the remuneration policy that was approved by shareholders in 2016 and which became formally
effective from the date of the 2016 AGM. The policy adopted in 2016 was consistent with our first remuneration policy
disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration other than in relation to the Centaur Media Long Term incentive Ptan
2006 (12004 LTIP'] which reached the end of its 10-year life in 2014. The 20714 LTIP that was approved at the 2016 AGM, provides
that, in exceptional circumstances le.g. recruitment or retention], awards up te 200% of salary may be granted in any financial
year, aithaugh the normal maximum award continues to be 100%.

Note that paymenis may be made under arrangements in ptace prior to this policy becorning effective [including pension,
other benefits and incentives|.

The remuneration policy offered to employees of the Group will be adapted to reflect tocal market practice and senionity.




‘Element

Purpose and link to slrateg'y

Operation

Maximum

Performahce targets and
recovery provisions

Base salary

Annual bonus

Lang term incentives

* Reflects the value of the
individual and their rote

s Reflects skills and
experignce over ime

* Provides an appropnate
tevel of basi¢ fixed income
avoiding excesswe risk
arising lrom over reliance on
variable income

* Reviewed annually, normally

effective | Apnil

* Paid in cash on a monthly

basis

* Pensionable

= Takes perindic account
against companies with
similar charactenstics and
Sector comparaters

= The Carnmitiee has not set

a mawimum (evel of salary,

Increases will be set in the

context of salary increases

amongst the wider work

force

* The Committee retains the

discretion o make increases

above this tevel in certain

circumstances, for example,

but not lirmited to-

® Anincrease in the
inchvidual's scope and
responsibitities

* Alignment 1o the external
market

® Anincrease (o refiect an
ndwidual's performance
and development in the
role, e.g. where a new
appointment is recruited
at a lower salary level
and is awarded stepped
ncreases

s Net applicable

* [ncentivises annual delivery
of financial and sirategic
goals

* Maxymum bonus only
payable for achieving
demanding targets

* Targets reviewed annually

* Not pensionable

* Mandatory deferral of any
banus over 75% of base
salary into shares for 3 years

* Dividend equivalents may be
payabie on deferred share
awards

» 100% of salary

* Normally measured over a
one year performance period

* Primarily based on
Group's annugl kinangial
performance (majority, «
not att)

* Persenal and/or strategic
objectives Iminorityl

* Mezsures far the foliowing
years will be set outin
the Annuat Report on
Remuneration of the
relevant year

s Elawback provisions apply

* Aligns lo main strategic
objectives of delivering profit
growlh and shareholder
return

» Annual grant of conditionat
awards or ml cost optians
granied

* Dividend equivalents may
be payable on shares to the
extent awards vest

» Awards capped at 100% of
salary (200% in exceptional
circumstancesl

* Narrmally a three year
performance period

= Perfarmance is based on
financial and/er share
price based measures le.g.
relative Total Shareholder
Return and £PS|

» The Commitlee may alter
the weighting and largets
annually iIf it determines that
it is appropriate te do so

« Targets for the lollowing
yeurs will be set out in
the Annudl Report an
Remuneration

s Awards vest as follows:
« Threshald performance:

25% of award
* Maximum performance
100% of award
« Clawback prowsions apply
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Element

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum *

Pertormance targets and
recovery provisions

Other benefits Pension

Share ownership

* Provides competitive
retirement benefits

* Provides an opportumty
tor Executive Directors to
contribute ta their gwn
retirement ptan

& Dehned contributions made
to Executive Directors
own pension plans. Cash
supplemenis may also be
paid

* Up ko 15% of base salary

* Nat applicable

* Aids retention and
recruitment

® Executive Directors are
provided with private
medical insurance

® Other benefits including
company car allowance may
be provided if considered
appropriate by the
Committee

+ There is no maximum, Set at
a level which the Commiltee
considers is appropriate
in the context of the
oircurmnstances of the role/
indwigual and tocal market
practice

¢ Not applicable

* To provide alignment of
interests between Executive
Directors and shareholders

* 50% of the net of tax vested
LTIP shares required lo be
retained uatil the guideline
is met

* 100% of salary

* Not applicable

1.The Annual Repart on Remuneration sets out how the Cormpany implemented the policy presenled above in 2016 and wikl apply it

in 2017

2.Not all employees have a bonus opportunity, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are generally lower,
Participation in the LTIP 1s Limwied to Executive Directors and certain selected senior management  Other employees are aligible
ta participale i the Company's alt employee share plan. In general, these differences arise to ensure remuneralion arrangements
are competitive in the market, together with the fact that remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior executives typically
has a greater emphasis on performance related pay. All bonus schemes are discretionary.
3.The choice of performance metrics applicable to the annuai benus plan reflect the Commutiee’s belief that any incentive
compensalion should be appropriately challenging and primarily tied to financial measures.
4.The TSR and EPS performance conditions applicable to the LTIP were selected by the Commitlee on the hasis that they reward
the delivery of long-ierm returns to shareholders and the Group's financial growth, and are cansistent with the Company's
abjective of delivering long-term value to shareholders.
§.Executive Directors may participate in any all-employee share plan, in line wath HMRC limuts, and to the extent offered

s2



REWARD SCENARIOS '

The chart below shows how the compasition of each Executive Director’s remuneration package varies at
different levels of performance under the policy set out above, 3s a percentage of total remuneration opportunity
and as a total value-

1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
900 835
860 800 ‘
700 '
4600 600 B e
500 M Annuat Bonus
400 400
Fixed Pa;
300 » Y
200 200
100
BT TARGEY  MAX v TARGET . MAX
Andria Vidler Swag Mukerji
£000s €000s
Nates
1.Fixed pay consists of salary from 1 April 2017, which is unchanged from 2014, The value of benelits and pension have been estimated
for 2017,
2 Target performance is the level of perfarmance reguired to deliver 50% of the maximum bonus and 25% of the maximum LTIP value
Isee below).

3.Maximum perfarmance would result in a maximum bonus payment of 100% of salary and full vesting of the maximum LTIP award
{150% of satary for Andria Vidler and 125% of salary for Swag Mukerjil.
4.No share price appreciation has been assumed.
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Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would be set in accordance with the terms of the Company's prevailing
approved remuneration policy at the time of appointment and would take into account the skills and experience of the
individual, the market rate for a candidate of that experience and the importance of securing the relevant indwidual,

On recruitment, salary may (but need not necessarilyl be set below the normal market rate, with phased increases as the
executive gains experience. The maximurn annual bonus would be no more than 100% of salary and grants under the LTIP
would be limited to a maximum of 100% of salary [200% in exceptional circumstances). In addition, on recruitment the
Company may compensate for amounts foregone from a previous employer {using Listing Rule 9.4.2 if necessary] taking into
account the qguantum foregone and, as far as reasonably practicable, the extent to which performance conditions apply, the
form of award and the time teft to vesting.

For aninternal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of their pnior role should be allowed to pay out
according to its terms. Any other on-gotng remuneration obligations existing prior to appointment may continue, provided that
they are put to shareholders for approval at the earliest opportunity.

The Committee may agree that the Company will meet relocation, legal fees or incidental costs where appropriate.

Executive Director Service Contracts and Loss of Office Payments

The current Executive Directors have service contracts which have a twelve month notice period. In respect of Andria Vidler's
service contract [dated 30 October 2013), at the Board's discretion, a payment in lieu of any unexpired notice may be paid,
comprising an amaunt for base salary, pension and any accrued holiday entitlernent, The amount may be paid in one lump
sum or in two instalments and mitigation will be applied to the second instalment. If termination is within six months of a
change of control, a payment equal to 12 months’ salary, pension and accrued holiday pay is payable. Where the Company
terminates the contract in any other manner, any damages shall be calculated in accordance with common law principles
including those relating to mitigation of loss. Notwithstanding the above, the Company is entitled to terminate employment
without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of notice in specified circumstances [e.g. serious misconduct].

In respect of Swag Mukerji's service contract (dated 21 September 2016), at the Board's discretion, a payment in lieu of any
unexpired notice may be paid, comprising an amount for base salary, pension and any accrued holiday entitlement. The
amount may be paid in one lump sum or in two instalments and mitigation will be applied to the second nstalment. If
termination is within six months of a change of control, a payment equal to 12 months’ salary, pension and accrued holiday
pay is payabie. This will be reduced to six months’ salary if the termination date is within six months of the commencement
date. Where the Company terminates the contract in any other manner, any damages shall be calculated in accordance with
commoen law principles including those relating to mitigation of loss. Notwithstanding the above, the Company is entitted to
terminate employment without compensation, damages or payment in lieu of nahice in specified circumstances {e.g. serious
misconduct].

An annual bonus will normally be payable for the period of the financial year served, although it will be pro-rated and paid

al the normal pay-out date. Arny share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director under the Company’s share

ptans will be determined based on the relevant plan rules. However, in certain prescribed circumstances, such as death,
disability, retirement or other circumstances at the discretian of the Committee, 'good leaver’ status may be applied. For good
teavers, awards will normally vest at the vesting date sel out in the relevant award, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant
performance conditions at the time, and reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the perfarmance period actually served.
However, the Committee has discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employrment or to dis-apply time pro-
rating.

in addition to the above, outplacernent suppart may be prowded and legal fees or any other miner incidental costs which are
considered appropriate may be payable.
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee 1s determined by the Remuneration Commiltee (other than the Company Chairman, if he sits en
the Committee). The fees for the Non-Executive Direclors are reviewed by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors.

The table summarises the key aspects of the remuneration policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

Element

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Maximum

Performance targets &
recovery provisions

Non-Executive Directors fees

Provides fees reflecting

time commitments and
responsibilities of each role,
in {ine wilth Lhose provided by
similarly sized companies

= Cash iee normally paid on 3
monthly basis

¢ Reimbursement of incidental
expenses where appropriale

+ Fees are reviewed
periodicatly

There 1s no prescribed
maximum annual fee or fee
increase,

The Committee and Board are
guided by Lhe general increase
in the Non-Executive market,
but may de¢ide to award a
lower or higher lee increase
to recognise, for example. an
increase in the scale, scope
or responsibility of the role

or take account of relevant
market movements,

Nol applicable

Letters of Appointment

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appomtment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year
peripd with an extension for a further three-year period, and provide for a notice periad of ane month. All existing Directors
have chosen to submut to annual re-etection at each AGM.

First appointed as a director

Current letter of appointment

Current letter of appointment

commencement date expiry date
Ronald Sandler 13 May 2015 13 May 2015 13 May 2021
William Eccleshare’ 1 July 2018 1 July 2016 1 July 2019
Robert Boyle g January 2010 g fanuary 2016 8 fanuary 2019
Rebecca Miskin 13 Janyary 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020°

t Rebecca Miskin's previous letier of appomtment commenced an 13 January 2011 and expired on 13 January 2017

Approach to Recruitment

For the appointment of a new Charrman or Non-Execulive Director, the fee arrangement woulid be sel in accordance with the
approved remuneration policy in force at that time.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Implementation of the Remuneration Policy for the year ending 31 December 2017

A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be applied during the year ending 31 December 2017 is set out
below-

Base Salary

The Executive Directors’ salaries will not be increased duning 2817, The current and proposed salaries are therefore as
follows:

From ? April 2017 As at 1 April 20146 % change
Andria Vidler £345,959 €355,959 0%
Swagatam Muker)ji £250,000 £250,000* 0%

* Salary on appointment al 1 October 2014

Pension and Benetits

The Committee intends that the implementation of its policy in relation ta pension and benefits will be in line with the disclosed
policy on page 52 of this report,

Annual Bonus

During 2017 the maximum bonus for Executive Directors will rernain at 100% of salary. Performance will be measured against
financial results {primarily adjusted aperating profitl] which will account for the majority of benus in accordance with our
remuneration policy and a small number of stretching strategic objectives linked to key corporate goals. These goals will
account for the minonty of the maximum bonus award. Any annual benus greater than 75% of basic salary will be awarded in
Centaur Media Plc shares and deferred for three years.

Long-term Incentives

itis intended that LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in March 2017 under the Centaur Media Long Term Incentive
Plan 2016 {2016 LTIP’], will be on an exceptional basis for the purpose of retention, enhanced to 150% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 125% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer. The enhancements are key. in the opinion of the Committee,

to retain the Executive Directors and reward them only if they deliver exceptional results in extrernely challenging market
conditions. The share awards will be subject, as for previous years, to both EPS and relative TSR perfermance targets. In
addition, two additional hurdles are being introduced and they are adjusted EBITDA? and cumulative free cash flow [adjusted
operating cash flow less cash pand for tax, interest and capital expenditure]. Both of these measures, in the apinion of the
Remuneration Committee, will be critical to our ability to create long-term value for our shareholders. The structure and the
targets are as follows:

© 30% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on absolute adjusted earnings per share targets. 25% of this part of the award
will vest for a threshold adjusted diluted EPS of 6.7p, increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for a maximum adjusted diluted
EPS of 10.7p for the year ending 31 December 2019. The EPS target range for these awards has been set in line with the
Company’s long-term business plan.

* 30% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on relative total shareholder return [ TSR') measured aganst the constituents
of the FTSE SmallCap [excluding investment trusts]. 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing
pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper gquartile TSR over the three years ending 31 December 2019. In addition to the TSR
performance condition, the Committee will need to be satisfied that the Company’s TSR perfarmance reflects the
underlying financial pertormance of the Company for this part of an award to vest.
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= 20% of the 2017 LTIP award will be baseéd on an adjusted EBITDA? hurdie of £20.5m for the year ending 31 December’
2019. This part of the award will vest in full only if the hurdle 1s met or exceeded. The adjusted EBITOA hurdle has been
set in line with the Company’'s long-term business plan.

* 20% of the 2017 LTIP award will be based on a cumulative free cash flow hurdie of £24.1m for the three years ending 31
December 2019. This part of the award will vest in full only if the cumnulative free cash How hurdle has been met. The
level of ‘stretch” has been set in ine with the Company’s long-term plan.

The Committee is satisfied that these financial targets represent an appropriate stretch on current forecasts.

We have consuited with our {argest shareholders on significanit changes which are in tine with our approved policy.

Fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The Company Chairman’s fee and those of the Non-Executive Owectors are determined as described on page 55. The fees of
the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors lexcluding the Chairman] were reviewed in December 2016, and i is proposed
that the fees will nat be increased during 2017. The current and proposed fees are as follows:

From 1 April 2017 As at 1 April 2014 % change
Ranatd Sandter {Chawrman] 125,006 125,000 0%
William Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Robert Boyle 43775 43,775 0%
Rebecca Miskin 43,775 43,775 0%

Remuneration Received by Directors for the Year (audited)

Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015 was as follows:

Salary and Benefits Pension
fees (€] (£] Bonus (£} (€] Total (€]
Executive
Andria Vidler 2016 342,269 18,431 - 40,705 422,605
208 351,475 16,096 7,106 41,070 415707
Swagatam Mukerji [appointed 1 Dctober 201460t 2016 42,500 1,470 - 1,616 65,786
2015 - - - - -
Non-Executive
Ronald Sandler 2016 125,000 - - - 125,000
M9 79,167 - - - T8167
Witlam Eccleshare {appointed 1 July 2016) 2016 21,888 - - - 21,888
2015 - - - - -
Robert Boyle 2014 43,456 - - - 43,456
2015 42,500 - - - 42.500
Rebecca Miskin 2014 43,456 - . - 43,456
25 42,500 - - - 42,500
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. |

Salary and Bensfits Pension
fees (E) (€} Bonuslf) i€l Total (£)
Former Directors
Mark Kerswell Iresigned 29 Juty 2016] 2016 150,747 1,866 - 13,754 166,366
2015 242,425 2,834 4,870 24,263 274,392
Christopher Satterthwaite Ires|gned 27 July 2008} 2016 26,768 N . . 24,768
2015 42,500 - - - 42,500

t Prior to hus permanent appointment as Chief Financial Gfficer on 1 October 2016, Swag Mukerji served as Interim Chiel Financial
Officer under 3 contract for services, and received fees of €87,000 belween 29 June and 30 September 2016. Swag Mukery's remuneration
on appaintment as Chief Financial Officer comprised a base salary of £250,000, benehts in line with our approved pelicy and including a
cash aliowance in lieu of a pension worth 9% of salary less an amount for employer Nalional tnsurance Contributions, 3 bonus maximum
of 100% of salary and an annual award of performance shares under the Long-Term Incentive Plan worth 100% of salary.

Annual Bonus for the Year {audited)

The Remuneration Committee set performance targets at the start of 2016 in respecl of both annual revenue and adjusted
profit before tax, as well as, for the first time, personal and strategic objectives. The personal and strategic objectives
included leadership eflectiveness. the communication of the mid-term strategy. and the development and execution of a

new growth strategy for the Group. Although goad progress was made in these strategic areas, the financial performance
outturn of £72.5m and £8.6m respectively for 2016 did not reach the minimum threshold level of financial performance set by
the Committee for payment of banuses. These thresholds were £72.6m (Group revenue! and £10.8m (Group PBTA] and the
maximum of the ranges set were £79.5m and £11.9m respectively. As a consequence, no bonus was paid to either Andria
Vidler or Swag Mukerji in respect of 20146. This represented 0% of the potential opportumity over the period from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2016,

Mark Kerswell who left the Cornpany in 2016 did not receive a bonus for the year ended 31 December 2016,
Scheme Interests Awarded during the Year
The Executive Directors received awards under the LTIP scheme during 2016. Mark Kerswell's awards subsequently

lapsed when he left the Company on 29 July 2016. These awards were in tine with the policy table set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Policy and details of these awards are set out below.

Executive LTIP Scheme Award date Number Basis Face value Performance Performance
of shares of awards condition period
under
award
Andria Vidler LTIP 2006 30 March 2016 674,194 100% £355,300 Vesting will be 1 January 20156
of base determined by to 31 Decenber
salary absctute earnings 218
per share [EPS'|
Mark LFIP 2006 30 March 2016 4£62.049 100% £243,400 in the final year of
Kerswetl of base the performance
salary period and jotal
shareholder
Swagatam LTIP 2016 4 October 2014 573,395 100% £250,000 return [ TSR') over
Mukerji of base the pertormance
salary periogd.




The LTIF awards were structured as nil cost options and the quantum of shares awarded was calculated using a share price of
52.7p at 30 March 2014 and 43.6p at 4 October 2016. The performance conditions for these awards are set out below:

Performance condition % of shares under Measurement period Targets % of shares under
award subject to award which will vest
condition
EPS 50% Year ended 31 December  EPSof 8.5 25%
2018
£PS of 10 5p or more 100%
BeMeen 4.5pand 10.5p Straight line basis
between 25% and 100%
TSR againsi ine 50% 1 January 201610 31 Median 25%
constituents of the FTSE Decembper 2018
SmallCap lexctuding -
investment trusts} at 1 Upper quartile 100%

January 2014

Between median and
upper quartile

Straight line basis
between 25% and 100%

The TSR element will anly vest if there has been sustained improverment in the Company’s underlying financial performance
over the performance peried.

Details of the Executive Direclors awards in Novermnber 2013 and March 2015 under the LTIP are detailed in the remuneration
table on page 40.

Andria Vidter purchased 3,767 shares during the period under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares
on a 1 for 2 basis in accordance with the Pian rules, resulling in 1,884 matching shares being awarded in the year.

Board changes and Payments for Loss of Office (audited}

Mark Kerswetl (Group Financial Director] and Christopher Satterthwaite {Senior Independent Director] stepped down from the
Board with effect from 29 and 27 July 2016 respectively. No compensatron for loss of office was paid.

Payments to Past Directors (audited]

Consistent with a long-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive and Charman, was paid £3,000 during
the year for advisory services perfarmed.

Directors’ Sharehotding and Share Interests (audited)

Share ownership plays a key role in the alignment of our executives with the interests of shareheclders. The Executive Directors
are expected to build up and maintan a shareholding in the Company equal to 100% of salary. Where an executive does not
meet this guideiine. they are required 1o retain at teast 50% of the vesled shares net of tax under the Company’s LTIP until the

guideline is met.

The tabtes below set out details of Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards under LTIP schemes {which will vest in future
years, subject to performance and centinued service). Under each scheme the exercise price is Enil.
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Executive At 31 ‘Granted Lapsed At 31 Dateof award Performance Exercise Share
December December period pericsd price on
2015 2016 date of
- . grant
Andria Vidler 618,182 - - 618,182 081113 0/0MN3 - 13/03/17 - 55.0p
3N12Ne 120917
493129 493,129 26/0315 01/00/15 - 26/03/18 - 72.05p
nnzng 25/09/18
- 6746194 674,194 30/03/16 a1/01/16- 30/03/19- 52.7p
31218 29/09M19
1,111,211 874,194 - 1,785,505
Swagatam - §73.394 573.394 0410116 01/0116- 04/10/19- 43.6p
Muheriji KAVAPIAL: 03/04/20
- 573,394 - §73,3%4
Mark Kerswell 434,364 - [436.364) - 08/1113 01/0713 - 13/0317 - 55.0p
N2 12/09/17
337,959 - 1337.9591 26/03/15 01701415 - 26/0318 - 72.05p
nzng 25/09N18
462,049 [462,0491 30/03M16 01/01/16- 30/03/19- 52.7p
3111218 29f05N1%
774,323 462,047 (1,234,3721 -

The tabie below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by Directors [inctuding their connected persons where

relevant),
Interests in ordinary shares Shareholding quideline Interests in share Total
achieved? schemes
Executive 31 December 2615 31 December LTIP
015
Andria Vidler 138,574 153,930 Na 1,785,505 1,939,435
Swagatam Mukerji - 30,000 No 573,394 603,394
Mark Kerswell 333108 333,108 No - 333,108
Non-Executive
Ranald Sandler 45,000 N/A - 45,000
William Eccleshare - - N/A - -
Robert Boyle 117,037 117,037 N/A - 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 14,800 N/A - 14,800
Christopher 95,942 95.942 N/A 95,942

Salterthwaite

* Or date of resignation if earlier

40



Performance Graph

The graph below shows the total sharehalder return TSR] of Centaur Media Ple campared to the performance of the FTSE
SmaliCap lexcluding Investment Trusts] over the last seven and a half years. This comparator has been chosen on the basis
that it 1s the group against which performance for the purposes of share awards made under the Long-Term Incentive Plan
is assessed. Owing to the change to the financial year end, there was no financial year ended 30 June 2014 and, instead TSR
perfaormance for the 18 months ended 31 December 2014 is shown.

The graph shows the value. by 31 December 2016, of £100 invested in Centaur Media Plc on 1 July 2009 compared with

the value of £100 invested 1n the FTSE SmallCap Index [excluding Investment Trusts]. The other points plotted represent
intervening financial period ends.

Total Shareholder Return

Source: Thampson Reuters Datastream
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History of Remunaration for the CEQ

The table betow sets out the Chief Executive singte figure total remuneration over the past seven and a half years.

Period ending Chief Executive Total remuneration Annual bonus Long-term incentives
(% of max) {% of max)

31 December 2016 Andria Vadler €422 605 Q 0

31 December 2015 Andnia Vidler £415,707 2 N/A

31 December 2014 (18 Andria Vidier (from 14 £4670.077 56 N/A

month period) Novernber 2013}

30 June 2013 Geof! Wilmot £514,920 ¢] 0

30 June 2012 Geoft Witmot £363,327¢ 7 0

30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmat £568,673 58 0

30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot £450, 180 45 1]

1 Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual notice payment as detailed in 30 June 2013 annual report and financial statements.

Change in the Chief Executive’s Remuneration

The table below shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current and
previous financial year carpared to all employees of the Company.

Element of remuneration % change
Salary Chief Executive %
Employees 4%
Benelits Chief Executive 10%
Employees 1%
Annual bonus Chief Executive 10CI%
Employees (391%

No change was made lo the value of the Chief Executive’s benefits in 20146, The percentage change during 2016 arises from
the comparison of value for a full year of a car-related benefit [in 2016) with a part-year in 2015. The percentage change of
[100%] is the result of the zero bonus in 2016,

Relative Importance on the Spend on Pay

The following table sets out the percentage change in distributions to shareholders and employee remuneration costs.

2014 2015 % Change
Employee remuneration costs £2%9.7m £€30.2m 2%
Dividends paid and share repurchases €£4.5m £4.0m 13%
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External Directorships

The Executive Dwrectors did not hold any external directorships «n the year.

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for monitoring, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board at least
annually on the broad palicy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chairman and Company Secretary. It also
determines their individual remuneration packages, including pension arrangements, bonuses and all incentive schemes
and the determmation of targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. The Committee asks
the Board, when appropriate, 1o seek sharehotder approval for any lorg-term incentive arrangements, bonuses, incentive
payments and any compensation payments and share option entitlernents. In addition, the Committee monitors and
recommends the level and structure of remyneration for senior management.

During the year, the Committee cansisled of the following Non-Executive Directors: Rebecca Miskin (Chairl, Robert Boyle,
Chris Satterthwaite [to 27 July 2016), Wiliam Eccleshare (frem 1 july 2014] and Ron Sandler. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least twice each year and met twice formally as well as holding a workshop during 20146, Minutes of the Commitee
are circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee.

External Advisors

The Remuneration Committee has access to independent advice where it considers it appropriate. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee sought advice relating ta executive remuneration from New Bridge Street [ NBS'), part of Aon Plc
and from FIT Remuneration Consultants ('FIT'}, both of whom were appeinted by the Remuneration Commuttee.

The Committee is satisfied that the advice received from NBS and from FiT in relation Lo executive remuneration matters
during the year under review was objective and independent. Both NBS and FIT are members of the Remuneration
Consuitants Group and abide by the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct. The fees were charged on a time
spent basis and amounted to £12,753 to NBS and £2,260 to FIT.

Stitement of Shareholder Yoting

At last year's AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes
fram shareholders:

Number of votes for Number of votes against

[and percentage {and percentage Number of votes Number of votes
Resolution of votes cast) of votes cast) cast withheld
Approval ot Directors
Remunerstion Poticy 107,205.929 {99.91%] 91,798 (0.09%) 107,297,727 12,250
Approval of Directors 107,256,209 {100.00%] 1,542 (0.00%] 107,257,751 52.226

Remuneration Report

Approvat
The Board of Directors has approved this Remuneration Committee Report, including both the Policy and Annual

Remuncration Report,
Signed on behatf of the Beard of Qirectors
Rebecca Miskin

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
28 March 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, including the Remuneration Commitiee Report and the financial
staternents in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the Directors

have prepared the Group and Company tinancial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
[IFRSs'| as adopted by the Eurcpean Union. Under company law the Oirectors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit
or loss af the Group for that periad. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently,

* Make judgements and accounling estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

* Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Coempany will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the hinancial statements and the Remuneration Committee Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities,

The Diractors are responsible far the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

The Directors consider that the annual report and financial staternents, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess a company's position and performance, business model
and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Board of Directors summary on page 30, confirms that, to
the best of their knowledge:

» The Group and Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the Group; and

» The Operational Review and Financial Review, contained in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report contained in
the Governance Report, include a fair review of the development and perfarmance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal risks that it faces.

By order of the Board

L

Grainne Brankin
Company Secretary
28 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTAUR MEDIA PLC
Repaort on the financial statements
OUR OPINION
In our opinion:
« Centaur Media Plc's Group financial statements and Company hnancial statements {the “financial statements’| gve a
true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the Group's loss ;

and the Group's and the Company's cash flows for the year then ended:

= the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards |'IFRSs™| as adopted by the European Union;

» the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006, and

» the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnes Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
The financial statements, inctuded within the Annual Report, comprise:
» the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 3t December 2014;
» the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome for the year then ended:
« the Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended:
= the Consotidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financiat statements, which include a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory
information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the nates to the financiat
statements. These are cross-relerenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited.

The financial reporteng framewerk that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the Company financial statements. as applied in accordance with the prowisions of the
Campanies Act 2004, and applicable law.
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AREA OF FOCUS - GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS IMPAIﬁMENT ASSESSMENT

Refer to page 43 [Audit Committee Report], page 95 [Key accounting assumptions, estmates and judgements) and page 108
{Note #].

Deterrmining if an impairment charge is required for Goodwill and intangibte assets involves significant judgements about the
future results and cash flows of the business, including forecast growth in future revenues and operating profit margins, as
well as determining an appropriate discount factor and long term growth rate.

Management used a Valug in Use madel to compute the present value of forecast future cash flows for each segment which
was then compared to the carrying value of the net assets of each segment [including Goodwill and Intangible assets| to
determine if there was an impairment.

Management aggregates cash generating units { CGUs | inte segments which represent the level at which the cash flows of
the businesses (and Goodwill] are manitored and therefare this 1s the level at which management performs its imparment
assessment,

Market conditions remain challenging and performance has varied compared to expectations in certain parts of the business.
This has been particularly the case within the Financial Services segment. Management's impairment assessment showed a
£7.2 million impairment of Goodwill in this segment which has been recognised in the financial staternents.

We therefore focused on this area and ihe judgements applied to future forecasts to ensure these appropriately factored in
historical variances and uncertain market conditions. We also fecused on the amount of the impairment charge recognised
and checked that appropriate sensitivity disclosures were provided in the financial staterments to explain any additional
impairment amounts which would arise from reasonably passible changes to the model's key assumptions.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We checked and confirmed that the allocation of CGUs to segments was cansistent with internal managerment reporting and
the prior year.

We evaluated the directors’ future cash flow forecasts for each segment, and the process by which they were drawn up, Where
histonical variances to budget had been unfavourable, management applied a ‘reduction factor” to the tatest Board forecast

to reflect the risk of forecasting inaccuracy and any stretch in the Beard forecast. The resulting forecast after application of
management's reduction lactor was used in the Value in Use modet.

We checked the approval of the Board's forecast to 2020 and that management’s additional reduction factor to this was
reasonably alighed with the histarical levels of budgeting inaccuracy.

We considered:

» the directors key assumptions including revenue and EBITDA growth rates used in the cash flow forecasts by comparing
themn to histoncat results. and economic and industry forecasts;

» the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital for the Group and cornparable organisations; and

= the long term growth rate by comparing management’s rate to forecast long term GDP growth in the UK and industry
growth reports and then sensitising management’s Value in Use model for reductions in this rate.

We found that the key assumptions were reasenable and the discount and long term growth rates were within our expected
range. With regard to the above procedures, inctuding the reflection of histonical levels of variance from budget into the future
forecasts, we determined that the inpuls to the base case Value in Use model were appropriate. This pravided sufficient
evidence for the impairment charge in the Financial Services segment. All other segments showed headroom above the
carrying value ol the net assets including Goodwill.

We evaluated the resulls and disclosure of the sensitivity analyses performed by management {as set out in Note 9], As the
carrying value of the Financial Services segment was tmpared down to the Value in Use there was no further headroom,
and any unfavaurable change in assumptions used in the additional sensitiwties showed further impairments to Goodwalt.
In additian, sensitivity disclosuras have been made for the Professional segment which was impaired in the prior year and
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therefore continues to have a lower level of headfoom. We determined the results of these sensitiviies are appropriately
disclosed and the sensitivities present a fair reflection of reasonably passible changes to assumptions used in the Value in
Use madel. Far the other segments, the sensitivities showed remaining headroom in all scenarios. This included goodwill
attributable to the Oystercatchers acquisition which was included in the impairment testing.

AREA OF FOCUS - RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to page 43 |Audit Committee Report}, page 94 IKey accounting assumptions, estimates and judgementsi and page 127
[(Note 27].

As set out in the Financial Review on page 19 and the Audit Committee Report on page 43, at the year end a significant portion
of older invoices remain uncollected. Throughout 2016 management has actively focussed on pursuing these amounts. At 31
December 2016, trade receivables, inclusive of VAT, over 90 days past due date was £4.1 million {2015- £5.0 million] and the
associated provision for impairment of trade receivables was £2.5 mullion [2015: €0.3 mullionl,

The determinabion of whether trade receivables are cotlectable involves management judgement. Accordingly, with regard to
the amount of aged trade receivables al the year end, we considered whether management's judgements were appropriate
and that this estimate reftected the latest available evidence.

We also considered the application of management's poticy for providing agamnst aged trade receivables, including the ordinary
provisiontng policy and the approach taken in 2014 specdically for the increased level of aged receivables. Management
recogruse pravisions for impairment of trade receivables based on specific known facts ar circumstances surrounding the
invoice or custorners’ abilities to pay. For example, certain trade receivables may be being pursued through legal avenues and
these are mainly provided against. Custormers on direct debit payment plans or where deferred income exists are also factors
taken mnto account in determining if a provision for impairment is required,

How our audit addressed the area of focus
We were able to confirm that the poticy for providing against trade receivables had been implemented consistently year on year.
For the year end balance, we tested:

* the ageing of trade receivables and that this was accurately determined;

» the accuracy of management's computations of provisions reflecting the history of bad debt write-offs, This included
checking that amounts excluded from this camputation were appropriate, such as amounts invoiced in advance of
exhibitions [where there is an associated liabitity held within deferred incomel, and

* the levels of post year end cash received and allocated against aged trade recevables at the year end.

We considered any residual expesure against the circurnstances giving rise to the ageing, the ongoing actions taken and in
place to collect the aged debt land what has been achieved to datel, together with the history of write-offs in the business. As
noted, determining an appropriate level of provision at the year end is a judgernental area and there coutd therefore be a range
of possible outcomes. We concluded that the evidence obtained supports the overall level of provision at the year end of £2.7
million and 1s within our acceptable range.

We also considered the appropriateness of disclosures made with regard to the additional provision recognised this year.
We confirmed the basis and reason for the incremental provision was explained, that this was reflective of 2016 specific
circumstances and actions, and that the amount separately reported related anly to this additional portion.
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' AREA OF FOCUS - CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF ADJUSTING ITEMS

Refer to page 43 {Audi Committee Report), page 96 lKey accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements] and page 101
(Note 4], ‘

An Alternative Performance Measure is presented in a separate column on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
Cornprehensive income. This adjusts statutory profit far “exceptional items’ and a number of other adjusting items. This
Alternative Performance Measure is considered by management as retevant to the assessment of the Group's performance in
2015

The Group's accounting policy 15 to separate itemns of income and expenses as exceptional items where the nature of the item,
orits size, is likely to be material and non-recurnng in nature so as to prowide a better understanding of the results of the
operations af the Group.

The exceptional iterns related mainly to redundancy costs of £0.9 million as part of the Group’s ongaing resiructuring.
Determining whether such items satisfy the Group’s policy for exceptional items requires a degree of management judgement
and sa we focused on the application of poticy in this area and the appropriateness of disclosures.

Other adjusling items include amaortisation charges on acquired intangible assets of €2.3 million, the annual share based
payments charge [credit of £0.1 million for 2015), the goodwill impairment charge and the additional, separately reported
charge for impairment of Trade Recewvables. The former two items have been historically separated from underlying profit
mainly due to their non-cash nature and this 1s consistent with the presentation used by 8 number of other industry peers. Due
to thair significance, the incremental impairment charge of trade receivables and the goodwill impairment charge have also
been separately reported as management believe these are useful and relevant to users for an alternative assessment of the
Group's results.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We considered whether the exceptional items recorded were non-recurring in nature and recognised and presented in
accordance with the Group’s disclosed accounting policy.

Strategic costs include professicnal fees associated with the group-wide restructuring prugramme and prospective acguisition
activities. The redundancy cosis include payments made to certain members of senior management as part of the Group's
restructuring of segment reporting lines and roles. We tested the accuracy and completeness of the costs incurred, including
checking the actual payments made to those employees. We also checked that these positions were remaoved from the Group's
structure permanently, checking that these costs dig not just relate to replacing specific individuats.

Redundancy costs had been incurred in Hoth the current year and in prior years so we challenged management as to whether
such costs were therefore non-recurning in nature. Management's view was that whilst these charges have recurred in 2016,
they have directly ansen as part of a significant restructuring ‘transformation programeme’ which is ongoing as set cut in
further detail in the Chairman’s Statement on page 5 and the Chief Executive’s Report on page 7. Following completion of the
restructuring these charges will not recur. Given the scale of this resiructuring programme, and that only the redundancy
costs specific to this are being separated, we accepted this treatment for the current year.

In respect of other adjusting items, including the amortisation of acquired intangibles and the share based payments charge,
we checked management’s computations of the costs. Qur work on Goodwitl impairment and the additional, separately
reported impairment of trade receivables is set out separatety in this report. As part of this we considered whether adequate
explanation was provided of the basis for separately reporting these tems,

We also focussed on ensuring that the explanation of Alternative Performance Measures was appropriate, including that the
adjusting iterns were explained, recanciled to statutory measures, and are not given undue prominence. From the evidence
obtained, we concurred with management's assessment to classify and disclose these items as separately reported adjusting
Hems, in line with the disclosed accounting policy.
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AREA OF FOCUS - ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING FOR OYSTERCATCHERS '

Refer to page 44 (Audit Committee Report], page 95 [Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgernentsi and page 113
{Note 13]. : :

The Group acquired the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP on 30 September 2016 for consideration of £2.3
million. Accaunting for the acquisition required a fair value exercise to assess the assets and liabilities acquired, including
valuing any separalely identifiable intangible assets and Goodwill. The valuation of intangibles requires management to make
eslimates.

Management performed an in-house valuation exercise to quantily the fair values of Wdentified intangible assets. Management
identified £1.1 miflion of intangible assets in respect of Oystercatchers’ customer relationships, a specific contract and the
brand.

The fair value of these intangible assets was judgementat as it required management assumptions including on customer
attnition and growth rates for existing custormer revenues. The determination of the discount rate applied to the fair value
models was also judgemental as it required the caleutatian of a risk adjusted weighted average cost of capitat.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

We assessed the completeness of intangible assets identified by management against our own expeclations, formed
from review of the acguisition agreements, our independent understanding of the business acquired and meeting with its
management, and a review of disclosures surrounding the rationale for the acquisition. We concluded that the intangible
assets identified were appropriate and there were no material omissions,

In relation to the quantum of intangible assets, we examined forecasts and historical information supporting assumptions
made, and that determined useful lives were withen an acceptable range. From our procedures, we concluded that the
identified intangible assets’ arising values were within a materially reasenable range.

In forming this conclustan, we considered the level of resulting goodwill as a proportion of the total consideration paid and
benchmarked this against similar transactions in the market. We discussed the results of this analysis with management
and the Audit Committee and and ensured appropnate disclosure was included within the Annual Report which describes the
nature of the arising goodwill.

Based on the work pertormed in this area, we have determined that the retevant intangible assets and goodwill had been
identified and valued appropriately.

In addition, we verified that the basis for allocating the acquired goodwill and intangible assets ta the Marketing segment is
reasanable and consistent with internal management reporting.

HOW WE TAILORED THE AUDIT SCOPE
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and

the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group operates a centralised accounting function in the UK that is responsible {or processing transactions for all entities
within the Group and for consolidated financial reporting.

The whole Group was audited by the UK audit tearn al the centralised accounting function which is based in London.
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MATERIALITY
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, tiring and

extent of our audit procedures on the individuat financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of

misstaterments, both individually and on the financial statements as a whaole.

Based an our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whote as follows:

Overall Group materiality £0.4 million {2015: £0.5 mallian].

How we determined it S% of Adjusted profit before tax [as presented on the face of the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incomel.

Rationale lor benchmark applied We believe that Adjusted profit before 1ax provides us with a cansistent period on period
basis for determining materiality and eliminates the disproportionate effect of a discrete
number of Mems an the benchmark, which was also used (ast year.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report ta them misstatements identified during our audit above £21,500
{2015: £24,500] as well as misstaternents below that amount that, in aur view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

GOING CONCERN

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ Statement, set out on page page 35, in relation to going
concern. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

Under ISAs [UK & Ireland| we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in
relation (o the (irectors’ Statement about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial staternents. We have nothing material to add or 1o draw attention te.

As noted in the directors staternent, the Directors have concluded that it is appropnate to adopt the gong cancern basis in
preparing the financial statements. The gaing concern basis presumes that the Group and Company have adequate resources
to rernmain in operation, and that the Directors intend them to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial statements

were signed. As part of our audit we have concluded that the Directors use of the going concern basis is appropriate. However,

because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are nat a guarantee as io the Group's and
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

CONSISTENCY OF OTHER INFORMATION AND COMPLIANCE WiTH APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS
Companies Act 2004 reparting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken 1n the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the fnancial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,
In additign, i light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group, the Cornpany and their environment obtained in the

course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstaternents in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report. We have nathing to report in this respect.
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In our opinion, based an the work undertaken in the courte of the audit:

= the information gwen in the Corporate Governance Statement set out pages 40 to 41 with respect to internal centrol and
risk management systems and about share capital structures is consistent with the financial staterents and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements; and

= the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out pages 37 to 41 with respect to the Company's
corporate governance code and praclices and about its administrative, management and supervisory bodies complies
with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the Financial Conduct
Authenty.

In addition, in hight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group, the Company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we are required to repart if we have identified any materiat misstatements in the information referred to
above in the Corporate Governance Statement. We have nothing to report in this respect.

iSAs (UK & Ireland] reporting

Under ISAs {UK & Ireland} we are required to report to you i, in our opinign:

« information in the Annual Report is: We have no exceptions (¢ report.
- materially incansistent with the information in the audited financial stalements; or
- apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, sur knowledge of the
Group and Company acquired in the course of performing our audit; or
- otherwise rmisleading.

s the statement given by the directors an page 44, in accordance with provision C.1.1 of the UK We have no exceptions lo report.
Corporale Governance Code [the "Code”), that they cansider the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members
to assess the Group’s and Company's position and parformance, business model and strategy is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company acquired in the course of
performing our audit.

« the section of the Annual Report on pages 42 to 46, as required by provision C.3.8 of the Code, We have no exceptions to report,
descrbing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters communical-
ed by us to the Audit Committee.

THE DIRECTORS’ ASSESSMENT OF THE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP AND OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS THAT WOULD
THREATEN THE SOLVENCY OR LIQUIDITY OF THE GROUP

Under {SAs (UK & Ireland| we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or to draw attention to in
relation to:

= lhe Direclors’ confirmation on page 23 of the Annual Report, in accordance with provision C.2.1 of | We have nothing materiat 1o add
the Code, that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, | or to draw attention to.
wncluding those that would threaten its business maodel, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

« the disclosures in the Annual Report thal describe thase risks and explain how they are being We have nothing material to add
managed or mitigated. or to draw attention to.

¢ the Direclers explanation on pages 26 and 27 of the Annual Report, i accordance with provision | We have nothing material to add
C.2.2 of the Code, as to how they have assessed the prospecis of the Group, over what period or to draw attenlion to.
they have done so and why they consider that peried to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonable expeclation that the Group will be able lo continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of therr assessment. including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary quabifications or assumpticns.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ statement that Lhey have carned out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group and the Directors’ siatement i relation Lo the longer-term vigbibity of the Group Our rewiew was substantially less in
scape than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting thewr statements; checking that
the statements are in alignment with the retevant provisions of the Code; and considering whether the statements are consistent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing our audit. We have nothing to report having performed our review
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ADEQUACY DF ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND {INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: !
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; er

» the Company inancial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Committee Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns. .

We have no exceptions to repert arising from this responsibility.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION :
Directors’ Remuneration Committee Report - Cempanies Act 2006 opinion

In aur opinian, the part of the Direclors’ Remuneration Committee Repart to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report ta you if, in gur opinion, certain disclosures of Girectors’
remuneraton specified by law are not made. We have nc exceptians ta report anising from this responsibility.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are required ta report to you i, in gur apinten, a Corporate Governance Statement has not
been prepared by the Company. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibatity.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corpdrate Governance Statement relating to ten further
provisions of the Code. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT
OUR RESPONSIBILITIES AND THOSE OF THE DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 84, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
[UK & Ireland]. Those slandards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the apinions, has been prepared tar and only for the Company’'s members as a body in accardance
with Chapter 3 of Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person lo whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wriling.

73



INOEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVCLVES

An audit involves obtaining ewdence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sulficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenat misstatement, whether caused by fraud or efror.
This includes an assessment of-

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

_* the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors; and
= the overall presentation of the financiat statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incosrect based on, or
materally incansistent with, the knowtedge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatemnents or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic
Report, Directors Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we consider whether those reports include the disclosures
required by applicable legal requirements.

NNy,

Jutian Jenkins (Seniar Statutery Auditor]

far and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Londan

28 March 2017
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Adjusted Adjusting  Statutory  Adjusted  Adjusting Statutory
Results* Items* Results  Results”* lterns* Resulis
2016 2016 2016 2005 2015 2015
Note £€m Em £m £m £m £m
Revenue 2 725 - 72.5 705 - 70.5
Net operaling expenses 3 163.4] 3.0 {76.4} 160.0} 15,2 175.2
Operating profit / floss) 2.1 {13.0) 3.9 10.5 115.2) 4.7
Finance costs 5 {0.51 - [0.5) 0.7 0.2 10.9]
Profit / lloss) before tax 8.6 (13.0 14.4] 9.8 15.4) {5.61
Taxation 7 e 0.8 (t.04 ne 0.6 (1.3
Profit / {loss] for the period attributable to 4.8 112.2) [5.4) 7.9 14.8] (6.91
owners of the parent
Total comprehensive income / {loss)] attribut- 6.8 112.2) {5.4} 7.9 (14.8] 16.9)
able to owners of the parent
Earnings / [loss] per share attributable to 8
owners of the parent
Basic 4.7p (8.5]p {3.8lp 5.5p {10.3lp [4.8lp
Diluted 4.5p (8.31p {3.8lp 53p 0.1kp [4.Blp

* Alternative performance measure, refer to note 1lb}




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES iN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Reserve
for shares
Share Own Share tobe Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premium issued shares esarnings equity
£m £m £€m £m €m £m £m
At} January 2015 as previously reported 150 {10.1) 0.7 44 a1 76.7 858
Transfers relating to prior perods® - 6 - i4.0 - 0.4
Restated balance at 1 January 2015 15.0 (6.5 0.7 0.4 01 77.4 84.8
Loss and tolal comprehensive {oss - - . - - 6.9 6.9
Transactions with owners:
Dividends [note 25 - - - - - 4.0 14.0)
Fair value of employee services
[note 24] - - - 05 - - 0.5
As at 31 December 2015 15.0 (6.5) 0.7 0.9 0.1 66,2 Th.4
Loss and totat comprehensive lass - - - - - 5.4) 5.4)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends [note 25} . : ; . ' (431 (4.3}
A::quisi!iun of treasury shares
{note 23| - {0.24 - - - - 0.2)
Acquisition of business and assets [nate 13] 0.1 - 0.6 y . . 05 ’
Exercise of share awards - 63 - .2 - fa.1} -
Fair value of emplayee services
[note 24) - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
As at 31 December 2016 15.% {6.4) 1.1 0.8 1R 56.4 671

* See note 1(a]
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Reserve
Share Own Share tor shares Deferred  Relained Total
capital shares premium 1o beissued shares  earnings equity
£m €m £m £m £m £m €m
At 1 January 2015 as previously reported 150 8.2 6.7 4.4 0.t 100.8 1128
Transfers relating to prior penods® - 2.2 - {4.0] - 0.3 (1.5
Restated balance at 1 January 2015 15.0 [&.0) 0.7 0.4 0.1 101.1 113
Loss and lotal comprehensive loss - - - - - 12.01 {2.0)
Transactions with owners:
Dividends [note 25| - - - - - (4.01 {4.0]
Fair value of employee services lnote 24] - - - 05 - - 0.5
As at 31 December 2015 15.0 [6.0 6.7 0.9 0.1 95.1 105.8
Loss and total comprehensive loss - - - - - 2.2l 2.2
Transaclions with owners:
Divdends [note 25! - - - - - (4.3 14.3]
Acquisition of treasury shares - 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Acquisition of business and assets [nole 13} 0.1 - 0.4 - - - 0.5
Exercise of share awards - - - 0.2 - 0.2 -
Farr value of employee services |note 24} - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
As 3t 31 December 2016 15.1 6.2} 1.1 0.8 0.1 88.8 99.7

* See note 1(al

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not

presented its own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements. The parent company's loss for the year

armounted to £2.2m [2015: loss of £2.0m].
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

REGISTERED NUMBER 04948078 31 December 31 December

2014 . 2015
Note €m £€m
Non-current assets
Goodwill ¢ 721 781
Other intangible assets 0 16.7 18.3
Praperty, plant and equipment’ 1" 20 23
Oelerred income tax assets 22 0.6 0.6
LAN Y 99.3
Current assets
Inventones 14 25 2.0
Trade and other recewvables 15 15.7 5.0
Cash and cash equivalents 16 3.4 3.1
216 30t
Total assets 1136 129.4
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 9.7 {12.41
Deferred income (16.9) 117.00
Current income tax liabilihes 20 0.7} 0.9
Borrowings 17 - i1
Prowvisions 21 0.41 -
27.7 {314}
Net current Uabilities i6.11 (1.3
Nonh-cuttent liabilities
Borrowings 17 {17.4] (20.9)
Deferred income tax Liabilities 22 (0.8} 0.7}
118.2) [21.6}
Net assets 67.1 76.4
Capital and reserves attributabie to owners of the parent
Share capital 23 15.1 5.0
Own shares® {6.4) [6.5]
Share premium 1.1 Q.7
Other reserves® a9 1.0
Retained earnings® 56.4 66.2
Total equity YA Tb.4

* Camparative restated - see note 1lal
The financial statements on pages 75 to 132 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2117 and were signed on its

behalf b{:

Swag Mukerji
Chiet Financial Officer
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

REGISTERED NUMBER 04948078

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments 12 134.0 134.0
134.0 1340
Current assets
Trade and other receivables* 15 2.1 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 16 - .
2.1 1.2
Totat assets 136.1 135.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payatles 19 [19.0} {8.51
Borrowings 17 - -
‘ (19.01 (.51
Net current liabilities [16.91 [7.31
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 (17.4) 120.9
{17.4) 120.91
Net assets 99.7 105.8
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share caprtal 23 15.1 15.0
Own shares* {6.2) (6.0
Share premium 11 0.7
Other reserves* 0.y 1.0
Retained earnings*® 88.8 951
Total equity 297 105.8

* Comparative restated - see note 1{a)

The Company has taken advantage of the exemnption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not
presented its own statement of comprehensive mcome in these financial statements. The parent company's loss for the year
amounted to £2.2m (2015 loss of £2.0ml.

The financial statements on pages 77 to 132 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and were signed on its

Swag Mukerii
Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

*  CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

20146 2015
Note £m £m

Cash fiows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 2% 15.3 LA
Tax paid {13l {t.4
Net cash generated from operating activities 14.0 4.7

Cash flows from investing activities
Other acquisitions - settlement of deferred consideration 2 - (0.1
Disposat of {rade and other assets 4 - 0.4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1" 10.31 {0.5)
Purchase of intangible assets 10 2.3 (2.8}
Acquisition of business and assets 13 {1.5) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities 4.1} {3.0)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment for shares bought back 23 0.2] -
interest paid (0.5) 0.9
Dwidends paid to Company's sharehalders 25 (4.3) 4.0
' Proceeds from barrowings 26 1.5 210
Repayment of borrowings 26 5.0 {18.1)
Repayment of loan notes 17 1.1 -
Met cash flows used in financing activities (9.6} {2.0
Net increase / [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0.3 0.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3.1 3.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 186 3.4 R
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
Note £tm Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from gperating activities 26 8.5 20
Cash flows from financing activilies
Interest paid {0.5) © 0.9
Payment for shares bought back 23 [0.2] -
Dividends paid to Campany's shareholders 25 14.3) (40
Proceeds from borrgwings 26 1.5 21.0
Repayment of berrowings 26 5.0 (18.3)
Net cash flows used in financing actmwties (8.5) 128

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - "

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16 -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting poticies adopted in the preparation of these consalidated and Company financial statements
are set out helaw, to the extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes below. These policies have been
cansistenily applied to all the periods presented, unless ofherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group
consisting of Centaur Media Plc and its subsidiaries. Centaur Media Plc is a public company limited by shares and
incarparated in England and Wales.

(A] BASIS DOF PREPARATION

The consolidated and Company financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {1FRS’} as adopted by the European Union and IFRS Interpretations Committee { IFRS IC’] and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2004 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, The financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's
ability to continue trading, and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resources o
continue in operational existence for at least twelve months trom the date of approval of these financiat statements and for
the foreseeable future.

Net debt {see reconciliation in note 26] at 31 December 2014 amounted to £14.1m (2015: £17.9ml. iIn June 2015, the

Group agreed a four year £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Rayat Bank of Scotland and Lloyds, which
runs to 3t August 2019. Cash conversion® during 2016 was strong, with the Group returning to positive working capital
trends after disappointing cash conversion during 2015. The business model is expected to continue to being highly cash-
generative in the future.

The Group has net currant Liabilities which mainly arise from its normat high levels of deferred income relating to events
in the tuture rather than an inability to service its liabilities. An assessment of cash flows for the next four financial years,
which has taken into actount the factors described above, has indicated an expected level of cash generation which would
be sufficient to allow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its
UK subsidiaries, to cover ali principal areas of expenditure, including maintenance, capital expenditure and taxation during
this period, and to meet the financial covenants under the revolving credit facitity.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the
amount, events or aclions, the actual resutts may ultimately differ from those estimates.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(A} BASIS OF PREPARATION [CONTINUED)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

None of the new standards and amendments to standards (including the Annual improvements [2014] to existing
standards} that are mandatory for the first tsme tor the financial year commencing 1 January 2014 affected any of the
amounts recagrused in the current period or any prior penod, and is not likely to affect future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new accounting standards and iterpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2016 reporting periods and have nal been early adopted by the Group.

« IFRS 9: Financial tnstruments is a new standard which enhances the ability of investors and other users of financial
ivformation to understand the accounting for financial assets and reduces complexity. The standard uses a single
approach to determine whether a hnancial assel is measured at armortised cost or fair value, replacing the various
rules in 1AS 39, and also introduces a new expected toss impairment model. This standard is effective for accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018, and the impact is not expected to be material.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 15 a new standargd based on a five-step model frarmework, which
replaces all existing revenue recognition standards. The standard requires revenue ta depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services., This standard is etfective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2018.

IFRS 14: Leases is a new standard which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation

and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract. The standard etiminates the classification of leases as

either operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting
model. A lessee will be required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months
and depreciate lease assels separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement. This standard is
effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019,

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in fulure periods, particularty IFRS 15
and IFRS 16 will impact on the financial statements of the Group. Management 1s currently undertaking an exercise to
quantify the impact of IFRS 15.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

83




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(A} BASIS OF PREPARATION {[CONTINUEDI

Prior period adjustment

Group financial statements

As at 1 January 2015, the value of treasury shares and shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust in the own shares
reserve relating to the vesling of employee share plans [£3.6m) has been transferred to retained earnings, reflecting
shares transferred to employees in prior periods. A transfer has alsa been made from the reserve for shares to be issued
of £4.0m to retained earmings, to account far the vesting of these share plans up to t January 2015 There i1s no overall
impact from these adjustments on total shareholders” equity or other reported measures as at 1 January 2015.

Company tinancial statements

As at 1 January 2015, the value of treasury shares and shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust in the own shares
reserve relating to the vesting of employee share plans [£2.2m] has been transferred to retained earnings, reflecting
shares transferred to employees in prior periods. A transfer has also been made from the reserve for shares to be issued
of £4.0m ta retained earnings, to account for the vest of these share plans up to 1 January 2015. In addition, the toan
balance between the Company and the Empioyee Benefit Trust previously reported as £1.8m has been written down to
account for share plan vests up to 1 January 2015, resulting in a reduction of £1.5m to opening retained earnings and
equity.

{B] PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES

In addition to statutory measures, the Directors use various non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group's
performance, and consider thal presentation of these measures provides shareholders with an additional understanding
of its core trading performance. The measures used are explained and reconciled to their equivalent statutory headings
below.

Adjusted operating profit and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share provide additional useful inforrnation on the
core operational performance of the Group to sharehelders, and review the resulls of the Group on an adjusted basis
internally. The term “adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly
titled profit measurements reported by other companies, It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS
measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made in respect of:

» Exceptional items - the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes them from the
adjusted results where the nature of the item, or its size, is material and likely to be non-recurring in nature {in
the medium term) so as to assist the user of the financial statements to better understand the results of the core
operations of the Group. Details of exceptional items are shown in note 4.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUEDI
{B] PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES [CONTINUEDI

« Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - the amortisation charge for those intangible assets recogrised on
business combinations 1s excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges arising
from non-trading investment activities. As such, they are not considered reflective of the core trading performance of
the Group. Details of amartisation of intangible assets are shown in note 10.

» Share-based payments - share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the
Group as the Directors betieve that the volatility of these charges can distort the user’s view of the core trading
performance of the Group. Details of share-based payments are shown in note 24.

+ Impairment of goodwill - the Directors believe that as well non-cash impatrment charges in relation to goodwill
are generally votatile and matenat, 2nd therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group.
Previous impairment charges were presented as exceptional items. As this charge has recurred in the current year,
it is not deemed to be exceptional, but given its materiality it has been separately reported for the reasons set out
above. Details of goodwill impairment are shown in note 9.

* Earn-out consideration - deferred or contingent consideration in relation to business combinatiens recognised in
the iIncome statement (as a resuli of being classified as remuneration under IFRS 3] is not considered reflective of
the core trading of the Group since it results from investment activities and is volatile in nature. As such, income
statement items relating to business combinations are removed from adjusted results. See notes 13 and 21.

3

« Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidiaries - profit or loss on disposals of busingsses are excluded from
adjusted results of the Group as they are unrelated to core trading, and can distort a user's understanding of the
performance of the Group due to their infrequent and volatile nature. See note 4.

» Other separately reported items ~ certain other items are exciuded from adjusted results where they are considered
large or unusual enough to distort the comparability of core trading results year on year. Details of these separately
disclosed itermns are shown in note 4.

The tax related to adjusting items is the tax effect of the items above that are allowable deductions for tax purposes
{orimarily exceptional itemsl, catculated using the standard rate of corporation tax. See note 7 for a reconciliation between
reported and adjusted tax charges.

Further details of adjusting items are included in note 4. A reconciliation between adjusted and statutory earnings per
share measures ts shown in note 8.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUEDI '
(B] PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES (CONTINUEDI

Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating prohit as follows:

2018 2015
Note €m fm
Loss before tax [4.4) 15.6}
Adjusting items
Impairment of goodwili 9 1.2 119
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 10 23 22
Share-based payments 2% (0.1] 0.7
Earn-oul consideration 13 0.6 0.1
Additional /mpairment of trade recevables 4 1.8 -
Exceptional operating costs 4 1.2 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assels 4 - [0.4)
Exceptional finance costs [ - 0.2
Adjusted profit before tax 8.6 98
Adjusted finance costs 5 0.5 a7
Adjusted operating profit 2.1 10.5
Cash impact of adjusting items 1.3 10.5]
Tax impact of adjusting items ) oe 0.6

Adjusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow is not a measure defined by IFRS. Itis defined as cash flow from eperations excluding the
impact of adjusting items, which are defined above, and including capitat expenditure. The Directors use this measure (o
assess the performance of the Group as it excludes volatile iterns not related to the core trading of the Group, and includes
the Group's management of capital expenditure. Statutory cash flow from operations reconciles to adjusted operating
cash as below-

2016 2015

Em £m

Reported cash flow from operations 15.3 6.9
Cash impact of adjusling items 1.3 0.5
Working capital impact of adjusting items (0.1 -
Capital expenditure 2.8 {3.3)
Adjusted operating cash flow 13.9 33
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
[BI PRESENTATION OF NON-STATUTORY MEASURES (CONTINUED]

Underlying revenue growth

The Directors review underlying revenue growth in order to allow a like for like comparison of revenues between periods.
Underlying revenues exclude the impact of event timing differences, as well the revenue conltribution arising from acquired
or disposed businesses,

Statutory revenue growth reconciles to underlying revenue growth as follows:

Financial Home

Marketing Professional Services Interest Total

£m £m £Em £m Em

Reported revenue 2015 27.0 19.7 120 11.8 70.5
Biennial events - AMS - 10.4) - - 10.4)
Undertying revenue 2015 210 19.3 120 nas 70.1
Reported revenue 2014 29.7 02 9.7 129 725
Acquired business - Oystercatchers n.2 - - - 1.2
Underlying revenue 2014 285 20,2 9.7 12.9 7.3
Reported revenue growth 10% 3% [191% 9% 3%
Underlying revenue growth 6% 5% 119)% 9% 2%

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is not a3 measure defined by IFRS, It is defined as adjusted operating profit befere depreciation and
amortisation of intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combinatien. it is used by the Directors as
a measure to review performance of the Group. and forms the basis of some of the Group’s financial covenants under its
revolving credit facility. Adjusted EBITDA s catculated as follows:

2016 2015

€m €m

Adjusted operating profit (as above] 2.1 145
Depreciation Inote 1t} 0.6 a9
Amortisalion of computer software [note 10] 7 21
Adjusted EBITDA 124 135

Net debt

Net debt is not a measure defined by IFRS. Net debt is calculated as cash less overdralts and bank borrowings under the
Group’'s financing arrangements, The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clarily over the Groups
liquidity as @ whole. A reconctliation between net debt and statutory measures 1s shawn in nate 25.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINVED)
[C) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidaied financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Centaur Media Plc and all of its subsidiaries
after elimination of intercompany transactions.

{i] Subsidiaries

Subsdiaries are all entities controiled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, vaniable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the achwities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date an which control 1s transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactiens between Group companies are ebminated. The
accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Group.

{ii} Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used lo account for all business combinations. The consideration transferred for
acquisition of a subsidiary is measured at the aggregate of fair values of assets transferred, Liabitibes incurred or assumed
to the former gowners of the acquired business and equity tnterests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
subsidiary. Acquisibion-related costs incurred are expensed as incurred and included in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

Any deferred consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value. If the conditions attached to

the consideration indicate that the payment forms part of the acquisition, a provision is made for the future liability

at the acquisition date. Where the deferred consideration is contingent on the continued emptoyment of the vendors,

such arrangements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis

over the period over which the contingent consideration is earned with an associated provision on the balance sheet.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in accordance with 1AS 3% through the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill.

(D] FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

{i! Functionat and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates ['the functional currency’l. The consolidated financial statemnents are
presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Group and Company's functional and presentation currency.




1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(D] FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION [CONTINUED!

{ii] Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transachions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such trapsactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and Liabitities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.

liiil Group Companies

The results and fhinancial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

* Assels and Liabilities fer each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

* Income and expenses for each income statement are transtated at average exchange rates {unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
incorne and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions|; and

« Alt resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consotidation, exchange differences arsing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of
borrowings are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and far
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and labilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

(E) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recewed or receivable and represents amounts recaverable by
the Group for the sales of advertising space, subscriptions and individual publications and revenue from events provided in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and vaiue added tax.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, 1t 15 probable that future econemic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific ¢ritena have been met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Sales of advertising space are recognised in the period in which publication occurs. Sales of publications are recognised
in the period in which the sale is made. Sales of online advertising are recognised over the period during which the
advertisements are placed. Consideration received in advance far events is deferred and revenue 15 recognised in the
period in which the event takes place.

Revenue from subscriptions to publications and digitat services is deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis over
the subscription period. ‘
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDI :
(F] INVESTMENTS

In the Company's financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less prowision for impairment in
value.

(G} INCOME TAX
The tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further includes stems that are never taxable or deductible. The Group and Company's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Delerred tax is provided in futl, using the liability method, on temperary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and Liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the correspoending tax bases used in the computation of
taxabte profit. Deferred tax Liabilities are generally recognised for alt taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available to utilise those termporary differences
and losses. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or the initial
recognition lother than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
tax prafit nor the accounting profit. .
Deferred tax is calculated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the

period when the liability is settled or the asset 15 realised. Deferred tax is charged or crediled to the statement of
comprehensive incame, except when it relates 1o lems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is recognised in other comprehensive income.

(H} LEASES

Agreements under which payments are made to owners in return for the right to use an asset for a period are accounted
for as leases. Leases that transfer substantialiy all of the risks and rewards of ownership are recognised at the
commencement of the lease term as finance leases within property, plant and equipment and debt at the fair vatue of the
leased asset or, if lower, at the present vatue of the minimum lease payments. Finance lease payments are apportioned
between interest expense and repayments of debt. All other leases are classified as operating leases and the cost is
recognised inincorne on a straight-Lne basis.

(1} IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the
carrying value may not be recaverable. An impairment 10ss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds
the higher of the asset’s fair vatue less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. An gsset’s value in use is calculated by
discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted average cost of capital.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]
{J] INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Work in progress cormnprises of costs incurred relating
to pubiicatians and exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date af the event. Cost of sales entirely represents
inventories expensed during the period.

[KI PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated deprecialion and impairment tosses.

The historical cost of property, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of
acquisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets. on a straight line-basis
over the expected useful economic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Leasehold improvements - 10 years or the expected length of the {ease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings - 10 years
Computer equipment -3to Syears

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevailing market rates at the balance sheet date for
equivalent aged assets and depreciation rates adjusted accardingly on a prospective basis. An asset’s carrying amount
is written down irmmediately to its recoverable amount if the assel’s carrying amount 15 grealer than its estimated
recoverabte amount. €ach year, a review of the estimated useful econamic life of each asset (s carried out to ensure
depreciation rates are adequate.

[L) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

lil Goadwill

Where the cost of a business acquisition exceeds the fair values atlributable to the separable net assets acquired, the
resulting goodwill is capitalised and allocated to the cash-generating unit | CBU’} or groups of CGUs that are expected to
benetit from the synergies of the business combination. Gaodwill has an indefinite usefut life and is tested for impairment
annually on 3 Group level or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Each segment is deemed to be a3 CGU. Goodwill and acquired mtangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance
with JAS 34. In assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is required, the carrying value
of the segment 1s compared with its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is measured as the higher of fair value
less cost of disposal and value-in-use Any impairment is recagnised in the statement of comprehensive incomae fin net
operating expenses] and is classified as an adjusting item. impairment of Goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

On the disposal of 3 CGU, the attributable amount of goadwill 1s inctuded in the determination of the profit and lass on
disposal.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDI) '
(L] INTANGIBLE ASSETS [CONTINUED)
{iil Brands and publishing rights, customer relationships and non-compete arrangements

Separately acquired brands and publishing rights are shown at historical cost. Brands and publishing rights, customer
refationships and non-compete arrangements acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair vatue at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accurmutated amortisation and
impairment losses.

{iiil Software

Computer software that 1s not integral to the operalion of the retated hardware 1s carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Costs associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the
Group that will generate probable future economic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when
the criteria of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets are met. They are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

{ivl Amortisation methods and periods

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
economic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Computer saftware -3ta Syears

Brands and publishing rights - 510 20 years

Customer relationships - 51¢ 10 years or over the term of any specified contract
Websites and content - J1a Syears

Non-compete arrangements - Over the term of the arrangement

(M] EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
{il Post-employment obligations

The Group and Company contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently admintstered fund, Contributions to defined
contribution schemes are charged to the statement of comprehensive income when employer contributions become
payable.

lii) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based compensation plans for its employees. The fair value of the
share-based compensation expense is eshimated using either a Monte Carlo or Black-5choles option pricing model and is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period with a correspending increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted:

» Including any market performance conditions;

» Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions [far example, profitability, sales
growth targets, cash flow performance and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time periodl; and

92




1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]
M) EMPLQYEE BENEFITS [CONTINUEDI
{ii] Share-based payments (continued}
« including the impact of any non-vesting condilions ifor example, the requirement for employees to savel.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period. which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected 10 vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. [t recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of camprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. The Company issues new shares or transfers shares fram treasury shares 1o settle share-based compensation
awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital contribution, only if it is left unsettled. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

(N] PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation llegal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estirnated.

Provisions for deferred contingent consideration are measured at fair value. Where the deferred consideration is
contingent on the continued employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis over the period of the arrangement.

{0) SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity. The excess of consideration received in respect of shares issued over
the norminal value of those shares is recognised in the share premium account. incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equily as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buyback or
share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, inciuding any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxesl is deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax eflecls, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Centaur Employees’ Benetit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contributed
equity. The Company also holds a non-distributable reserve representing the fair value of unvested share-based
compensations plans.

93




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED} '
(P! DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company’s final dividend for the year,
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

(Q} SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiet operating
decision-maker. The Executive Commiltee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Group operates in four market-facing
divisions. Marketing, Financial Services, Professional, and Home Interest.

(Rl FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group has applied IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and 1AS 39, Financial Inslruments: Recognition and
Measurement, as cutlined betow:

{i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories where relevant: at fair value through profit or loss; *
loans and receivables; and available-far-sale. The classification depends on the purpase for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All of the Group's financial assets have been classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are non-denvative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and receivables compnise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheet. Loans and receivables are carried at amaortised cost using the effective interest method.

{ii] Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
mterest method, less prowsion for impatrment,

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect atl amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor witl enter bankruplcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
(rmore than 90 days overdue] are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision

15 the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted

at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recagnised in the statement of comprehensive income within net eperating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it 1s written off against the allowance account for trade recewables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against nel operating expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

[R) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED]

(iiil Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or maturing within three months of
the balance sheet date.

{iv} Financial liabilities

Debt and trade payables are recognised initiatty at fair vatue based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and
subsequently at amortised cost.

Interest expense on debt is accounted for using the effective interest methed and is recognised in income.
(vl Trade payables

Trade payables are recogmsed instiatly at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective
interest method.

{vil Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carried subseguently at amortised
cost. Costs of borrowings are recogmised in the statement of camprehensive income as wicurred or, where appropriate,
across the term of the related borrowing.

{viil Derivative financial instruments

The Group does not hold derivative financial instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges.

IS) KEY ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires
management Lo exercise its judgement and to make estimates, The areas where assumptions and estimates are
sigmificant to the consolidated financial staternents are as follows:

i} Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets

tn assessing whether goodwill and other intangible fixed assets are impaired, the Group uses a discounted cash flow
model which includes forecast cash flows and estimates of future growth. If the results of operations in future periods
are lower than included in the cash flow model, impairments may be triggered. Further details of the assumptions and
sensilivities in the discounted cash flow model are included in note 9.

Intangible assets arising on business cambinations are identified based on the Group's understanding of the acquired
bustness and previous experience of similar businesses. Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible
asset are applied where pessible and appropriate, using information reviewed at Board level where available. Discount
rates applied in calculating the values of intangible assets arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are catcutated
specifically for each acquisition, and adjusted to reflect the respective nisk profile of each individual asset based on the
Group’s past experience of similar assets.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) *

(SI KEY ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

[ii) Recoverahility of trade receivables

The recoverability of trade receivables requires judgement. The Group uses all available evidence te determine the
appropriate level of provision for impairment of trade recewables, including known disputes, historical trends in write-offs,
collections post year end and the ageing of the receivables. Further details about trade recewvables are included in note
15 and information about the credit risk and impairment of receivables are shown 10 note 27.

liii} Adjusting items

The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS. Judgement is required to ensure that the classification and
presentation of certain items as adjusting, mcluding exceptional items, is appropnate and consistent with the Group’s
accounting policy. Further details about the amounts classified as adjusting are inctuded in notes 1ib] and 4.

liv] Contingent consideration

The valuation of contingent consideration arising from business combinations ['earn-out” consideration) requires
judgement, including the assessing the probability and quantum of the expected payment. The Group uses all availabte
information, including current and forecasted performance under earn-out arrangements to assess the required level of
provision. ltems relating to earn-aut consideration are treated as an adjusting iterm under the Group's accounting poticy.
Further details about the classification of earn-out consideration are included in notes 1(b] and 4, and details of current
and prior year earn-out arrangements and provisions are shown in notes 13 and 21.

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief operating decision-rmaker, reviewing the Group’s internal
reporting on a monthly basis in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

The Group is organised around four reportable market-facing segments: Marketing, Financial Services, Professional and
Home Interest. The Professional segment aggregates the Legal, Human Resources, Engineering and Travel & Meetings
portfolios, which are deemed to have similar profiles of risk and return. All segments derive revenues from a combination
of tive events, premium content and advertising revenues. Corporate income and costs are allocated to these segments
on an appropriate basis, depending on the nature of the costs, including in proportion to revenues or headcount. There is
no inter-segmentat revenue.

Segment assets consist pnmarily of property. plant and equiprent, intangible assets including goodwill, inventories and
trade receivables. Segment liabilities comprise trade payables. accruals and deferred income.

Corporate assets and liabilities comprise current and deferred tax balances, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings.

Caprtal expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and inctudes additions
resuiting from acquisitions through business combinations.
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2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED]

Financial ’ Home
Marketing Services Professional Interest Group
£m Em £m £m Em
2016
Revenue 29.7 9.7 20.2 12.9 725
Adjusted operating profit 42 0.4 2.t 22 9.1
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (t.6l {021 0.1 6.4) {2.3)
Impairment of goadwill - {7.2) - - 17.21
Earn-aut consideration (0.4} - - - 0.8
Additional impairment of trade receivables (0.8 0.2 f0.51 0.3 1.8
Exceptional operating costs (0.4} i0.21 {a.5] 10.1) 1.2}
Share-based payments 0.1 - - - 0.1
Operating loss 0.9 7.2} 1.0 1.4 (3.9
Finance costs 10.5]
Loss betore tax t4.4)
Taxation Tl
Loss for the year from continuing operations {5.4}
Segment assets 56.1 93 29.5 13.2 108.1
“ Corporate assets 49
Consolidated total assets 113.0
Segment liabilities (1.8 (2.0} (7.2 {4.5) {25.31
Corporate liabilities (20.4}
Consolidated total liabilities 145.91
Other items
Capital expendilure
ltangible and intangible assets| 1.1 0.3 0.7 0.5 2.4
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2SEGMENTAL REPORTING [CONTINUED]

Financial ' Home
Marketing Services  Professionat Interest Group
£m €m £m £m £€m

2015
Revenue 27.0 12.0 19.7 11.8 70.5
Adjusted operating profit 4.1 2.1 2.2 21 10.5
Amonrtisation of 2cquired intangibles (151 (9.3 0.1 163 12.21
Impairment of goodwiil - - 19 - {t1.9]
Earn-out consideration - - 0.1 - 10.1]
Exceptional operating costs 0.1 0.2) 10.21 0.2 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets - - 0.4 - 0.4
Share-based payments 0.31 .1 10.2) 10.1) 0.7
Operating loss 22 1.5 9.9 1.5 {£.7)
Finance costs (0.9
Loss before tax (5.6
Taxation (1.31
Loss for the year from continuing operations 6.9}
Segment assets 57.1 17.9 30.6 15.2 120.8 :
Corporate assets 8.4
Consolidated total assets 129.4
Segment liabilities 17 5] 3.3 (4.3 sl [26.7}
Corporate Labilities [26.3
Consolidated total Liabilities {53.0
Other items )
Capital expenditure
{tangible and intangible assets) 1.4 0.5 0.9 0.6 3.4
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) 2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING [CONTINUED)

Supplemental Information - Revenue by Geographical Location

The Group's revenues from externat customers by geographical location are detailed below.

2016 2015

€m £m

United Kinggom 59.5 59.7
Europe [excluding United Kingdom) 40 37
North America 4.2 39
Rest of world 28 32
725 70.5

Substantially all of the Group's net asselts are located in the United Kingdom. The Directors therefore consider that the
Group currently operates in a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom.

The Group's revenue by type is as follows:

2016 2015
£m €m
Sale of goods and services

Premium content 0.8 19.9
Live events 30.7 27.2
Advertising 20.2 225
Gther 0.8 0.%
72.5 70.%

99




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 NET OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating loss is staled after charging / [crediting):

Adjusted Adjusting  Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results Items Results Results Hems Results
2016 2016 2014 2015 2015 2015
Note £m £m £m £m tm £m
Met foreign exchange gains 0.3 - 0.3 - - -
Empioyee benefits expense 3 30.3 0.9 3tz 30.2 iR ] 36.8
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment " 0.6 R 0.6 0.9 _ 0.9
Amprtisation of intangible assets g 2.7 23 5.0 21 2.2 4.3
Impairment of goodwitl 9 - 7.2 7.2 - e e
Earn-out consideration 13 - 0.6 0.6 - 0.1 0.1
Other exceptional operating costs 4 - 0.3 0.3 - 0.1 0.1
Operating lease rentals 1.8 - 18 18 - 18
Repairs and maintenance expenditure 0.3 - 0.3 02 - 0.2
Impairment of trade recevables 27 0.5 1.8 23 0.6 - 0.6
Share-based payment (credit] / expense 24 - 0.1} [0.1) 5o 0.7 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets 4 - - - - (0.4} (0.4
QOther aperating expenses 26.9 - 269 - 242 - 24.2
63.4 13.0 Tb.4 60.0 15.2 5.2
Cost of sales 34.3 - 343 332 - 33.2
Distribution costs 11 - 11 1.3 - 13
Adrministrative expenses 28.0 13.0 410 255 15.2 407
83.4 13.0 764 400 15.2 75.2

Rental income far the sub-lease of properties under leases totalled £0.7m [2015: £0.6mj.

See note 1[bl and 4 for details of adjusting items.

100




' 3 NET OPERATING EXPENSES [CONTINUED]

Services provided by the Company's auditar

Total adjusting ttems after tax

2016 2015
£'000 £°000
Fees payable ta the Company's auditors for the audit of parent company and consolidated financial 150 139
statements
Additional audit fees relating to priar year 55 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its assaciates far other services:

The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legistalion 10 30
Total audit fees 215 169
Audit related assurance services 28 28
Taxation compliance services 17 1K1
Other taxation adwisory services 1 104
Other assurance services 29 10
Total non-audit fees 140 2713
Total tees 355 442

4 ADJUSTING ITEMS
As discussed in note 1(bl, certain items are presented as adjusting. These are detailed below:
018 2015
Nate £m Em
Exceptional aperating costs
Stalt related restructuring costs [ 0.¢ 0.6
Cosls relating to strategic carporate restructuring initiatives 0.3 0.1
Exceptional operating costs 1.2 0.7
Impairment of geodwill 9 7.2 1.9
Prafit on disposal of trade and assets - 10.4}
Amuortisation of acquired intangible assets 10 2.3 22
Additional impairment of trade receivables 27 1.8 -
Share-based payments 24 (0.1} a7
Earn-out consideration 13 0.6 0.1
Adjusting iterns to operating profit 138 15.2
Exceptional finance costs 5 - 02
Adjusting items to profit before tax 13.0 15.4
Tax relating ko adjusting ttems 7 (0.8 (0.6}
12.2 14.8
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 ADJUSTING ITEMS (CONTINUED)

Exceptional costs
Staff related restructuring cosls

During 2016, exceptional restructuring costs of £0.9m were incurred as a result of the cost reduction programme and
reorganisation of the operational management siructure, including the Executive Committee. Whilst similar costs have
been mcurred previously, such costs linked to the Group's transformation programme are not expected lo recur once this
is completed, and as such these costs are deemed to be exceptional in nature.

In 2015 exceptional restructuring costs of £0.6m were recognised as a result of restructuring activities and changes in
senior management.

Costs relating to stralegic corporate restructuring mitiatives

These cosls relate to professional fees relating 1o strategic corporate restructuring initiatives £0.2m {2015: €6.1m) and
non-trading costs arising on prior disposals £0.1m.

Exceptional finance costs

2015 costs of £0.2m related to unamortised costs of £0.1m relating to the previous facility and legal fees of £0.1m
associated with refinancing of the Group's revolving credit facility in 2015,

Other adjusting items

Other adjusting items relate to the amortisation of acguired intangible assets {see note 10| and share-based payment
costs {see note 24} as well as the items discussed below:

impatrment of trade receivables

An additional, separately reported charge has been recagnised in relation to impairment of trade recewables of £1.8m
(2015: Enill. As a result of disruption during the second half of 2015 and into the early part of 2016 arising from 2 new
accounting system implementation in 2015 an amount of legacy and older debt remains unpaid at 31 December 2016,
which is significantly in excess of levels historically experienced by the Group. A detailed review and risk assessment

to ascertain the recoverabilily of this debt has been undertaken. This review, logether with the fact there is further
extended ageing despite active pursuit of the amounts in 2014 has meant the Group considers it necessary to provide
against polentially uncollectiole aged debt at levels in excess of those which would be required under normal trading
conditions. The quantum of this additional provision arises from unique circumstances following an accounting sysiem
implementation, therefore the charge of £1.8m [2015: €nill has been separately reported in adjusting items. In addition, an
erdinary £0.5m (2013: £0.6m] charge has been recorded in adjusted operating profit, which is not separately reported.

Impairment of goodwill

Duning 2016, an impairment of £7.2m was recognised against the goodwill in the Financial Services segment. During
2015, the impairment charge of £11.9m related to goedwill in the Professional segment. More detail is given in note 7.
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* 4 ADJUSTING ITEMS [CONTINUEDI] ’

Earn-out consideration

in 2016, a charge of £0.6m has been recognised in relation to the Oystercatchers acquisition earn-out, see note 13 for
further details. The charge in 2015 of £0.1m related to anincrease in the deferred contingent consideration associated
with the acquisition of Venture Business Research Limited | VB Research’].

Profit on disposal of trade and assels

On & February 2015, the Group sold the trade and assets of the Aidex Exhibition brand sitting within the Professional
segment for total consideration, and profit on dispesal, of £0.4m.

5 FINANCE COSTS

Mé 2015

£m £m

interest payable on revelving credit facility 0.4 05
Commitrent fees and amortisation of arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit facility 0.1 02
Adjusted finance costs 0.5 2.7
Exceptional finance costs - 0.2
Reported finance costs 0.5 0.9

Exceptional finance costs in 2015 related to unamortised facility costs (€0.1ml and legat fees {£0.1m| associated with the
refinancing of the Group's revolving credit facility.

6 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

2016 2015 2014 2015

Group Group Company Company

£m £m Em £m

Wages and salaries 255 256 D.9 1.2
Social security costs 3.4 3.0 0.1 0.2
Other pension costs 0.9 09 01 -
Adjusted staft cosis 29.8 295 11 1.4
Exceptional redundancy costs (note 4] 0.9 as D -
Earn-out considerabion {note 13) 0.6 o - .
Equity-settled share-based payments (note 24) [0.1] 0.7 . 0.7
Total staff costs 1.2 30.9 1.1 23
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4 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES [CONTINUED) :

The average monthly number of employees employed during the year, inctuding directors, was:

2016 2015 2014 2015

Group Broup Campany Company

Number Number Number Number

Marketing 168 144 - -
Financial Services 48 42 - -
Prolessionat 3 78 - -
Home Interest 81 59 - -
Centrat 184 9 & 4
554 564 & 4

The Company's employees have contracts of service with Centaur Communications Limited and are paid by Chiron
Communications Limited, both Group companies. As the employees prowde services to the Company, their costs are
recharged and the relevant disclosures are made in the financial statements.

ey management compensation

2016 2015
£m £m
Salanies and short term employment benelits 1.9 1.9
Termination benefils .3 0.3
Post-employment benefits 0.1 01
Share-based payments 0.1 0.4
Earn-out cansideration 0.2 -
2.4 2.7

Key management is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members.

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

2014 2015
£m £m
Salaries, fees. bonuses and benefits in kind 1.0 1.0
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes {0.1] 0.2
Post-employment benefits 04 0.1
1.0 1.3
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4 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES {CONTINUED] )

Highest paid director’s remuneration

2014 2015

£m £m

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benelits in kind 0.4 0.4
Amounts recevable under long term incentive schemes 0.1 g1
Post-employment benefits 0.1 0.1
0.6 0.4

No directors exercised share options during the current or prior year. No directors were paid compensation in respect of
loss of office during either year. Further details of Oirectors’ remuneration ace included in the Remuneration Committee
Report between pages 4B to 63.

7 TAXATION
2016 2018
£m €m
Analysis of charge for the year
Current tax
UK Corporation Tax 1.2 15
Overseas tax 0.1 05
Adjustments i respect of prior years [0.2) 0.1
1.1 2.1
Deferred tax [note 22)
Current period 0.3} 10.8)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2 -
[0.1] 0.8]
Taxation 1.0 1.3
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7 TAXATION {CONTINUED) ’ .

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss in the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2015 2015
Em £m
Loss before tax 14.4] [5.61
Tax at the UK rate of corporation tax of 20.0% [2015: 20.25%) (6.9] {r.1l
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.5 0.1
Goodwill impasrment not deductible 1.4 2.4
Etfects of changes in tax rate on deferred tax balances - 0.1)
Relating to intra-group debt simplificatron - (0.6
Adjustments in respect of priar years - 0.1
Effect of different tax rates of subsidianes in other jurisdictions - 0.5
1.0 1.3

The Finance Act 2015 included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017
and to 18% from 1 April 2020. This change had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, the
Group's deferred tax balances are recorded at 19%.

During 2015, the simplification of intragroup financing structures resulted in 3 waiver of certain toan and financing
arrangements between Group companies. The Group held a related deferred tax liability connected to these balances
which was written off to the income statement upon the waver. No current tax arose given the transaction was non-cash
in nature.

A recanciliation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense, taking account of adjusting items as
discussed in note 1|b| and & is shown below:

2014 2015

Em £m

Reported tax expense 1.0 1.3
Effects of:

Amaortisation of acquired imtangible assets 0.3 03

Additionat impairment of trade receivables 0.4 -

Share-based payments f0.1] 0.1

Exceptional expenses 0.1 0.2

Earn-out consideration 01 -

Adjusted tax expense 1.8 1.9
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share | EPS’] 15 calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. 1,191 [2015: 473,859) shares held in the Emptoyee Benefit
Trust and 6,870,437 (2015 6.472,990] shares held in treasury have been excluded in arriving at the weighted average

number of shares.

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of crdinary shares in issue 1 adjusted to assume conversion
of all potentialty dilutive ardinary shares. This comgrises share oplions and awards (including these granted under the
Sharesave plan] granted to Directors and employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of

the Company's ordinary shares during the year. Basic and dituted earnings per share have also been presented on an
adjusted basis, as the Directors believe that this measure is more reHective of the core performance of the Group.

2014 2014 2015 2015
Earnings Weighted Earnings Weighted

attributable average 2015 attributable average 2015

ioownersof numberof Earnings to owners of number of Earnings

the parent shares per share the parent shares per share

£m millions Pence Em millions Pence

Basic {5.4) - 143.6 3.8} {6.91 143.2 {4.8]
Effect of dilutwe securties

Optians* - - - - - -

Diluted 15.4] 143.6 (3.8] 6.9 143.2 [4.81

Adjusted
Basic (5.4} 143.6 {3.8] (6.9 143.2 14.8]
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 2.3 1.6 22 15
[note 10)

Exceptional finance costs - - 0.2 a1

Additional imparment of trade recesvables 18 1.3 - -

Earn-out consideration 0. 0.4 0.1 -

Other exceplional operating costs [note 4] 1.2 0.8 07 0.6

Share-based payments {0.11 fa.11 0.7 05

Impairment of goodwill 7.2 5.0 1.9 83

Profit on disposal of trade and assels - - 10.4] 03

Tax effect of above adjustments (0.8} (0.5) 10.6] {0.4l

Adjusted basic 4.8 1436 4.7 79 143.2 5.5
Etfect of dilutive securities

Qptions - 6.2 {0.2) - 45 (0.2

Adjusted diluted 6.8 149.8 4.5 79 147.7 53

* Due to the reported losses during 2076 and 2015, the effect of share options and awards was not dilutive
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9 GOODWILL '

Group

&m

Cost
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 1551
Additions in the year 1.2
At 31 December 2016 156.3
Accurnulated impairment
At 1 Januvary 2015 65.1
Charge for the year 119
At 31 December 2015 77.0
Charge lor the year 72
At 31 December 2014 8542
Net book value
At 31 December 2014 721
At 31 Decernber 2015 781

Additions in the year relate to the acquisition of the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP (' Oystercatchers’]. See
note 13 for further details.

Goodwill by segment

Each segment 15 deemed to be a Cash Generating Unit {' CGU’], being the lowest level for which cash flows are separately
identifiable. See note 2 for details regarding how the Group’s segments are determined. The majority of the Group’s

goodwill arose on the acquisition of the Centaur Communications group in 2004,

Goodwill 1s allocated to segments as fotlows.

Financiat Home
Marketing Services Professional interest Total
£m Em £m £m £m
At 31 December 20146 7.9 5.1 21.4 7.5 721
At 31 December 2015 87 12.3 2.6 1.5 78.1

Impairment testing of goodwill and acquired intangible assets

During the year, goodwill and acquired intangibie assets were tested for impairmeant in accordance with 145 36. In
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangrble assets is required, the carrying value of the segment
1s compared with its recoverable ampunt. Recoverabte amount 1s measured based on the tugher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of dispasal.
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9 GOODWILL (CONTINUED]

The Group estimates the value-in-use of its CGUs using 2 discounted cash flow rmodel, which adjusts the cash flows for

risks associated with the assels and discounts these using a pre-tax discount rate of 12.6% (2015 13.2%!. The discount

rate used is consistent across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered ta have simlar
risks and rewards.

The key assumptians used in calculating value-in-use are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA, discount rate and
the terminal growth rate  The Group has used formally Board approved forecasts for the first four years of the calculation
and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.0% (2015: 2.25%). For impairment testing purposes, these are then adjusted to
reflect any historical levels of forecasting inaccuracy. This timescale and Lhe terminal growth rate are both considered
appropriate gwen the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues and are consistent with the Group's strategic planning
horizons.

The assumptions used in the calculations of value-in-use for each segment have been derived based on & combination of
past experience and management'’s expectations of future growth rates in the business.

At 3t December 2016, before impairment testing, goodwill of £€37.9m, £12.3m, £21.6m and €7.5m was allocated to the
Marketing. Financial Services, Prolessional and Home Interest segments respectively. The Financial Services segment
has been aftected by weaker print and advertising trends leading to a reduced growth outlook, The goodwill relating

to the Financial Services segment has therefore been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of an
impairment loss of £7.2m. During 2015, an impairment of £11.9m was recognised against the carrying value of goodwill
in the Professienal segment. Impairment charges are recognised as an adjusting item in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy [see note 1ib]).

For the remaining segments, Marketing, Professional and Home Interest, the value-in-use calculations exceed the
carrying values in the sensitivity scenarios at 31 December 2016. However, as a result of the impairment recognised
during 2015, the headroom in the Professional segment is significantly reduced once sensitivities have been applied,

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-use calculations, holding all other variables constant, to:

(il apply 8 5% reduction to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash Hows. This would result
in a further imparrment of £0.6m in the Financial Services segment |2015; further rmpairment of £1.2m in the
Professional segment). No impairment would occur in any of the other segments.

{n}  apply a 0.5% increase in discount rate from 12.6% to 13.1%. This would result in a further impairment of £0.4m
in the Financiat Services segment [2015: increase to 13.7% would result in a further impairment of £+.0m in the
Protessional segment]. No impairment would occur i any of the other segments.

{inl  reduce the lerminal vatue growth rate from 2.0% to 1.75%. This would result in a further impairment of £0.1m in
the Financial Services segment [2015: 0.25% reduction to 2.0% would result in a further impairment of €0.4m in
the Professienat segmentl. No impairment would cccur in any of the other segments,
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10 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS '

Separately
Brands and acquired
Computer pubtishing Customer websites and MNon-compete
software rights® relationships® content* arrangements* Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £€m

Cast
At 1 January 2015 5 5.6 114 47 0.5 319
Additions - separately acquired 1.7 - - - - 1.7
Additions - internally generated 1.2 - B - - 1.2
Disposals or expiry [1.51 - - - - 1.5l
At 31 December 2015 10.9 5.6 1.6 47 0.5 333
Additions - separately acquired 1.3 - - - - 1.3
Additions - internally generated 1.0 - - - - 1.0
Additions - business combination - 0.2 0.9 - - 11
{note 13!
Disposals or expiry - - - - [0.51 0.5
At 31 December 2016 13.2 5.8 12.9 CAT - 36.2 )
Accumulated amortisation ) o
At 1 January 2015 34 15 40 2.4 . 0.5 12.0
Amortisation charge for the year . 21 0.2 1.2 o8 - 4.3
Disposals or expiry (1.3) - - - - [1.3]
At 31 December 2015 4.2 1.7 5.2 34 0.5 15.0
Amortisation charge for the year 2.7 0.4 1.1 0.8 - 5.0
Disposals or expiry - - - - [0.5¢ {0.5)
At 31 December 2014 8.9 2.1 6.3 [ % - 195
Net book value at 31 December 2014 6.3 3.7 6.2 0.5 - 1.7
Net ook value at 31 December 2015 6.7 39 6.4 1.3 - 18.3
Net book value at 1 Januvary 2005 6.1 41 7.6 21 - 19.9

* Amortisation of £2.3m {2015. £2.2m] of acquired intangible asseis from business combinations is presented as an
adjusting item {see note 1Ib] for further infarmation|.

The Company has no intangible assets {2015: €£nit]. Amortisation of intangible assets is included in net operating expenses
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

110




11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehotd Fixtures Computer
impravements and fittings equipment Total
£m Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 29 LR Q.7 4.5
Additions a1 02 05 0.8
Oispasals (6.9 {0.5¢ 0.31 (.7
At 31 December 2015 21 1X 09 L
Additions - separately acquired 0.1 - a1 0.2
Additions - business cambination {note 13] - 0. - 0.t
At 31 December 2014 22 0.7 1.0 R4
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Janyary 2015 15 0.5 - 20
Depreciation charge for the year 03 6?2 0.4 0.9
Disposals (0.8 10.5) (0.3 1.6}
At 31 Becemnber 2015 1.0 0.2 0.1 1.3
Additions - business combination [note 13} - . - -
Depreciation charge for the year 02 01 0.3 0.6
AR 31 December 2014 1.2 0.3 0.4 1.9
Net book value at 31 December 2014 1.0 6.4 0.6 2.0
Nel book value at 31 December 2015 1.1 0.4 0.8 2.3
Net book vatue at 1 January 2015 1.4 0.4 0.7 25

The Company has no property, plant and equipment (2015:

£nil).
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* 12 INVESTMENTS

investments
in subsidiary
undertakings
Company £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 146.2
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 12.2
Net book amount
1340

At } January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014

Name

Proportion of
ordinary shares
and voting
rights hald (%}

Principal activities

Country of incorporation

Ascent Publishing Limited

Centaur Communicatians Limited !
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited
Centaur Media USA Inc ?

Chiron Cemmunications Limited
E-consultancy.com Limited
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pty Limited 3
E-consultancy Australia Pty Lid *
E-consultancy LLC ¥

Investment Platforms Limited

Maylield Publishing Ltd

Pro-talk Ltd

Taxbriefs Holdings Limited

Taxbriefs Limited

The Forum for Expatriate Management
Lirnited

The Profile Group [UK] Limited

Your Business Magazine Limited
Venture Business Research Limited
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100
100
100
100
160
160

100
100
i00

Digitat and print publishing

Helding company and agency services
Exhibitions

Digital information, training and events
Digital information, traming and events
Digitat information, training and events
Digital information, traiming and events
Digital information, training and events
Digital information, training and events
Research dala and analysis
Investment company

Digital Publishing

Holding company

Digital and print publishing

Events and information services

Digital information services
investment company
Research data and analysis

United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Singapore
Australia

United States
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

' Directly owned by Centaur Media Ple

2 Registered address is 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400 Wilmington, GE19808, USA. Functional currency is USD.
3 Registered address is 30 Cecil Street. #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712. Functional currency is USD.

“ Registered address 1s Levet 17, 383 Kent Street, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia. Funclional currency is AUD.
5 Registered address is 41 East. 11 Street, 11FL, New York, NY 10003, USA. Functional currency is USD.

The registered address of all subsidiary companies 1s 79 Wells Street, London, WI1T 30N, United Kingdom, with the
exception of those identified above. The functional currency of all subsidiaries is GBP except for those identified above.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all entities controlled by the Company at 31

December 2016.
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 30 Septemnber 2016, Centaur Commumcations Limited, a Group company, acquired the business and assets of The
Qystercatchers LP [ Oystercatchers), a specialist marketing consultancy. Oystercatchers will build on the Group's
Econsultancy and other marketing assets to provide an international leading consultancy in the marketing sector, The
results of Oystercatchers is inctuded in the Marketing segment. Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Warking captal

2016
£m

Purchase consideration:
Cash paid 1.5
Ordinary shares issued 0.5
Delferred consideration 0.2
0.1

Total purchase consideration

Total purchase consideration 23
The fair value of the 1,202,266 Centaur Media Ple shares issued as part of the consideration paid for Oystercalchers
{£0.9m] was based on the agreed issue value of 45.747p per share.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:
2016
Fair value
£m

Intangible assets - brands 0.2

Intangibles assets - cuslomer contracls and relationships 0.9

Total intangible assets (note 101 1.1

Property plant and equipment 0.1

Trade receivables 0.9

Prapayments and other debtors 01

Cash -

Trade payables (0.1}

Accruals 0.2}

Deferred Income 10.51

Social security and other taxes {0.1)

Delerred tax liabilities 10.21

Net wdentifiabie assets acquired 1.1

Goodwitt (note 91 1.2

2

and the brand of €0.2m. The fair value of the customer contracts and relationships was estimated using a discounted
cash flow approach based on revenue and profit forecasts over a period of five years, and discounted using the Group's
pre-tax discount rate of 12.6%.

The goodwill is attributable Lo the workforce of the acquired business. It will net be deductible for tax purposes. Certain
intangible assets have been separately identified on acquisition, including customer contracts and relationships of £0.9m
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13 BUSINESS COMBINATION [CONTINUED)
The useful economic tife of the intangible assets is as follows:

= Brands - Syears
= Customer contracts and relationships - 5 years

Contingent consideration

in the event that certain pre-determined EBITDA levels are achieved by Oystercalchers for the year ending 31 March 2017,
additional consideration of up to £1.2m may be payable in cash {75%] and shares (25%]) during Q2 2017. The contingent
consideration is dependent on the continued employment of 5 key persons by Oystercatchers and is therefore treated

as remuneration. 1t will be recognised in profit and loss under 1AS 19 ifor the cash element] and IFRS 2 [for the share-
based payment element} to the extent it becomes payable. An expense of £0.6m has been recogmised in the income
statement in the year as an adjusting itern with a proviston of £0.4m and credit to equity of £0.2m, which assumes earn-oul
performance measures will be achieved and all employees will stay 1n employment. See notes 21 and 24,

The potential undiscounted amount payable under the agreement is between £nit for EBITDA below £0.7m and £1.2m for
EBITDA above £0.9m. The fair value of the contingent consideration is undiscounted as the payment is due in less than
one year.

Detferred consideration .

£0.2m of deferred consideration is payable i cash on 1 October 2017 subject to any claims’made under the purchase
agreement. £0.2m has been recognised in ather liabilities in respect of this deferred consideration.

Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade receivables is £0.9m. The gross contractual amount for trade receivables due is £0.9m, all
of which has since been collected.

Revenue and profit contribution

Oystercatchers contributed revenues of £1.2m and net profit of £0.3m to the Group for the period from 1 October to 31
Decembear 2016. If the acquisition had sccurred on 1 January 2016, Oystercatchers pro-forma revenue and profit for the

year ended 31 December 2016 would have been £3.2m and £1.0m respectively.

There were no acquisitions during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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14 INVENTORIES *

2018 2015
Group Group
€m £m
Wark in progress 2.5 2.0
The Company had no mnventory at 31 December 2016 (2015: £nil].
15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2014 2015 2014 2015
Group Group Company Company
tm €m Em £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 15.8 208 - -
Less- provision far impairment of receivables [note 27} 2.1 (0.9} - -
Trade receivabies - net 13.1 19.9 - -
Recevables from subsidiaries - - 1.6 0.7
Receivable from Employee Benefit Trust * - - 0.2 0.3
Other receivables 0.8 23 0.3 02
Prepayments 1.2 1.7 - -
Accrued income 0.6 1.3 - -
15.7 250 2.1 1.2

* As restaled, see note 1lal.

2. 7%k

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Receivables from subsidiaries are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.43% (2015

2016 2015 2014 2015

Group Group Company Company

€m £m £m Em

Cash at bank and in hand 3.4 31 - B
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17 BORROWINGS '
2014 2015 2016 2015
Group BGroup Company Company
£tm Em £m £m
Current liabilities

Loan notes - 11 - .
- 1.1 - R

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease payabies - 0.1 - 0.1
Arrangement lee in respect of revotving credit facility 0.1 [0.2) 0.1) (0.2
Revolving credit facility 17.5 210 17.5 21.0
17.4 20.9 17.4 20.9

Loan notes tolalling £1.1m were issued in November 2015 to settle the deferred consideration in relation to the VB
Research earn-out. Interest was payable on these toan notes at a variable rate of 1% above LIBOR. The loan notes were
settled during 2016. Further details about the Group's borrowings are provided in note 27.

18 FINANCE LEASES

Lease payables are secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default.

2016 2015 2016 2015
Group Group Company Company
€m £m £m €m

Gross flinance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - 01 - 0.1
Present value of finance lease Liabilities - 0.1 - 01

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

2016 2015 2014 2015
Group Group Company Company
€m £m £m £€m
Later than 1 year and no later than S years - 0.1 - 0.1
Present value of finance lease liabilities - 0.1 - A

The Group leases office equipment with a carrying amount of £0.1m (2015: £0.1m] under 2 finance lease expiring in ane
year. There were no new finance leases during 2016 or 2015.
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 31 Becember 2016

2014 2015 2016 2015
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 3.7 3.0 - -
Payables to subsidiaries - - 18.9 83
Social security and other taxes 0.8 1.1 - 6.t
Other payables 1.3 2.4 - -
Accruals 3.9 59 0.1 0.1
%7 12.4 19.0 8.5
Payables to subsidiares are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.43%
12015: 2.71%).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approximates their fair value.
20 CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
2018 2015
Group Group
£m Em
Corporation tax 0.7 09
21 PROVISIONS Deferred
consideration
Group
£m
At 1 January 2005 11
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the year Q.1
Utilised during the year (1.21
At 31 December 2015 -
Charged o the stalement of comprehensive income during the year 0.4
0.6

remaining balance lsee note 17 for more details).

Deferred consideration in the current year relates to the acquisition of Oystercatchers and is payable within 1 year {see
note 13]. The armount provided was dependent on continued employment of the former owners of the business and was
treated as post-acquisition remuneration accruing over the period to the end of the performance period. All amounits
represented the Directors’ best estimate of the amount to be paid at the balance sheet date.

Deferred consideration in the prior year related to VB Research. The amount of deferred contingent consideration payable
with respect to the acquisition of VB Research was dependent on the profits generated by VB Research in the period 1
July 2014 to 30 June 2015 (the performance period|, subject ta 3 maximum earn-out payment of £5.0m. The deferred
consideration was settled (n the grior year through the payment of £0.1m in cash and the tssue of loan notes for the
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The movernent on the deferred income tax account is shown below.
Acceterated Other
capital temporary Tax
allowances differences losses Total
£m £m €m £m
Net asset / (liability] at 1 January 2015 6.3 n7 0.5 (0.9}
Recognised in the statemem of comprehensive income Q.1 1.0 10.3) 0.8
Net asset / [hability] at 31 December 2015 0é 07 0.2 191
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2} - - i0.21
Recognised i the statement of comprehensive income 0.2 01 - 0.3
Arising on business combination - 0.2 - 0.2
Net asset / {liability) at 31 December 2014 0.4 (0.8} 2 (0.2

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an
intention to settle the balances net.

2014 2015

Group Group

£m £m

Oeferred tax asset , 0.6 0.4
Deferred tax liabilitigs {0.8! t6.71
Total 10.2} 0.1

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of £1.3m [2015: £1.4m] available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset of £0.2m {2015: £0.2m) has been recognised in respect of £1.0m {2015: £1.1m] of such
tax losses. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining £0.3m {2015: €0.3m] as it is not currently
considered probable that there will be future sufficient taxable pralits available. Unrecognised losses may be carried
forward indefinitely. Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are expected ta be materially realised after 12 months,

Lt}
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23 EQuUITY
Nominal Number
value of
Ordinary shares of 10p each fm shares
Authorised share capital -~ Group and Company
At 1 January 2015, 31 Decemnber 2015 and 31 December 2014 20.0 200,000,000
|ssued and fully paid share capital - Group and Company
At 1 January and 31 December 2015 15.0 150,207,940
Acgquisition of business 0.1 1,202,266
At 31 December 2014 15.1 151,410,226

Deferred shares reserve

The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 [2015: 800.000) deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restricted voting
nights and have no right to receive a dvidend payment in respect of any financial year.

Reserves for shares to be issued

The reserve for shares 1o be issued is in respect of equity-settled share-based compensation plans. The changes to the
reserve for shares to be issued represent the total charges for the year relating to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with employees as accounted for under IFRS 2 and prior year restatement relating Lo previous vests (see nate
1lall.

See note 24 for informaticn regarding the number of shares subject te options, the periods in which they were granted and
the periods in which they may be exercised.

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represents the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At
31 December 2016, 6,870,437 [2015: 6,472,990] 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 91,191 (2015: 473,859 10p
ordinary shares are held in the Employee Benefit Trust.

During 2016, the Company purchased 397,447 ordinary shares to be held in treasury in order to meet future obligations
ansing from share-based rewards to employees. The buyback programme was approved by sharehotders at the Annual
General Meeting held on 11 May 2014 up to a value of £9.0m. The shares were acquired at an average price of 42.75p per
share, with prices ranging from 39p to 4&p. The total cost of £0.2m (2015: Enill has been recognised in other reserves in
the own shares reserve in equity.

See note 1[al for details of the prior year reslatement of this reserve.
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group's share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

2016 208
Equity-settied Plans €m Em
LTe 0.1) Q.6
Retention Plan - 01
SELTIP - -
Share Incentive Plan . -
Total equity-settled incentive plans 0.1} 0.7
Deterred contingent consideration [note 13} 0.2 -
Total share-based payment expense 0.1 0.7

The Group s share-based payment schemes are equity-settled. Opening reserves tn equity have been restated to account
for historical share plan vests. See note 1{al for details.

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Group operates a Long Term Incentive Plan [LTIP'| for Executive Directors and selected senior management, This is B
an existing incentive poticy and was approved by sharehotders at the 2006 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of

grant and the conselidated income statement is charged over the vesting period, taking into account the number of shares
expected to vest. Full details of how the scheme operates are included in the Remuneration Report.
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED]

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs-

LTIP 2016 LTIP2014 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LYIP 2004 LTIP 2065 LTIP 2006

Grant date 04.10.16  22.09.16 30,03, 27.10.15 10.08.15 26.03.15 040814 08.11.12
Share price at grant date pl £4.00 41.00 49.00 78.25 80.5 495 54.75 54.25
Fair vatue {p} 18.04 16,81 2092 47.42 48.22 42.43 48.94 4736
Exercise date 04.10.19  22.09.1% 36.03.19 28.10.18  t0.08.18 22.03.18 040817  15.03.17
Exercise price €nit £ni{ €nil Enil €nil £nit £nil £nit

Number of awards

Balance at - - - 143,038 108,558 2,218,574 155,897 1,438,909
1 January 2015

Granted during the year 573,395 66,667 3,752,937 - - - - -
Forfeited during the year - - 11,238,140) - - (1,103,135) - (436,364]
Balance at

31 Decemnber 2014 573,395 366,667 2,514,797 143,036 108,554 1,115,439 155,897 1,002,545

Exercisable at
31 December 2016 - B - - - - - R

Batance al 1 January 2015 - - - - - - 155,897 1,706,182
Granted during the year - - - 143036 108556 2847749 - -
Forfeited during the year - - - - - 1629,1751 - (267,273
Balance at

31 December 2015 - - - 143036 108556 2218574 155,897 1,438,909

Exercisabie at
31 December 2015 - - - - - . . .

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted average exercise price of Enil (2015: Enill and a weighted
remaining life of 2.0 years (2015: 2.0 years.

LTIP201é LTIP2016 LTIP2006 LTIP2006 LTIP 2006  LTIP 2006 LYIP 2006 LTIP 2004

Grant date 04.10.14 22.09.16 30.03.16 27.10.15 10.08.15 26.03.15 05.08.14 08.11.13

Expected volatitity [%} 43.8 438 318 28.1 358 39.4 43.6 43.8

Expected dividend yield (%] - - - - - - - -

Risk tree interest rate (%] 0.04 4.06 0.48 0.49 1.02 .58 147 0.92

Model of valuation used Stochastic  Stechastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic
2014 Retention Plan

The 2014 Retention Plan was introduced in June 2014 and is now closed to new participants, Awards vested over a penod
of two or three years, with the only condition being continued employment. Awards were granted under this scheme in
2014 for no consideration and no exercise price. The Retention Plan did not result in the issue of any new ordinary shares
as this plan was not approved by Shareholders. The awards were settied from the shares held i the Employee Benefit
Trust during 2016.
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED!

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan {'SELTIF')

The Centaur Media Pic 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 'SELTIP') was introduced during 2011 and
was approved by shareholders at the 2010 AGM. This is not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a 3 year period
with service and performance conditions. Awards were granted under this scheme in 2011 far no consideration and no

exercise price. This scheme has closed to new awards.

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summarised in the following table:

Threshold PBTA Profit SELTIP  Total bonus Bonus pool Number of shares
Financial year profit achieved grawth contribution pool allocated* awarded in total**
2013 £8.0m £8.4m £0.6m 30% £0.1m £0.1m 118,851

*The Remuneration Committee did not allocate the entire bonus pool in 2013
** Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment

Retention Plan and Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan

These awards were priced using Lhe following models and inputs: . T
2014 Retention Plan SELTIP 2013
Grant date 30.06.14 15.09.11
Share price at grant date 62.38 3388
Fair value 52.64 23.7%
Exercise date 31.12.16 17.09.14
Exercise price £nil Enil
Number of awards
Balance at 1 January 2015 382,668 4,862
Exercised during the year [382,5481 -
Balance at 31 December 2016 - 6,862
Exercisable at 31 December 2014 - 6,862
Average share price at date of exercise ipl 1. -
Balance at 1 January 2015 382,668 6.862
Balance at 31 Deceamber 2815 382,668 6,862
Exercisable at 31 December 2015 - 6,862

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted average exercise price of £nit (2015 Enil] and a weighted
remaining life of 5.7 years (2015: 1.0 years).
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24 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs

2014 SELTIP

Retention Plan 2013

Grant date 30.06.14 15.09.11
Expected volatility (%) 49.5 54.0
Expected dividend yield (%} &7 5.26
Risk Iree interest rate (%] 1.22 0.57
Model of valuation used Black-Scholes Black-Schotes

Share Incentive Plan

The Group has a Share Incentive Plan, which is a HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged plan, which provides employees with
the opportunily to purchase shares in the Company. This plan is open to all employees who have been employed by the
Group tor more than 12 months. Employees may invest up to €1,800 per annum lor 10% of their salary if less) in ordinary
shares in the Campany. which are held in trust, The shares are purchased in open market and are held in trust for each
employee. The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time, or tax-free after tive years. The Group maiches the
contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased. Other than continuing employment, there are no other
performance conditions attached to the plan.

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group.

2016 2015
Group Group
Number of outstanding matching shares 27,727 78,602

Deferred contingent consideration

The Group may have to pay additional consideration in relation to the acquisition of Oystercatchers made on 30 September
2016 {grant date) which is to be partly settled by shares in the Group. The total consideration payable in shares is up to the
maximum value of £0.3m and will be issued at the share price on the settlement date. The total cost s being spread over
the vesting period from 1 October 2016 to 31 March 2017 and a charge of £0.2m has been recognised in the Statement of
Camprehensive Income, with a credit recognised in equity during the year. The fair value of the share based payment is
deemed to be the maximum value of consideration payable. See note 13.
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25 DIVIDENDS
2014 2015
£€m €m

Equity dividends
Finat dividend for 2014: 1.3p per 10p ordinary share - 1.9
Interim dividend for 2015 1.5p per 10p ordinary share - 2.1
Final dividend for 2015 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 2.2 -
Interim dividend for 2014. 1.5p per 10p ordinary share 2.t -
4.3 4.0

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £2.2m [1.5p per share] is propoesed by the Directors and, subject
to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 26 May 2017.

26 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconcitiation of loss for the period to net cash inflow from operating activities: .

o

2014 2015 2016 2015
Group . Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Loss for the period (5.4] (6.91 2.2 2o
Adjustments for: )
Tax 1.0 1.3 (0.5) -
Interest expense 05 0.9 1.0 0.9
Depreciation 0.6 0.9 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 5.0 4.3 - -
Impairment of goodwilt 7.2 iLe - -
Earn-out costs 0.6 0.1 - -
Share-based paymenl credit) / charge [0.1) a.7 - 0.7
Profit on disposal of trade and assets - (0.4) - -
Other [a.1} (0.3 - .2
Changes in working capital {excluding effects
of acquisitions and disposals of subsidiariesl
Increase in inventories {0.5) 0.2 - -
Decrease / lincrease] in trade and other recewvables 9.2 9.3] - (0.6
|Decreasel / increase in trade and other payables (2.8) 1.4 10.2 3.2
|Decreasel / increase in deferred income (0.t} 1.7 - -
Cash generated from operating activities 15.3 6.1 8.5 2.0
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26 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT {CONTINUED]

Analysis of changes in net debt

At 31 At 31

December Net December

2015 cash flow 2014

Group HNote £m £m €m
Cash and cash equivalents 16 3.1 0.3 3.4
Revolving credit facility 17 [21.01 35 117.5)
Net debt 117.9] 3.8 [14.1}
A 31 At

December Net December

2015 cash flow 2014

Company Note €m £m €m
Cash and cash equivalents 14 - - -
Revolving credit facility V7 {21.00 35 (172.5)
Net debt (21.00 35 {17.51
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management

The Board has gverall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s risic management policies. The Board recewves
monthly reports from the Chiet Financial Gfficer through which it reviews the effectiveness of policies and processes put
in place to manage risk. The Board sets policies that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating
effectiveness of the Group.

The Group's activities expose it to a varety of financat risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk, hquidity risk, capital
risk and currency risk. Of these, credit risk and liquidity risk are considered the mast significant. This note presenls
information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks.

Categories of financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted. including the criterta for recegnition, the basis of
measurerment and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset,
financizl liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note tr]. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at
amortised cost.

2014 2015
Note £m £m
Financial assets ’
Cash and bank balances 16 3.4 31
Trade receivables - net 15 13.1 1.9
Other receivables 15 0.8 2.3
Total financial assels 17.3 25.3
Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings 17 17.5 no
Loan notes 17 ] - 1.1
Finance tease payables 18 - 0.1
Trade payables 19 3.7 30
Accruals ' 19 3.9 5.9
Provisions 21 0.4 -
Other payabies 19 1.3 2.4
Total financial liabilities 25,8 3315

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are trade and other receivables (noie 15] and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk
refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial toss to the Group. The
carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses. represents
the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financiat assets. Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. The
Group does not consider that 1t is subject to any sigmificant concentrations of credit risk.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industries and
gecgraphies. The Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk in relation to any single counterparty or group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced predominantly by the
circumstances of indiwdual customers as opposed to industry or geographic trends.

The business assesses the credit quality of custorners based on their financial position, past experience and other
qualitative and quantitative factors. The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment
terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of invoice. Under normal trading conditions, the Group is exposed
to relatively low levels of nsk, and polential losses are mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the
requirement for events and certain premium content subscription invoices to be paid in advance of service delivery.

The credit controt function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trade
receivables balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.

Any trade receivable balance which is objectively determined to be uncollectible is written off the ledger. with a charge
taken through the Statement of Camprehensive Income. The Group also records a prowsion for estimated impairment
losses on its trade receivables batances. All batances past due are reviewed, with those greater than 0 days past due
considered ta carry a higher level of credit risk. Specific provision 1s made against customer balances with known credit

’ issues or where debt has been referred to a collection agency. The remaining past due balances are then analysed,
} with balances relating to revenue recognised in advance, customers on payment plans and non-payment resulting
' from adrministrative queries considered to be of lower risk. A judgement is applied to the net batance based on histeric

experience on a percentage basis taking into account both the age and the reason itesns remain unpaid.
Impairment lesses are taken through administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

An additional, separately reported. charge for impairment of trade receivables of £1.8rn has been made during 2014 1n
excess of the charge which would arise under normal trading conditions and recorded in adjusted operating profit of
£0.5m {2015: £0.6ml. Following the disappointing working capital performance in 2015, and notwithstanding the return

10 strong cash generation in 2014, there remains a legacy of old debt which arose during a period of disruption during the
second half of 2015 and into the early part of 2014 ansing from the implementation of a new accounting system. The gross
trade receivables balance at 31 Decernber 2014 of £15.8m rernains in excess of historical levels, albeit reduced from the
tevel at 31 December 2015 of £20.8m. Whilst the Group continues ta make every effort in collecting all amounts due to it,
given the age and magnitude of this outstanding debt, the Directors believe there remains significant uncertainty in being
able to collect these amounts and therefore consider the value of this debt to be impaired. The underlying risk profile of
the Group’s debtors has not fundamentally worsened, however the ageing has made the debt balances harder to collect.




27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The ageing of trade receivables according to their original due date s detailed below-

2016 2014 2015 2015

Gross Provision Gross Provision

£m £em £m £m

Not due b4 - 9.0 -
0-30 days past due 3.2 - 37 -
31-460 days past due 1.2 {0.1) 1.7 -
61-90 days past due 0.9 0.9} 1.4 -
Over 90 days past due 4.1 (2.51 50 10.9f
15.8 2.7 208 {0.9)

Trade receivables that are less than 3 months past due are generally not considered to be impaired, except where specific
credit issues or delinguency in payments have been identified. At 31 December 2016, there are debtors greater than

90 days past due with a carrying value of £1.6m [2015: £4.1m] which have not been provided against. In making the
assessment that these amounts are not impaired, the Directors have considered the quantum of amounts included in
gross trade receivables which relate to amounts not yet included in income, including pre-event debt included in deferred
income and amounts relating to VAT, The credit quality of trade receivables not yet due nor impaired has been assessed
as acceptable. A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the Group’s exposure.to unimpaired trade receivables
at 31 December 2016. If the prowision methodotogy was expanded to increase the age of all receivables by an additional 30
days. without receiving any further payments in relation to those receivables. the prowision requirement would increase by
£0.2m.

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is detailed below:

2016 2015

Group Group

Em £m

Batance at start of year 09 0.5

Utitised (a.51 (0.2}
Additional provision charged to the statement of comprebensive income:

Recorded in adjusted operating profit 0.5 0.6

Adjusting item in operating loss 1.8 -

Balance at end of year 2.7 09

The Directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to therr fair value.

Cash and cash equivaients

Banks and financial institutions are independently rated by credit rating agencies. We chooese only to deal with those with
a minimum A rating. We deterrmine the credit quality for cash and cash equivalents to be strong.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

Other receivables

Other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. These are primarily made up of sundry receivables, including
employee-related debtors and receivables in respect of distribution arrangements.

Liquidity risk

Liguidgity risk 1s the risk tha! the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they faft due. Throughout the
year ended 3 December 2014, and for the foreseeabte future, the Group was and is expected to be in a net borrowings
positton. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and working capial credit facilities, and by
continugusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

The total facility available to the Group is £25.0m and is availabte through to August 2019. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had cash of £3.4m [2015: £3.1m} and undrawn toan facilities to further reduce its liquidity risk of £7.5m [2015:
£4.0my).

The follawing tables detail the financial maturity for the Group’s financial Labilities:

Book Fair Less than
value value 1 year 2-Syears
£m £m £€m Em
At 31 December 201&
Financial liabilities
Variable interest rate instruments 175 17.5 - 17.5
Non-interest bearing 9.3 9.3 9.3 -
26.8 268 9.3 17.5
At 31 December 2015
Financial liabilities
Variable interest rate instruments 221 22.1 11 2.0
Fixed interest rate instruments 0.1 01 t1
Non-interest bearing 113 11.3 1.3 -
335 335 125 270

The Directors consider that baok value is materially equal to fair value.
The book value of primary financial instruments approximates to fair value where the instrument is an a short maturity, or
there are no fixed or contractual repayment reguirements withun the borrowing period, or where they bear interest at rates

approximate to the market

All trade and other payables are due in ene year or less, or on demand.
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assels but 1s exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating
interest rates through its revolving credit facitity. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group evaluates its risk appelite towards intereslt rate risks regularly, and may undertake hedging
activities. inctuding interest rate swap contracts, to manage interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility if
deemed necessary.

The Graup did not enter into any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and, as at 31 December 2014, the
only floating rate to which the Group is exposed was LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and
financial Liabilities is detaited in the Liquidity risk section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable
interest rates at the reporting date.

i interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's net protit
after tax would increase / decrease by £0.1m.

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital o ensure that all entiies in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising return to stakeholders, as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt. which includes borrowings Inote 17] and cash and cash equivalents
[note 15, and equity attributable to the owners of the parent, comprising issued share capilal [note 23}, other reserves and
retained earnings. The Board also considers the levels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the ability to
issue new shares for acquisitions, 1n managing capital risk tn the business.

The Group continues to benefit from its banking facilities {as renewed during June 2015, which features both a working
capital facitity, to assist in managing the Group's liquidity risk, and an acquisition facility to support the Group’s acquisition
strategy. The facility, avaitable untit August 2019, allows for a maximum drawdown of £25m.

Interest is caiculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage position, which 1s re-measured
quarterly in line with covenant testing. The Group's borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. At 31
December 2016 and throughout 2014 all of these covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the Uniled Kingdom. The majority of revenue and profits is
generated in the United Kingdom and consequently foreign exchange risk is currently bmited. The Group continues

to monitor its exposure to currency risk, particularly as the business expands into overseas territories such as North
America, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be sensitive to movements in currency rates.
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28 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2016, the Group had committed to the following payments in respect of aperating leases on land and
buildings. ’ .

2018 2018
| Em £m
| Commitments payabie under non-cancellable operating lease

Within 1 year 21 2.1
Later than one year and less than 5 years 49 65
7.0 8.6

. At 31 December 2016, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments in respect of operating leases
| on land and buildings.

2014 2015
€m £m
Commitments receivable under non-cancellable subleases
Within 1 year Qs g5
Later than one year and less than 5 years 0.8 1.8
| 1.3 23

29 PENSION SCHEMES
The Group contnibutes to individual and collective defined contribution pensien schemes in respect af Directors and
employees once they have completed the requisite period of service. The charge for the period in respect of these

schemes is shown in note 4, included within other payables is an amount of £0.1m (2015: £0.1m} payable in respect of the
pension schemes.

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Al 31 December 2014, the Group had no capital commitments (2015 £nil).
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371 RELATED PARTY TRANSALCTIONS
Group

Key management compensation is disclosed in note 6. There were no other material related party transactions.

Company

During the year, interest was recharged from subsidiary companies as fotlows:

2016 2015
£m Em
interest payable 0.4 0.2

Borrowings of £1.5m were received {2015, £2.9m] by subsidiaries on behalf of the Company.

The batances cutstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 15and 19.

Audit Exemption

For the year ended 31 Decermnber 2016 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 479A-C of the
Companies Act 2006 over the lizbilities of the following subsidiaries and as such they are exempt from the requirements
of the Act relating to the audit of individual financial statements. or preparation of individual financial statements, as
appropriate, for this financial year.

Outstanding

Company liabilities

Name number £m
Centaur Commmunications Limited 1595235 1.4
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited 07276298 34
Chiron Communications Limited 01081808 13.9
Ascent Publisheng Limited 02561341 0.9
The Forum for Expatriate Management Limited 06774955 8.3
Pro-Talk Lid 03939119 -
Taxbriefs Holdings Limited 03572069 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247331 0.2
Investment Platfarms Limited 04439194 5
Venture Business Research Limited 05663936 0.1
The Profite Group {UK) Limited 05242851 4.0
Ecorsultancy.com Limited 04047149 3.4
Maytield Publishing Ltd 02034820 -
Your Business Magazine Lirnited 01707331 -

32 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Board believes that the Home iInterest portfolio is no longer core to Centaur’'s B28 focus, and that as a distinct
business unil, it will accelerate its growth under more aligned ownership. Accordingly, following the year end, the Group
commenced a process to sell this portfolio,
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) L}

FIVE YEAR RECORD (UNAUDITED)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2014
Revenues [£ml 69.3 Ta4 728 705 72.5
Live events and premium content revenues
as % of whole 60% 66% 8% 67% %
Operating profit / {loss| [Eml] 114 (33.3) 30 {4.7) (3.91
Adjusted operating profit 10.4 10.0 16.2 105 9.1
Adjusted operating profit margin 15% 13% 14% 5% 13%
[Loss} / profit before tax [Emi 10.8 {35.74 14.2 15.6] (4.4)
Adjusted profit before tax [Em] 91 LE:) 9.2 9.8 8.4
Adjusted diluted EPS [pence) 4.4 a7 5.0 5.3 45
Dividend per share [pence) 1.5 2.425 3.0 30 3.0
Nel operating cash ftow [Em| 104 99 123 4.7 14.0
Average permanent headcount [FTE| 557 598 576 544 554
Revenue per head [£'000] 124 124 124 125 13t
Reveniue by type
2012 2013 2004 2015 2016
£m Em £€m £m €Em
Live events 228 28.0 8% 7.2 30.7
Premium content 19.0 211 2004 19.9 20.8
Advertising 263 246 224 225 202
Dther 1.2 0.7 09 0 0.8
69.3 Té 4 728 705 725
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
£m £m £m £m £m
Goodwitl and other intangible assets 160.0 1227 1099 954 88.8
Other assels and liabilities {19.04 {18.4} 18.4] 2.1 (7.8}
Net assets before net debt 141.0 $04.1 101% 4.3 81.2
Net debt {24.5) {27.0 {147} (17.91 (14.9]
Total equity 165 7 86.8 76.4 &7.1
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